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. SCE's Annual Report for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2004

) SCE's Annual Report to the Securities and Exchange Commission
(Form 10K) for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2004

If you have any questions or require further information about these documents, please
contact me or Mr. Jack Rainsberry at 949-368-7420.

Sincerely,

e fitowe

cc:  B. S. Mallett, Regional Administrator, NRC Region IV
B. M. Pham, NRC Project Manager, San Onofre Units 2 and 3
C. C. Osterholtz, NRC Senior Resident Inspector, San Onofre Units 2 and 3

Enclosures
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949-368-7501
Fax 949-368-7575
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ENCLOSURE 1

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY

2005 Internal Cash Flow Projection
(Dollars in Millions)

2004 2005
Actual Projected
Net Income After Taxes $921 ‘"
Dividends Paid $756 ‘"
Retained Earnings $165 “’
Adjustments:
Depreciation & Decommissioning $860 $936
Net Deferred Taxes & ITC $514 ($171)
Allowance for Funds Used During Construction ($35) {$51)
Total Adjustments $1,339 $714
Internal Cash Flow $1,504 M
Average Quarterly Cash Flow $376 M

Percentage Ownership in All Nuclear Units:
San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station Units 2 & 3

o Southern California Edison Company 75.05%

o San Diego Gas & Electric Company 20.00%

o City of Anaheim 3.16%

o City of Riverside 1.79%
Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station Units 1,2 & 3

o Southern California Edison Company 15.80%

Maximum Total Contingent Liability:

San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station Unit 2 $10.00 @

San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station Unit 3 $10.00 @

Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station Unit 1 $1.58 @

Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station Unit 2 $1.58 @

Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station Unit 3 $1.58 @
Total $24.74

) company policy prohibits disclosure of financial data which will enable unauthorized
persons to forecast earnings or dividends, unless assured confidentiality.

@ The value represents 100% of the SONGS Annual Per Incident Contingent Liability.

®) The value represents 15.8% (SCE's Share) of the Palo Verde Annual Per Incident
Contingent Liability.
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SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON CoMPANY (SCE) is one of the nation’s
largest investor-owned electric utilities. Headquartered in Rosemead,
California, SCE is a subsidiary of Edison International.

SCE, a 119-year-old electric utility, serves a 50,000-square-mile area
of central, coastal and southern California.
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Management’s Discussion and ‘Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

o INTRODUCTION
This Management’s Drscussron and Analysrs of Fmancral Cond1t1on and Results of Operations (MD&A)
contains forward-looking statements. These statements are based on Southern California Edison’s (SCE)
knowledge of present facts,; current expectations about future events and assumptions about future
developments. Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of performance; they are subject to risks
and uncertainties that could cause actual future outcomes and results of operations to be materially . -
different from those set forth in this discussion.” Important factors that could cause actual results to differ
are discussed throughout this MD&A, mcludmg in the management overvrew and the drscussrons of
llquldlty and market rxsk exposures - :

The MD&A is presented in 11 major sections. The MD&A begms wrth 1a management overview, -
which includes a description of how SCE earns revenue and income and a brief review of the company’s
consolidated earnings for 2004, and a summary of issues for 2004 and 2005. The remaining sections of -
the MD&A include: (2) Liquidity; (3) Market Risk Exposures; (4) Regulatory Matters; (5) Other -
Developments; (6) Results of Operations and Historical Cash Flow Analysis; (7) Dispositions and -
Discontinued Operations; (8) Acquisition; (9) Crrtrcal Accounting Policies and Estrmates (10) New
Accountmg Prmcrples ‘and (11) Commrtments - :

MANAGEMENT OVERVIEW R

Background RN
SCE is an investor- owned ut11|ty company prov1dmg electricity to retarl customers in central coastal and
southern California. SCE is regulated by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) and the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). SCE bills its customers for the sale of electricity at -
rates authorized by these two commxssmns ' These rates are categortzed into two groups base rates and
cost- recoweryrates S S i .

RO TR R S A ‘ . . P
Base Rates: Revenue arising from base ratés-is designed to provide SCE a reasonable opportunity to- -
recover its costs and earn an authorized return on the net book value of SCE’s investment in genera’tion;v
transmission and distribution plant (or rate base). .Base rates provide for recovery of operations and
maintenance costs, capital-related carrying costs (depreciation, taxes and interest) and a return or proﬁt
on a forecast basis. Base rates related to' SCE’s generation and distribution functions are authorizéd by ~
the CPUC through a general rate case (GRC). In a GRC proceeding, SCE files an application with the
CPUC to update its authorized annual revenue requirement. After a review process and hearings, the
CPUC sets an annual revenue requirement by multiplying an authorized rate of return; determinéd in
annual cost of capital proceedings (as discussed below), by rate base, then adding to this amount the . .
adopted operatron and mamtenance costs and caprtal related carrying costs. Adjustments to the revenue
requlrement for the remammg years of a typrcal three-year GRC cycle are requested from the CPUC ‘
based on criterja establtshed ina GRC proceedmg for escalatron in operation and mamtenance costs o
changes in capltal-related costs and the expected number of nuclear refueling outages See “Regulatory
Matters—Transmrssron and Dtstrrbutton-—-2003 General Rate Case Proceeding” for SCE’s current
annual revenue requirement. Variations in generatron and distribution revenue arising from the
difference between forecast and actual electricity sales are recorded in balancing accounts for future
recovery or refund, and do not impact SCE’s operating profit, while differences between forecast and
actual costs, other than cost-recovery costs (see below), do impact profitability.
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SCE’s capital structure, including the authorized rate of return, is regulated by the CPUC and is
determined in an annual cost of capital proceeding. The rate of return is a weighted average of the return
on common equity and cost of long-term debt and preferred stock.

Current CPUC ratemakmg also prov1des for performance 1ncent1ves or penaltres for differences between
actual resuits and GRC-determined standards of reliability and employee safety :

Base rate revenue related to SCE’s transmission functlon is authorlzed by the FERC in periodic
proceedings that are similar to the CPUC’s GRC proceeding, except that requested rate changes are
generally implemented when the application is filed; and revenue collected prior to a final FERC
decision is subject to refund. SCE’s current authorized annual revenue requirement of approximately . .
$260 million recovers the costs associated with its transmission function and earns a reasonable return on
its $1.1 billion transmission rate base. - : -

Cost-Recovery Rates: Revenue requirements to recover SCE’s costs of fuel, purchased power, demand-
side management programs, nuclear decommissioning costs, rate reduction debt requirements, and public
purpose programs are authorized in various CPUC proceedings on a cost-recovery basis, with no markup
for return or profit. :Approximately 50% of SCE’s annual revenue relates to the recovery of these costs. -
Although the CPUC authorizes balancing account mechanisms to refund or recover any differences
between estimated and actual costs in these categories in future proceedings, under- or over-collections in
these balancing accounts can build rapidly due to fluctuating prices (particularly in power procurement)
and can greatly impact cash flows. Rates are adjusted, as necessary, to recover or refund any under- or
over-collections. The majority of costs eligible for recovery are subject to CPUC reasonableness
reviews, and thus could negatrvely impact earnings and cash flows if found to be unreasonable and
disallowed. . . : S S

As described below under “Regulatory Matters—Generation and Power Procurement—CDWR Power
Purchases and Revenue Requirement Proceedings,” the California Department of Water Resources
(CDWR) began purchasing power on behalf of utility customers in 2001, during the California energy - -
crisis. In addition to billing its customers for SCE’s power procurement activities, SCE also bills and
collects from its customers for power purchased and sold by the CDWR, CDWR bond-related charges .
and direct access exit fees. These amounts are remitted to the CDWR as they are collected and are not
recognlzed as revenue by SCE. As a result, these transactions should have no impact on SCE’s eammgs
For a discussion of i 1mportant issues related to the rate makmg process, see the “Regulatory Matters
section. :

SCE’s 2004 Consolidatéd Earriings

SCE’s recorded eamrngs were $915 million i in 2004 compared to $922 ‘million i in 7003 The decrease in
eammgs was pr1mar1ly due to a decrease in operatmg earnings reflectmg the explratlon of SCE’s
performance incentive mechamsms for San Onofre Nuclear Generatlng Statlon (San Onofre), partially
offset by higher revenue net of operatlng expenses and the net benefits from the resolution of several
regulatory and | prior years tax issues. Fora detalled review and analys1s of the consolidated resuits of
operations and hxstorlcal cash ﬂows, see “Results of Operatlons and Historical Cash Flow Analysrs”
sectlon .

SCE 2004 Issues - Overnew

In 2004, SCE’s primary management focus was on numerous business issues that could have materially
affected SCE’s earnings, cash flow, or business risk. The following is a brief review of SCE’s
performance on its 2004 key business issues.
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InJ uly 2004 the CPUC issued a fmal decrslon in. SCE’s 2003 GRC authorizmg an annual increase
of $73 millron in base rates and provxdmg for base rate adjustments i in 2004 and 2005. The CPUC’s
decrsion is retroacttve to May 22,2003.. In the decision, the CPUC approved nearly all of SCE’s

-requested capltal spendmg Moreover the CPUC adopted a mechanism to adjust base rates based on
. SCE’s forecast of capital expendttures and operatmg and maintenance escalation for 2004 and 2005.

All of SCE’s major business functions (distribution, transmission and generation) had signiﬁcant
demands for capital investment. During 2004, SCE'’s new account additions totaled 68,400. In 2004,
SCE spent approxrmately $2.0 billion in capital expendltures mcludmg $285 mllllOIl related to the
acquisition of the Mountamvrew project... At year-end 2004, SCE’s rate base was $9.4 billion. With

. the 2003 GRC decision, SCE substantrally increased the replacement of distribution poles

transformers and other infrastructure during 2004. This is part of a long-term effort known as the
Infrastructure Replacement Program, which is designed to step up the level of mfrastructure :
replacement to maintain existing levels of system reliabillty A srgmﬁcant portion ( of SCE’s exrstmg
distribution mfrastructure was installed durmg the post-World War II population boom.

During 2004, SCE took major steps in implementation of its transmissio_n expansion plans to meet
customer load-growth requirements including: ‘

- Completed the reconstructlon of the Sylmar Converter Statlon This $120 milllon prolect

(SCE’s share i is $60 million), allows 3,100 megawatt (MW) of power to flow to southern
Califomia

o. Obtamed regulatory approval to spend $125 mrllion to upgrade SCE’s Devers/Palo Verde 1
.. transmission line. This project will add 505 MW by 2006;. - ‘

o Filed an application with the California Independent System Operator (ISO) for approval to
‘construct the $680 million Devers/Palo Verde 2 transmission line. This application was
approved on February 24, 2005. If approved by other regulatory agencies, the line would add
1,200 MW of power to southern California by 2009; Lo

L0~ Flled an application w1th the CPUC to construct the $224 milllon Antelope Area
.-, -Transmission project. This prO_]CCt will expand SCE’s transmission system, allowmg
“..- i;.additional supplrers of wmd energy . from the Tehachapi wmd region (near. Mohave,
" Callfomra) : v T
RSN T SRIARE T
Generation capltal spendmg mcreased dramatrcally in 2004 SCE made 51gmficant progress in the
construction of the 1,054 MW Mountainview project. At year-end 2004, the project was about 50%
completed and was on schedule to complete construction by the end of the first-quarter 2006. At

SCE’s San Onofre site, security upgrades driven by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission required

... $54 million of capital spending, slightly,above what had been budgeted for 2004. -Also during 2004,

San Onofre Unit 3 experienced an extended outage due to the replacement of the pressurizer heater

sleeves as a result of degradation This outage reduced the 2004 capacrty f'rctor of Unit 3 to 74%.

In February 2004 SCE ﬁled an appllcation w1th the CPUC to replace the San Onofre steam ,
. generators and to adopt the_estimated_reasonable replacement cost of $510 million (SCE’s_share). In

September 2004, SCE signed a contract for the fabrication of new steam generators. See “Regulatory

- Matters—Generation and Power Procurement—San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station.”
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» During 2004, SCE and its co-owners of the Mohave Generating Station (Mohave), a 1,580 MW
coal-fired plant (SCE has a 56% ownershlp) continued negotiations to find a reasonable path to
" continue Mohave operations beyond 2005. Under the terms of a consent decree, the Mohave owners
must install certain pollution-contro} equxpment in order to operate beyond 2005. Before the
investment can be evaluated by the co-owners, future coal and water supply issues must be resolved.
See “Regulatory Matters—Generation and Power Procurement—Mohave Generating Station and

Related Proceedings.”

e SCE has numerous concerns associated with providing power for its bundled service customers. As
discussed in the “—Background” s section, SCE recovers only réasonable costs associated with
procuring power for its customers, with no markup or profit. Because of the substantial costs
associated with power procurement, SCE spends considerable management focus to ensure that both

" customer and shareholder risks are reasonably protected. During 2004, SCE supported Assembly
Bill 2006, which would have created a fairer and more durable regulatory framework associated with
generation investments and purchased-power costs. Although the bill was passed by the State
Legislature, it was vetoed by the Governor of California. However, in the CPUC’s decisions ~
affecting power procurement, meaningful progress was made towards a fairer regulatory framework
supporting power procurement. In particular, the CPUC:

o recognized the financial implications of debt equivalence (the fixed financial obligations
resulting from long-term power-purchase contracts) when evaluating competitive bids on
power-purchase contracts, and also provided a mechanism to begin mitigating its impact;

o extended the power procurement trigger mechanism, allowing for adjustment in procurement .
rates should currently authorized rates cause revenue to exceed or under run actual costs by
5% of SCE prior year’s procurement costs (see “Market Risk Exposures—Commodity Price
Risk™); and

o provided stranded cost recovery for long-term power procurement arrangements.

e SCE has identified that resource adequacy requirements, anticipated closuré of Mohave at the end of
2005, reduction in deliveries of CDWR allocated-contract power, expiration of qualifying facilities
(QF) contracts, and peak-load growth of 1.5% to 2% per year would require SCE to seek substantial
amounts of incremental capacity. During 2004, SCE conducted a number of competitive solicitations
to meet its resource requirements, as specified by regulatory rules. Based on the results of SCE’s
2004 solicitations, SCE expects to meet its 2005 requirements and has significantly reduced its
estimate of the amount of resources needed to meet the requirements for 2006 and 2007. SCE also is

~ seeking additional suppliers of renewable power to attain CPUC-mandated levels. At year-end 2004,
" SCE obtained approximately 18% of its power supplies from renewable resources. SCE must
achieve 20% by 2010 or could be subject to penaltles & A

. Durmg 2004, SCE remained concerned about high customer rates, which were a contributing factor
that led to the deregulation of the electric services industry during the mid-1990s. At the beginning
of 2004, SCE’s system average rate for bundled service customers was 12.5¢-per-kilowatt-hour
(kWh). As of December 31, 2004, that rate was 12.2¢-per-kWh. On April 14, 2005, SCE expects to
implement new rates that will result in a system average of 13.0¢-per-kWh. The expected rate -
increase is due to higher gas prices and increased power purchases resulting from resource adequacy

" requirements and a reduction in CDWR power deliveries. On a cents-per-kWh basis, SCE’s average
rate is above the national average, but similar to other investor-owned electric utilities in California.
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e During 2004, a new issue emerged that affected SCE’s performance. SCE found that a number of .
employees had falsified customer data which was reported to the CPUC in support of certain -
performance incentive rewards. Upon further investigation, SCE also discovered that it had not - -,
appropriately collected or maintained data on employee safety which is also tied to a CPUC
performance incentive reward. SCE reported its findings to the CPUC, terminated and disciplined
certain employees, and committed to the CPUC to either refund or not seek any performance
incentives in the affected areas. SCE recorded a $29 million pre-tax earnings charge in 2004 to
account for the anticipated refund of the previously received performance incentive rewards. SCE is
committed to implementing programs that greatly strengthen the ethics and compliance programs and

- culture at SCE. | L - » : :

SCE 2005 1ssues - Overvi‘ewrr

This overview discusses key business issues facing SCE in 2005. It is not intended to be an exhaustive
discussion, but a summary of current or developing corporate issues. It includes items that could :
materially affect SCE’s earnings, cash flow, or business risk. The issues discussed in this overview are
described in more detail in the remainder of this “Southern California Edison Company” section.

In October 2004, Edison International adopted a comprehensive multi-year strategic plan. For the
remaining years, 2005-2009, the plan provides for SCE to incur $9.4 billion in capital expenditures
which would increase SCE’s rate base from $9.4 billion at year-end 2004 to $14.2 billion by year-end -,
2009. To achieve this projected growth, SCE must have all regulatory approvals to spend the forecasted
capital, and the people, processes, and systems to implement the authorized capital expenditures. - .
Pursuant to the plan, SCE expects to spend $1.6 billion on capital projects in 2005 and expects to have a
rate base of $10.2 billion at year-end 2005. Through the 2003 GRC decision, ratemaking for SCE’s 2005
-capital expenditures already is in place: Significant investments in 2005 are expected to include: = ..

e .. $200 million related to transmission projects. _

. ;$1 1 brllron related to drstrlbutlon pI‘O_]BCtS
e $300 mrllron related to generanon pI‘O_]CCtS, mc]udmg the completlon of the construcnon of the
: Mountamvrew prOJect : i i :
In order to achreve this growth for 2005 and beyond SCE needs to make meanmcrful progress on several
transmission pro_]ects mcludmg OIS : "

. Devers/Palo Verde litransmlssmn line upgrades. .

» Rancho Vista Substation, Devers/Palo Verde 2 transmission line, and Antelope Transmission project,
all of which were approved by the ISO'in 2005. The CPUC approval process must now be initiated.

2005 is an important year for several generation projects. The Mountainview project will be
substantially completed in 2005, with an anticipated in-service date during the first quarter of 2006.
During 2005, the CPUC is expected to render a final decision on SCE’s San Onofre steam generator. * -
replacement application. In addition, future ownership of San Onofre is affected by co-owners opting out
of steam generator investments. This ¢could result in SCE assuming a greater financial responsibility for.
steam generator replacement and increased ownership interest. See “Regulatory Matters—Generation .-
and Power Procurement—San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station.” The future of Mohave still remains -
uncertain. SCE will continue to seek a solution permitting extension of Mohave’s operation beyond * -
2005 on commercially reasonable terms, or provide for its permanent shutdown.” A commitment to
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extend Mohave’s operation and the possible $1.1 billion capital expenditures (SCE’s share is
$605 million), is not included in SCE’s capital forecast. See “Regulatory Matters—Generation and
Power Procurement—Mohave Generating Station and Related Proceedings.”

In December 2004, SCE filed an application with the CPUC for its 2006 GRC. The application requests
the CPUC to increase base rates by $370 million, primarily for capital-related expenditures to
accommodate customer and load growth and substantially higher operation and maintenance
expenditures particularly in SCE’s transmission and distribution business unit. The application also
seeks base rate increases for 2007 and 2008, permitting escalation for operating expenditures and
planned capital expenditures. If the schedule is maintained, a final decision is expected at year-end 2005.
See “Regulatory Matters—Transmission and Distribution—2006 General Rate Case Proceeding.”
Adoption of the capital forecast incorporated in SCE’s 2006 GRC is essential to meeting the targets
incorporated in SCE’s strategic plan.

In 2004, SCE commenced a broad initiative to redesign key work processes associated with capital
expenditures within the transmission and distribution business unit. The initiative, known as business
process integration, is designed to modify existing work processes which focus on individual business
units and replace them with integrated work processes spanning the entire utility. This initiative should
produce efficiency of business systems, reduction of capital requirements and streamlined business
processes. SCE has incorporaté‘d‘expected savings from business process integration in its 2006 GRC
forecast.

In 2005, SCE will continue to focus on meeting the CPUC’s new minimum planning reserve margin of -
15-17% above its average-year peak load. In January 2004, the CPUC adopted this minimum planning
reserve margin for all load-serving entities, including SCE, which supplies power to about 85% of the
retail load served by its transmission and distribution system. In October 2004, the CPUC accelerated the
effective date for the minimum planning reserve margin from 2008 to 2006. SCE has met the minimum
planning reserve margin for 2005. However, as power-purchase contracts expire, generating plants retire,
and load grows, SCE anticipates the need to sign additional power-purchase contracts in the years ahead
to meet the minimum planning reserve requirement beyond 2005. The ISO, CPUC and the California
Energy Commission have identified SCE’s service territory as an area in which new generation will soon
be needed. SCE will continue to advocate to State officials the need for a market and regulatory =
framework that will support developers’ efforts to obtain financing for new generation projects. Over
time, a robust resource adequacy framework implemented through stable capacity markets may achieve
this goal; in the interim, developers may not be able to obtain financing without long-term contracts with
creditworthy load-serving entities. Long-term contracts with new generators are likely to be more costly
than short-term contracts with existing generators. However, load-serving entities are not in a position to
sign these more costly, long-term contracts for new generation in an environment in which their retail
customers can elect another service provider. SCE will continue working with State officials to find
transitional and long-term solutions to this fundamental problem that treat all load-serving entmes
equitably and are workable even if the State expands competitive retail markets.

LIQUIDITY

SCE’s liquidity is primarily affected by under- or over-collections of procurement-related costs,
collateral and mark-to-market requirements associated with power-purchase contracts, and access to
capital markets or external financings. At December 31, 2004, SCE’s credit and long-term senior
secured issuer ratings from Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s Investors Service were BBB and A3,
respectively. On February 16, 2005, Standard & Poor’s raised SCE senior secured credit rating to BBB+
from BBB. On September 17, 2004, Moody’s Investors Service assigned SCE a short-term credit rating
of P2 in connection with SCE’s launch of a new $700 million commercial paper program.
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Standard & Poor’s had previously issued SCE a short-term credit rating of A2. As of December 31,
2004, SCE had $88 million in commercial paper outstanding.

As of December 31, 2004, SCE had cash and equivalents of $122 million ($90 million relates to cash -
held by SCE’s consolidated Variable Interest Entities (VIEs)). As of December 31, 2004, long-term debt,
including current maturities of long-term debt, was $5.5 billion. As of December 31, 2004, SCE posted
approximately $75 million ($65 million in cash and $10 million in letters of credit) as collateral to secure
its obligations under power-purchase contracts and to transact through the ISO for imbalance energy.
SCE’s collateral requirements can vary depending upon the level of unsecured credit extended by
counterparties, the ISO’s credit requirements, changes in market prices relative to contractual
commitments, and other factors. At December 31, 2004, SCE had a $700 million senior secured credit
facility with an expiration date of December 2006. The credit facility was not utilized, except for.

$98 million supporting the commercial paper outstanding and the letters of credit as mentioned above.
Subsequently, in February 2005, the $700 million credit facility was replaced with a $1.25 billion senior
secured 5-year revolving credit facility. As of February 28, 2005, SCE’s new credit facility supported
$306 million of commercial paper outstanding and $10 million in letters of credit, leaving $934 million
available under its credit facility.

SCE’s 2005 estimated cash outflows consfst of;

e Approximately $246 million of rate reduction notes that are due at various times in 2005, but which
have a separate cost recovery mechanism approved by state legislation and CPUC decisions;

* Projected capital expenditures pr1mar11y to replace and expand distribution and transmission
infrastructure and construct and replace generation assets;

e Dividend payments to SCE’s parent company;
e Fuel and procurement-related costs; and
e General operating expenses.

SCE expects to meet its continuing obligations, including cash outflows for power-procurement
undercollections (if incurred), through cash and equivalents on hand, operating cash flows and short-term
borrowings, when necessary. Projected capital expenditures are expected to be financed through cash
flows and the issuance of long-term debt and preferred stock.

In December 1997, $2.5 billion of rate reduction notes were issued on behalf of SCE by SCE Funding
LLC, a special purpose entity. These notes were issued to finance the 10% rate reduction mandated by
state law. The proceeds of the rate reduction notes were used by SCE Funding LLC to purchase from
SCE an enforceable right known as transition property. Transition property is a current property right -
created by the restructuring legislation and a financing order of the CPUC and consists generally of the -
right to be paid a specified amount from nonbypassable rates charged to residential and small commercial
customners. The rate reduction notes are being repaid over 10 years through these nonbypassable
residential and small commercial customer rates, which constitute the transition property purchased by .
SCE Funding LLC. The notes are collateralized by the transition property and are not collateralized by,
or payable from, assets of SCE or Edison International. SCE used the proceeds from the sale of the
transition property to retire debt and equity securities. Although, as required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States, SCE Funding LLC is consolidated with SCE and the rate
reduction notes are shown as long-term debt in the consolidated financial statements, SCE Funding LLC
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is legally separate from SCE. The assets of SCE Funding LLC are not available to creditors of SCE or
Edison International and the transition property is legally not an asset of SCE or Edison International.

SCE is experiencing significant growth in actial and planned capital expendxtures to replace and expand
its distribution and transmission infrastructure and construct and replace generation assets. In 2004, SCE
spent $2.0 billion, including the acquisition and construction of the Mountainview project. SCE expects
its capital expenditures to be $1.6 billion, $1.8 billion and $1.9 billion in 2005, 2006 and 2007,
respectively. In the 2003 GRC the CPUC approved nearly-all of SCE’s requested capital spending for
the 2003 through 2005 period. SCE is seeking regulatory approval, in lts 2006 GRC to continue its
mfrastructure program for the 2006 through 2009 period:

The CPUC regulates SCE'’s capltal structure and limits the dxvxdends it may pay Edlson International (see
“Edison International (Parent): Liquidity” for further discussion).  In SCE’s most recent cost of cap1ta1
proceeding, the CPUC set an authorized capital structure for SCE which included a common equity
component of 48%. SCE determines compliance with this capital structure based on a 13-month
weighted-average calculation. At December 31, 2004, SCE’s 13-month weighted-average common
equity component of total capitalization was 50.5%. At December 31, 2004, SCE had the capacity to pay
$222 million in additional dividends based on the 13-month weighted-average method. Based on
recorded December 31, 2004 balances, SCE’s common equity to total capitalization ratio, for rate-making
purposes, was 50.4%. SCE had the capacity to pay $213 million of additional dividends to Edison
International based on December 31, 2004 recorded balances. The CPUC has authorized SCE to increase
the amount of preferred stock in its authorized capital structure from 5% to 9% of total capitalization.
Correspondingly, SCE will use the proceeds to fund capital expenditures. The exact amount and txmmg
of such issuances is dependent upon many factors, mcludmg market condmons

In January 2005, SCE issued $650 million of first and refundmg mortgage bonds The issuance mcluded
$400 million of 5% bonds due in 2016 and $250 million of 5.55% bonds due in 2036. The proceeds were
used to redeem the remaining $50,000 of 8% first and refunding mortgage bonds due February 2007
(Series 2003A) and $650 million of the $966 million 8% first and refunding mortgage bonds due
February 2007 (Series 2003B).

SCE has debt covenants that require certain interest coverage, interest and preferred dividend coverage,
and debt to total capitalization ratios to be met. At December 31, 2004, SCE was in compliance with
these debt covenants, . -

SCE’s liquidity may 'be affected by, 5rhohg other thingls, matters described in "‘Regul‘atory Matters.”
MARKET RISK EXPOSURES . .

SCE’s primary market risks include fluctuations in interest rates, commodity prices and volume, and .
counterparty credit. Fluctuations in interest rates can affect earnings and cash flows. However,
fluctuations in commodity prices and volumes and counterparty credit losses temporarily affect cash
flows, but should not affect earnings due to recovery through regulatory mechanisms. SCE uses _
derivative financial instruments to manage its market risks, but prohibits the use of these instruments for
speculative purposes. : :

Interest Rate Risk - -

SCE is exposed to changes in interest rates primarily as a result of its borrowing and investing activities
used for liquidity purposes and to fund business operations, as well as to finance capital expenditures.
The nature and amount of SCE’s long-term and short-term debt can be expected to vary as a result of
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future business requirements, market conditions and other factors. In addition, SCE’s authorized return
on common equity (11.6% for 2004 and 11.4% for 2005), which is established in SCE’s annual cost of
capital proceeding, is set on the basis of forecasts of interest rates and other factors.

At December 31, 2004, SCE did not believe that its short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt
and preferred stock was subject to interest rate risk, due to the fair market value being approxrmately
equal to the carrying value.

At December 31, 2004, the fair market value of SCE’s long-term debt was $5.6 billion. A 10% increase
in market interest rates would have resulted in a $186 million decrease in the fair market value of SCE’s
long-term debt. A 10% decrease in market interest rates would have resulted in a $206 million increase
in the fair market value of SCE’s long-term debt. At December 31, 2004, the fair market value of SCE's
preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption was $140 million. A 10% increase and decrease in
market interest rates would have resulted in a $2 million decrease and increase, respectively, in the fair
market value of SCE’s preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption.

Commodity Price Risk

In 2004, SCE’s purchased-power expense was approximately 36% of SCE’s total operating expenses...
SCE recovers its reasonable power procurement costs through regulatory mechanisms established by the
CPUC. The California Public Utilities Code provides that the CPUC shall adjust rates, or order refunds,
to amortize undercollections or overcollections of power procurement costs. Under a trigger mechanism,
the CPUC must adjust rates if the undercollection or overcollection exceeds 5% of SCE’s prior year’s
procurement costs, excluding revenue collected for the CDWR. The CPUC issued a decision on
December 16, 2004, that keeps the trigger mechanism in effect during the term of long-term contracts, or
10 years, whichever is longer. As a result of these regulatory mechanisms, changes in energy prices may
1mpact SCE’s cash flows but should have no 1mpact on earnings.

On J anuary 1, 2003, SCE resumed power procurement responsibilities for its customers. SCE forecasts
that it will have a net-long position (generation supply exceeds expected load requirements) in the
majority of hours during 2005. SCE’s net-long position arises primarily from “must-take” deliveries
under CDWR contracts allocated to SCE’s customers. SCE has incorporated a 2005 price and volume
forecast from expected sales of net-long power in its 2005 revenue forecast used for setting rates. If
actual prices or volumes vary from forecast,-SCE’s cash flow would be temporarily impacted, but should
not affect earnings. For 2006, SCE forecasts that it will have a net-short position (expected load
requirements exceed generation supply) at certain times. SCE’s forecast net-short position increases
from year-to-year, assuming no new-generation supply is added, as existing contracts expire, SCE
generating plants retire, and load grows. However, the CPUC has set resource adequacy requirements
which require SCE to acquire and demonstrate enough generating capacity in its portfolio for a planning
reserve margin of 15-17% above its peak load:as forecast for an average year (see “Regulatory Matters—
Generation and Power Procurement—Generation Procurement Proceedings”). Accordingly, SCE
anticipates continued generation contracting.over time to maintain the minimum reserve margin. The
establishment of a sufficient planning reserve margin mitigates, to some extent, several conditions that
could increase SCE’s net-short position, including lower utility generation due to expected or unexpected
outages or plant closures, lower deliveries under third-party power contracts, or higher than anticipated -
demand for electricity. However, SCE’s planning reserve margin may not be sufficient to supply the
needs of all returning direct access customers (customers who choose to purchase power directly from an
electric service provider other than SCE but then decided to return to utility service). Increased, '
procurement costs resulting from the return of direct access customers could lead to temporary
undercollections and the need to increase rates. . -
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SCE anticipates purchasing additional capacity and/or ancillary services to meet its peak-energy
requirements in 2005 and beyond if its net-short position is significantly higher than SCE’s current -
forecast. As of December 31, 2004, SCE entered into power tolling arrangement and forward physical
contracts to mitigate its exposure to energy prices in the spot market. The fair market value of the power
tolling arrangements as of December 31, 2004, was a liability of $6 million. A 10% increase in energy -
prices would have resulted in a $49 million increase in the fair market value.. A 10% decrease in energy
prices would have resulted in a $37 million decrease in the fair market value. The fair market value of -
the forward physical contracts as of December 31, 2004, was an asset of $8 million. A 10% increase in
energy prices would have resulted in a $1 million increase in the fair market value. A 10% decrease in
energy prices would have resulted in a $2 mrlllon decrease in the farr market value. '

SCE is also exposed to increases in natural gas prices related to its QF contracts, fuel tolling
arrangements, and owned gas-fired generation, including the Mountainview project (expected to be on- .
line in 2006). SCE purchases power from QFs under CPUC-mandated contracts. Contract energy prices
for most nonrenewable QFs are based in large part on the monthly southern California border price of
natural gas. In addition to the QF contracts, SCE has power contracts in which SCE has agreed to
provide the natural gas needed for generation under those power contracts, which are known as fuel
tolling arrangements. SCE has an active gas fuel hedging program in place to minimize ratepayer
exposure to spot market price spikes. However, movements in gas prrces over time will impact SCE’s
gas costs and the cost of QF power which i Is related to natural gas prrces :

As of December 31, 2004, SCE entered into gas forward transdctions mcludrng options;’ swaps and -
futures, and fixed price contracts to mitigate its exposure related to the QF contracts and fuel tolling
arrangements. The fair market value of the forward transactions as of December 31, 2004, was a liability
of $11 million. A 10% increase in gas prices would'have resulted in a $21 million increase in the fair - -
market value. A 10% decrease in gas prices would have resulted in a $21 million decrease in the fair
market value. SCE cannot predict with certainty whetherin the future it will be able to hedge customer -
risk for other commodities on favorable terms or that the cost of such hedges w1ll be fully recovered in
rates. ' . . L [ .

SCE’s gas expenses and gas hedging costs, as well as its purchased-power costs, are recovered through a
balancing account known as the Energy Resource Recovery Account (ERRA). To the extent SCE -
conducts its power and gas procurement activities in accordance with its CPUC-authorized procurement
plan, California statute (Assembly Bill 57) establishes that SCE is entltled to full cost recovery: Certam
SCE activities, such as contract administration, SCE’s dutiés as CDWR’s limited agent for allocated
CDWR contracts, and portfolio dispatch, are reviewed annually by the CPUC for reasonableness. The
CPUC has currently establlshed a max1mum dlsallowance cap of $37 mxlhon for these actlvmes

Pursuant to CPUC decrslons SCE, as the CDWR’s limited agent, performs certain services for CDWR
contracts allocated to SCE by thie CPUC, including arranging for natural gas supply. Financial and legal
responsibility for the allocated contracts remains with the CDWR.- The CDWR, through coordination:
with SCE, has hedged a portion of its expected natural gas requirements for the gas tolling contracts
allocated to SCE. Increases in gas prices over time, however, will increase the CDWR’s £as costs.
California state law permits thée CDWR to recover its actual costs through rates established by the CPUC.
This would affect ratés charged to SCE’s customers, but would not affect SCE’s earnings or cash flows.
Quoted market prices, if availablé, are used for determining the fair value of contracts, as discussed
above. If quoted market prices are not available, internally maintairied standardized or industry accepted
models are used to determine the fair value. The models are updated with spot prices, forward prices,
volatilities and interest rates from regularly published and widely distributed independent sources.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk arises primarily due to the chance that a counterparty under various purchase and sale
contracts will not perform as agreed or pay SCE for energy products delivered. SCE uses a variety of
strategies to mitigate its exposure to credit risk. SCE’s risk management committee regularly reviews
procurement credit exposure and approves credit limits for transacting with counterparties. Some, -
counterparties are required to post collateral depending on the creditworthiness of the counterparty and
the risk associated with the transaction. -SCE follows the credit limits established in its CPUC- approved
procurement plan, and accordingly believes that any losses which may occur should be fully; recoverable
from customers; and therefore should not affect earnings. | : :

REGULATORY MATTERS - - -,

Thrs section of the MD&A descrtbes SCE’s regulatoryvmatters in three main subsectrons
* generation and power procurement;y o

J transmission'land ‘distrihuti’on; a‘nd“ NS - R SORTEE o 5

. otherregulatorymatters RHEEEE St C P
R :

Generatlon and Pouer Procurement o S SR

CPUC Ltttgatton Settlem ent Agreement

In October 2001 SCE and the CPUC entered into a settlement of SCE’s lawsult agamst the CPUC Wthh
sought full recovery of its electricity procurement costs incurred during the energy crisis. A key element
of the 2001 CPUC settlement agreement was the establishment of a $3.6 billion regulatory balancing
account, called the Procurement-Related Obligations Account (PROACT), as of August 31, 2001 (which
was fully recovered by August 2003)

Energy Resource Recovery Account Proceedm gs
In an October 2002 decnston the CPUC estabhshed the ERRA as the rate- makmg mechanlsm to track and
recover SCE’s: (1) fuel costs related to its generating stations; (2) purchased-power costs related to
cogeneration and renewable contracts; (3) purchased-power costs related to existing interutility and
bilateral contracts that were entered into before January 17,-2001; and (4) new procurement-related costs
incurred on or after January 1, 2003 (the date on which the CPUC transferred back to SCE the .
responsibility for procurmo energy resources for its customers). As described in “Management
Overview—DBackground,” SCE recovers these costs on a cost-recovery basis, with no markup for return .
or profit. SCE files annual forecasts of the above-described costs that it expects to incur during the -
following year. As these costs are subsequently incurred, they will be tracked and recovered through the
ERRA, but are subject to a reasonableness review in a separate annual ERRA application. If the ERRA"
overcollection or undercollection exceeds 5% of SCE’s prior year’s procurement costs, SCE can request
an emergency rate adjustment in addmon to the annual forecast and reasonableness ERRA - apphcatlons

%

,,,,,,,

2004ERRAForecast. P ‘,; y

related revenue requirement for the 2004 calendar year of $2 3 billion. The CPUC issued a decision on
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April 22, 2004, approving SCE’s 2004 forecast revenue requirement and rates for both generation and - :
distribution services.

< ',

ERRA Reasonableness Review for the Penod September 1, 2001 through June 30 2003

On October 3 2003, SCE submitted its ﬁrst ERRA reasonableness review apphcatlon requestmg that the
CPUC find its‘procurement-related operations during the period from September:1, 2001 through

June 30, 2003'to be reasonable. The CPUC’s Office of Ratepayer Advocates (ORA) was allowed to
review the accounting calculations used in the PROACT mechanism. The ORA recommended
disallowances that totaled approximately $14 million of costs recovered through the PROACT -
mechanism during the period from September 1, 2001 through June 30, 2003. In April 2004, SCE
reached an agreement with the ORA (subject to CPUC approval) to reduce the PROACT disallowances’
to approximately $4 million. On January 27, 2005, the CPUC issued a decision approving the agreement.
The $4 million, which is'mainly comprised of ISO grid management charges and émployee-related
retraining costs, will be refunded to ratepayers through a credit to the ERRA.

The January 27, 2005 CPUC decision also provides that SCE’s administration of its procurement
contracts will be subject to reasonableness review under the “reasonable manager” standard. However,
the CPUC decision provides that the review of SCE’s daily dispatch of its generation resources will be
subject to a compliance review, not a reasonableness review, and will only include a review of spot.
market transactions in the day-ahead, hour-ahead and real-time markets. The decision found that SCE’s
daily dispatch decisions during the record period complied with the CPUC’s standard; and that its . - - -.*
administration of its contracts was reasonable in all respects. It authorized recovery of amounts paid to
Peabody Coal Company for costs associated with the Mohave mine closing as well as transmission costs
related to serving municipal utilities, and also resolved outstanding issues from 2000 and 2001 related to
CDWR costs. As aresult of this dec1sxon SCE recorded a pre -tax net regulatory gam of $118 mllllon i
2004. : : o

. 3
i

ERRA Reasonableness Review for the Period July 1, 2003 rhrough December 31, 2003

On April 1, 2004, SCE submitted its second ERRA reasonableness review apphcatxon requestmg that the
CPUC find its procurement-related operations during the period from July 1, 2003 through December 31,
2003, to be reasonable. In addition, SCE requested recovery of a $10 million reward for Palo Verde
‘Nuclear Generating Station (Palo Verde) Unit 3 efﬁC1ent operauon and $5 mlllxon in electric energy -
transaction admmlstratlon costs. : '

On January: 17 2005, the CPUC 1ssued a dec151on fmdmg that SCE’s admlmstratxon of its power
purchase agreements and its daily decisions dispatching its procurement resources.were reasonable and
prudent. The decision also found that the revenue and expenses recorded in SCE’s ERRA account during
the record period were reasonable and prudent, and approved SCE’s requested recovery of the items:
dlscussed above

2005 ERRA Forecast.

SCE submltted an ERRA forecast apphcatlon on August 2,2004, in Wthh it forecasted a procurement-:
related revenue requirement for the 2005 calendar year of $3.0 billion, an increase of $733 million over
2004. The forecast increase is primarily due to a reduction in expected power purchases by the CDWR.
On February 2, 2005, the CPUC issued a proposed decision adopting SCE’s requested revenue
requirement for the 2005 calendar year. A final decision is expected in March 2005. ‘

12




PR TS VR - Southern California Edison Company

CDWR Power Purchases and Revenue Requzrement Proceedmgs L Y S
In accordance w1th an emergency order by the Govemor of Cahforma the CDWR began maklng
emergency power purchases for SCE’s customers on January 17, 2001. In February 2001, a Cahfomra
law was enacted which authorized the CDWR to: (1) enter into contracts to purchase electrlc power and
sell power at cost.directly to SCE’s retail customers; and (2) issue bonds to finance those electricity -
purchases. The CDWR’s total statewide power charge and-bond charge revenue requirements are . .
allocated by the CPUC among the customers of SCE, Pacific Gas and Electrlc (PG&E) and San Dlego
Gas & Electric (SDG&E) (collectively, the investor- owned utilities). Amounts bllled to SCE’ A
customers for electric power purchased and sold by the CDWR (approximately $2. S brlhon in 2004) are
remitted directly to the CDWR and are not recognized as revenue by SCE and therefore have no impact
on SCE’s earnings. Sy e
In December 2004, the CPUC.issued its decision on how the CDWR’s power, charge revenue requirement
for 2004 through 2013, when the last. CDWR contract expires, will be allocated among the. investor- .
owned utilities. The CPUC rejected a sett]ement agreement among PG&E the Utility Reform Network
(TURN), and SCE and which the ORA supported ‘However, the CPUC’s fmal decision adopts key
attributes of that settlement agreement. It adopts a cost-follows-contract a_llocatlon toeachofthe. - :
investor-owned utilities of the unavoidable portion of costs incurred under CDWR contracts.. A previous
CPUC decision allocated the avoidable portion of the costs on a cost-follows-contract basis. Allocating
the avoidable and unavoidable portions on a cost-follows-contract basis provides the investor-owned
utilities the appropriate incentives to operate and administer the contracts that have been allocated to, . -
them. In addition, in order to fairly allocate the total burden of the CDWR contracts among the investor-
owned utilities, the decision adjusts the cost-follows-contract allocation of the total costs (avoidable and
unavoidable) such that the above-market cost burden associated with the contracts is allocated as
follows: 44.8% to PG&E’s customers, 45.3% to SCE’s customers, and 9.9% to SDG&E’s customers.
The CPUC’s December 2004 decision is based on the above. market cost analysrs that SCE presented in
its initial testlmony in December 2003 Lo : L :

In response to an apphcatron ﬁled by SDG&E the CPUC 1ssued an order grantmg lrmrted rehearmg of
the December 2004 decision. The rehearing permits parties to present alternative methodologies and .
updated data for the calculanon of above market costs associated with the CDWR contracts. A schedule
has not been adopted for the rehearing, but it is expected to take place in the second quarter of 2005 ,
SDG&E has also filed a petition for modification of the decision urging the ‘CPUC to replace the adopted
methodology with a methodology that would retain the cost-follows-contract allocation of the avoidable
costs, but would allocate the unavoidable costs associated with the contracts: 42.2% to PG&E’s
customers, 47.5% to SCE’s customers, and 10.3% to SDG&E’s customers. Such an allocation would
decrease the total costs allocated to SDG&E's customers and increase the total costs allocated to SCE’s -
customers. The CPUC is expected to act on the petition in March 2005 N

Dtrect Access and Commumty Chorce Aggregatton o

From 1998 through m1d September 2001 SCE’s customers were able to choose to purchase power
directly from an electric service provider other than SCE (thus becommg direct access customers) or
continue to purchase power from SCE. In September 2001, the CPUC suspended the right of retail -
end-use customers to. acqu1re direct access servrce until the CDWR no longer procures power for retarl
isa form of drrect access that allows local govemments to combine the loads of its resrdents busmesses,
and municipal facilities in a community-wide electricity buyers program and to create an entity called a:
communlty chorce aggregator. ;- L

o
i i
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As a result of these customer options, the CPUC issued decisions or opened:proceedings to establish' -
various charges (exit fees) for customers who (1) switch to another electric service provider, (2) switch to
a municipal utility; or (3) install onsite generation facilities or arrange to purchase power from another
entity that installs such facilities. Separately, the CPUC opened a proceeding to identify issues relating -
to the implementation of commuinity choice aggrégation and adopted a similar exit fee approach for -
customers who switch to community choice aggregation service. The charges recovéred from these
customers are used to reduce SCE’s rates to bundled service' customers and have no impact on earnings.
These decisions and proceedmgs affect SCE’s ability to predict the size of its customer base, the amount
of bundled service Joad for which it must procure or generate electrrcnty, 1ts net- shon posrtron and its
abrhty to plan for resource requrrements ' -

Generation Procurement Proceedings

SCE resumed power procurement responsrbllrtres for its net-short position (expected load requirements
exceed oeneranon supply) onlJ anuary 1,2003, pursuant to CPUC orders and Cahfomla statutes passed in
for CDWR contracts allocated by the CPUC, and provide full power procurement responsibilities on the
basis of annual short-term procurement plans, long-term resotrce: plans and increased procurement of -
renewable resources. Currently, the CPUC and the California Energy Commission are working together
to set rules for various aspects of ceneratron procurement which. are descnbed below

’

Procurement Plan

Resource PlanmngComponent of the Procurement Plan

On April 1, 2004, the CPUC instituted a resource planning proceeding that, among other thmos will
coordinate consideration of long-term resourcé plans. On July 9,2004, SCE filed testimony oni'its long:
term procurement plan, which includes a substantial commitment to cost-effective energy efficiency and
an advanced load-control program. A CPUC decision approving SCE’s long-term procurement plan was
issued in'December2004. ‘The decision required all long-term procurement to be coriducted through -
all-source solicitations; allowed the consideration of debt equivalence in the bid evaluation process; and
required the use of a greenhouse gas adder as a bid evaluation component. The decision also extended’
the utilities’ authority to procure longer-term products and lifted the affiliate ban on long-term power 1
products. SCE’s next long term procurement plan will be filed in ’7006 S

Assembly Bill 57 Component of the Procurement Plan -

In December 2003, the CPUC adopted a 2004 short-term procurement plan for SCE which establtshed a
target level for spot market purchases equal to 5% of monthly need; and allowed SCE to enter into
contracts of up to five years. Currently, SCE is operating under this approved short-term procurement
plan. To the extent SCE procures power in accordance with the plan, SCE receives full-cost recovery of
its procurement transactions pursuant to Assembly Bill 57. Accordmgly, the plan is referred to as the
Assembly Bl“ 57 component of the procurement plan :
Each quarter, SCE is required to file a report with the CPUC demonstratmg that SCE’s procurement- -
related transactions associated with serving the deminds of its bundled electricity customers were in
conformance with SCE’s adopted short-term procurement plan SCE has submitted seven quarterly
compliance filings covering the period from January 1, 2003 through September 30, 2004, ‘including its
third quarter 2004 compliance filing on November 1; 2004. To date, however, the CPUC has only issued
one resolution approving SCE’s first compliance report for the period January 1, 2003 to March 31+ -
2003. While SCE believes that all of its procurement transactions were in compliance with its adopted
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short-term procurement plan, SCE cannot predrct with certamty whether or not the CPUC will agree with
SCE’s mterpretatmn regardm0 some elements U - S .

N Pt

Resource Adequacy Reqmrements IELE
rob Ty Tt ' N
Under the framework adopted in the CPUC’s J anuary 22 2004 decrsron all load servmg entmes in -
California have an obligation to procure sufficient resources to meet their customers’ needs. On .- .
October 28, 2004, the CPUC issued a decision clarifying the January 2004 decision. The October 2004 ;
decision requires load-serving entities to ensure that adequate resources have been contracted to meet -
that entity’s peak forecasted energy resource demand and an additional planning reserve margin of
15-17% of that peak load by June 1, 2006. Currently, the decision requires SCE to demonstrate that it
has contracted 90% of its May-September 2006 resource adequacy requirement by September 30, 2005.
As the May-September period approaches, SCE will be required to fill out the remaining 10% of its
resource adequacy requirement one month:in‘advance of expected need. ‘The October.28, 2004 decision
also clarified that although the first compliance filing will only cover May-September 2006, the 15- 17%
planning reserve margin is a year-round requirement. In its October 2004 decision, the CPUC also
decided that long-term CDWR contracts allocated to the investor-owned utilities during the 2001 energy
crisis are to be fully counted for resource adequacy purposes, and that deliverability standards developed
during subsequent phases will be applied to such contracts. These deliverability standards, as well as a .-
wide range of other issues, including scheduling and load forecasting, will be addressed in a separate
phase of the proceeding which is expected to be completed by mid-2005. SCE expects to meet lts
resource adequacy requirements by the deadlines set forth in the decision. > S

AvozdedCostProceedmg B RENEEE (T

SCE purchases electrlc energy and capacrty from various QFs pursuant to contracts that provide for
payment at avoided cost, as determined by the CPUC. On April 22, 2004, the CPUC opened a - S
rulemaking to develop, review and update methodologies for determining avoided costs, including the
methodologies SCE uses to pay its QFs. Among other things, the rulemaking is to consider modifications
to the current methodology for short-run avoided cost energy pricing and the current as-available:
capacity pricing. The rulemaking also proposes to develop a long-run avoided cost pricing methodology
for QFs. Hearings are scheduled for May 2005. Although the rulemaking may affect the amounts paid to
QFs and customer rates, changes to pricing methodology should not affect SCE’s eammgs as such costs
are recovered from ratepayers subject to reasonableness review.

Extenszon of QF Contracts and New QF Contracrs

SCE has 270 power-purchase contracts with QFs, a number of which will expire in the next five years.
On September 30, 2004, the CPUC issued a ruling requesting proposals and comments on the -
development of a long-term policy for expiring QF contracts and new QFs. SCE filed its response to the
ruling on November 10, 2004, in which it proposed to purchase electricity from QFs by (1) allowing QFs
to compete in SCE’s competitive solicitations; (2) conducting bilateral negotiations for new contracts or
contract extensions with QFs; or (3) offering an energy only contract at market-based avorded cost
prlces Hearmgs are scheduled for May 2005 : '

Procurement of Renewable Resources
As part of ,SCE’_s resumption of power procurement, and in accordance with a California statute passed in
2002, SCE is required to increase its procurement of renewable resources by at least 1% of its annual

electricity sales per year so that 20% of its annual electricity sales are procured from renewable resources
by no later than December 31, 2017. At year-end 2004, SCE obtained approximately 18% of its power
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supplies from renewable resources. In June 2003, the CPUC issued a decision adopting preliminary rules
and guidance on renewable procurement-related issues, including penalties for noncompliance with
renewable procurement targets. In June 2004, the CPUC issued two decisions adopting additional rules
on renewable procurement: a decision adopting standard contract terms and conditions and a decision
adopting a market-price methodology. In July 2004, the CPUC issued a decision adopting criteria for the
selection of least-cost and best-fit renewable resources. In December 2004, an assigned commissioner’s
ruling and scoping memo was issued establishing a schedule for addressing various renewable
procurement-related issues that were not resolved by prior rulings and decision and directing the utilities
to file renewable procurement plans addressing their 2005 renewable procurement goals and a plan for
renewable procurement over the period 2005-2014. SCE’s 2005 renewable procurement plan was filed
on March 7, 2005.

SCE received bids for renewable resource contracts in response to a solicitation it made in August 2003
and conducted negotiations with bidders regarding potential procurement contracts. On March 8, 2005,
SCE filed an advice letter with the CPUC requesting approval of 6 renewable contracts. SCE expects a
CPUC decision on its advice letter by the second quarter of 2005. The procedures for measuring
renewable procurement are still being developed by the CPUC. Based upon the current regulatory
framework, SCE anticipates that it will comply, even without new renewable procurement contracts, with
renewable procurement mandates through at least 2005. Beyond 2005, SCE will either need to sign new
contracts and/or extend existing renewable QF contracts.

CDWR Contract Allocation and Operating Order

The CDWR power-purchase contracts entered into as a result of the California energy crisis have been
allocated on a contract-by-contract basis among SCE, PG&E and SDG&E, in accordance with a 2002
CPUC decision. SCE only assumes scheduling and dispatch responsibilities and acts only as a limited
agent for the CDWR for contract implementation. Legal title, financial reporting and responsibility for
the payment of contract-related bills remain with the CDWR. The allocation of CDWR contracts to SCE
significantly reduces SCE’s residual-net short and also increases the likelihood that SCE will have excess
power during certain periods. SCE has incorporated CDWR contracts allocated to it in its procurement
plans. Wholesale revenue from the sale of excess power, 1f any, is prorated between the CDWR and
SCE.

SCE’s maximum annual disallowance risk exposure for contract administration, including administration
of allocated CDWR contracts and least cost dispatch of CDWR contract resources, is $37 million. In
addition, gas procurement, including hedging transactions, associated with CDWR contracts is included
within the cap.

On January 28, 2005, the CPUC opened a new phase of its procurement proceeding to consider the
reallocation of certain CDWR contracts. Evidentiary hearings may be held later this year.

Mohave Generating Station and Related Proceedings

On May 17, 2002, SCE filed an application with the CPUC to address certain issues (mainly coal and
slurry-water supply issues) facing any future extended operation of Mohave, which is partly owned by
SCE. Mohave obtains all of its coal supply from the Black Mesa Mine in northeast Arizona, located on
lands of the Navajo Nation and Hopi Tribe (the Tribes). This coal is delivered from the mine to Mohave
by means of a coal slurry pipeline, which requxrcs water from wells located on lands belonging to the
Tribes in the mine vicinity.
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Due to the lack of progress in negotiations with the Tribes and other parties to resolve several coal'and -
~ water supply issues, SCE’s application stated that SCE would probably be unable to extend Mohave’s
operation beyond 2005. The uncertainty over a post-2005 coal and water supply has prevented SCE and
other Mohave co-owners from making approximately $1.1 billion in Mohave-related investments (SCEis
share is $605 million), including the installation of enhanced pollution-control equipment that must be *;
put in place in order for Mohave to continue to operate beyond 2005, pursuant to a 1999 consent decree
concerning air quality. " : - :

On December 2, 2004 the CPUC issued a final decision on the application. Principally, the decision:
(1) directs SCE to continue the ongoing negotiations and other efforts toward resolving the post-2005 - -
coal and water supply issues; (2) directs SCE to conduct a study of potential generation resources that . .
might serve as alternatives or.complements to Mohave including solar generation and coal gasification; .-
(3) provides an opportunity for SCE to recover in future rates certain Mohave-related costs that SCE has
already incurred or is expected to incur by 2006, including certain preliminary engineering costs, water. :
study costs and the costs of the study. of potential Mohave alternatives; and (4) authorizes SCE to -
establish a rate-making account to track certain worker protection-related costs that might be mcurred in
2005 in preparatron fora temporary or permanent Mohave shutdown after 2005.. .

In parallel with the CPUC proceedmg, negotlatlons have continued among the relevant parttes in an )
effort to resolve the coal and water supply issues. Since November 2004, the parties have engaged in. -
negotiations facilitated by a professional mediator, but no final resolution has been reached. . In addition,
agencies of the federal government are now,conducting both a hydro-geological study and an - .,
environmental review regarding a possible alternative groundwater source for the slurry water; these .
studies, projected to cost approximately $6 million, are being funded by SCE and the other Mohave
co-owners subject to the terms and conditions of a 2004 memorandum of understandmo among the
Mohave co-owners, the Tribes and the federal govemment ~ ;
The outcome of the coal and water,negotiations and SCE’s application are not expected to impact -: . :
Mohave’s operation through 2005, but the presence or absence of Mohave as an available resource -
beyond 2005 will impact SCE’s long-term resource plan. The outcome of this matter is not expected to
have a material impact on earnings. ‘ :

For addrtlonal matters related to Mohave, see “Other. Developments—Navajo Nation ngatron

In lrght of the issues drscussed above in 2002 SCE concluded that 1t was probable Mohave would be shut
down at the end of 2005. Because the expected undiscounted cash flows from the plant during the years
2003-2005 were less than the $88 million carrying value of the plant as of December 31, 2002, SCE .|
incurred an impairment charge of $61 million in 2002. However, in accordance with accounting ..
standards for rate-regulated enterprises, this 1ncurred cost was deferred and recorded in regulatory assets
as a long-term receivable to be collected from customer revenue. This treatment was based on SCE’s
expectation that any unrecovered book value at the end of 2005 would be recovered in future rates -
(together with a reasonable return) through a balancing account mechanism, as presented in.its May 17
2002 applrcauon and discussed in its supplemental testlmony flled in J anuary 2003 / ;
San Onofre Nuclear Generatmg Statzon S G

Syt
sDodn

San Onofre Steam Generators S ,pyz-_w .
lee other nuclear power plants W1th steam generators of the same desrgn and materlal propertres

San Onofre Units 2 and 3 have experienced degradation in their steam generators. Based on mdustry
experience and analysis of recent inspection data, SCE has determined that the existing San Onofre -
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Units 2 and 3 steam generators may not enable continued reliable operation of the units beyond their -
scheduled refueling outages in 2009-2010. SCE currently estimates that the cost of replacing the steam -
generators would be about $680 million, of which SCE’s 75% share would be about $510 million. On
February 27, 2004, SCE filed an application with the CPUC seeking a decision that it is reasonable for
SCE to replace the San Onofre Units 2 and 3 steam generators and establishing appropriate ratemaking
for recovery in rates of the reasonable cost of the replacement project. In June 2004, the CPUC
established a schedule providing for a final CPUC decision in September 2005. Evidentiary hearings
were held between January 31, 2005, and February 11, 2005.

The ORA has proposed that the CPUC disallow recovery of between 28.75% and 32.5% of the costs of
steam generator replacement project costs or, in the alternative, require SCE to bear an equivalent
percentage of the assumed replacement power costs if the steam generator replacement does not go
forward and, as a result, San Onofre Units 2 and 3 experience reduced or suspended periods of operation
in the future. ORA contends that SCE should incur one of these alternative consequences due to its
alleged imprudence in failing to pursue claims against the manufacturer of the steam generators or its
successors and/or in providing a broader release to the manufacturer than was allegedly appropriate.
Assuming currently estimated project costs, including construction financing costs, a 32.5% proposed
disallowance could be about $260 million. SCE is vigorously opposing ORA’s proposed disallowance as
unwarranted and confiscatory. TURN has also recommended that the CPUC find SCE’s failure to pursue
claims against the steam generator manufacturer and providing a broader release to the manufacturer than
was allegedly appropriate to be unreasonable. However, TURN has not recommended that the CPUC
adopt a specific disallowance amount. A CPUC decision on the proposed disallowance is expected at the
same time as the CPUC’s decision on SCE’s application for steam generator replacement.

On September 30, 2004, SCE entered into a contract for steam generator fabrication. By the time of the
CPUC’s scheduled decision in September 2005, SCE anticipates that it will have incurred approximately
$50 million in steam generator fabrication and associated project costs. SCE will seek recovery of these
costs in the event that the CPUC does not authorize SCE to go forward with steam generator
replacement. If the CPUC authorizes SCE to go forward with steam generator replacement, SCE will
recover all of these costs that are reasonably incurred as part of the steam generator replacement capital
costs. »

Under the San Onofre operating agreement among the co-owners, a co-owner may elect to reduce its
ownership share in lieu of paying its share of the cost of repairing an “operating impairment,” as such
term is defined in the San Onofre operating agreement. SCE has declared an *“‘operating impairment” in
connection with the need for steam generator replacement. SDG&E and the City of Anaheim have
elected to reduce their respective 20% and 3.16% ownership shares rather than participate in the steam
generator replacement project. The other co-owner, the City of Riverside (which owns 1.79% of the
units), has elected to participate in the project. If steam generator replacement proceeds, SDG&E’s and
the City of Anaheim’s ownership shares of San Onofre Units 2 and 3 will, upon completion of the
project, be reduced in accordance with the formula set forth in the operating agreement. Under the
formula, the City of Anaheim’s share of San Onofre Units 2 and 3 will be reduced to zero percent.
SDG&E disputed the proper application of the formula. As a result, the matter was subject to arbitration.
The arbitrator’s decision was issued on February 18, 2005. Assuming the cost of steam generator .
replacement is not significantly lower than currently estimated, under the arbitrator’s decision, SDG&E’s
ownership share would also be reduced to zero percent under the arbitrator’s decision. Under the terms
of the operating agreement, the decision of the arbitrator is subject to approval by the CPUC. The
transfer of all or any portion of SDG&E’s and the City of Anaheim’s respective ownership share as a
result of their election not to participate in steam generator replacement will require Nuclear Regulatory
Commission approval. The transfer of all or any portion of SDG&E’s ownership share to SCE will also
require CPUC approval.
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San Onofre Reactor Vessel He‘ads'

During the ongoing San Onofre Unit 3 refueling outage in the fourth quarter of 2004, SCE conducted a
planned inspection of the Unit 3 reactor vessel head and found indications of degradation. Although the
indications were far below the level at which leakage would occur, SCE repaired these indications using
readily available tooling and a Nuclear Regulatory Commlssxon -approved repair technique. While this
was San Onofre’s first experience of this kind of degradation to the reactor vessel head, the detection and
repair of similar degradation is now common in the industry. SCE plans to replace the Unit 2 and 3
reactor vessel heads during the planned refueling outages in 2009-2010. »

San Onofre Pressurizer Heater Sleeve Replacement

San Onofre Units 2 and 3 each include a pressurizer tank that contains 30 heater penetrations fabricated
from the same material used in the steam generator tubes. These penetrations, also known as sleeves, are
13-inch long sections of pipe welded into the bottom of the pressurizer. During the recent Unit 3 outage,
SCE performed inspections of two sleeves and found evidence of degradation. Degradation of the . .
pressurizer sleeves has been a concern in the nuclear industry-for some time, and SCE had been planning
to replace all of the sleeves in both units during their next scheduled refueling outages in 2005 and 2006,
respectively. With the discovery of sleeve degradation, SCE decided to move the planned replacement of
29 of the 30 Unit 3’s sleeves forward from 2006 into the 2004 outage. This extra work extended the
outage from 55 days to 92 days. This outage reduced the 2004 capacity factor of Unit 3 to 74%. The
CPUC will review the reasonableness of outage-related capital costs and replacement power costs in
future rate-making proceedings. SCE believes the costs are reasonable, recovery of the costs should be
authorized, and the acceleration of the needed repairs should not impact earnings.

Palo Verde Steam Generators

The steam generators at Palo Verde, in which SCE owns a 15.8% interest, have material properties that
are similar to the San Onofre units. During 2003, the Palo Verde Unit 2 steam generators were replaced.
In addition, the Palo Verde owners have approved the manufacture of two additional sets of steam
generators for installation in Units 1 and 3. The Palo Verde owners expect that these steam generators
will be installed in Unit 1 in 2005 and in Unit 3 in the 2007 to 2008 time frame. - SCE’s share of the costs
of manufacturing and installing all the replacement steam generators at Palo Verde is estimated to be
about $115 million; SCE expects to recover these costs through the rate-making process.

Inspections of Palo Verde Units 1,2 and 3lri¢zictor vessel heads were performed during sché_duied )
refueling and maintenance outages in 2003 and 2004 and no indications of leakage or degradation were
found.

Transmission and Distribution
2003 General Rate Case Proceedmg

On May 3, 2002 SCE filed its appllcatlon for a 2003 GRC requestmg an mcrease of $286 mllhon in
SCE’s base rate revenue requirement, which was subsequently revised to an increase of $251 million.
The application also proposed an estimated base rate revenue decrease of $78 million in 2004, and a
subsequent increase of $116 million in 2005. The forecast reduction in 2004 was largely attributable to
the expiration of the San Onofre incremental cost incentive pricing (ICIP) rate- makmg mechanism at
year-end 2003 and a forecast of increased sales. - :
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The CPUC issued a final decision on SCE’s 2003 GRC application on July 8, 2004, authorizing an
annual increase of approximately $73 million in base rates, retroactive to May 22, 2003 (the date a final
CPUC decision was originally scheduled to be issued). The decision also authorized a base rate revenue
decrease of $49 million in 2004, and a subsequent increase of $84 million in 2005. During the second
quarter of 2004, SCE recorded a pre-tax net regulatory gain of $180 million as a result of the
implementation of the 2003 GRC decision, primarily relating to the recognition of revenue from the rate
recovery of pension contributions during the time period that the pension plan was fully funded, the
resolution of the allocation of costs between transmission and distribution for 1998 through 2000, partially
offset by the deferral of revenue previously collected during the ICIP mechanism for dry cask storage. The
gain was included in the caption “provisions for regulatory adjustment clauses—net” on the income
staternent.

Because processing of the GRC took longer than initially scheduled, in May 2003, the CPUC approved
SCE’s request to establish a memorandum account to track the revenue requirement increase during the
period between May 22, 2003 and the date a final decision was adopted. In July 2004, SCE submitted an
advice filing to record the amount in this memorandum account and recorded an approxnmate $55 million
pre-tax gain in the third quarter of 2004 included in the caption “operating revenue” on the income
statement. In addition, during the third quarter of 2004 SCE recorded approximately $48 million in
pre-tax gains related to the 1997--1998 generation-related capital additions ($31 million, which is -
included in the caption “provisions for regulatory adjustment clauses—net” on the income statement) and
the related rate recovery ($17 million, which is included in the caption “operating revenue” on the
income statement). : o

The amount recorded in the GRC memorandum account is being recovered in rates together with the
2004 revenue requirement authorized by the CPUC in the GRC decision. The GRC rate increase was
combined with other rate changes from pending rate proceedings and became effective August 5, 2004.

2006 General Rate Case Proceeding

On December 21, 2004, SCE filed its application for a 2006 GRC, requesting an increase of $370 million
in SCE’s 2006 base rate revenue requirement, primarily for capital-related expenditures- to accommodate
customer and load growth and substantially higher operation and maintenance expenditures pamcularly
in SCE’s transmission and distribution business unit. SCE also requested that the CPUC authorize -
continuation of SCE’s existing post-test year rate-making mechanism, which would result in base rate
revenue increases of $159 million and $122 million in 2007 and 2008, respectively. If the CPUC
approves these requested increases and allocates them to ratepayer groups on a system average
percentage change basis, the total increase over current base rates is estimated to be 10%. A decision on
SCE’s 2006 GRC is expected in December 2005. :

2005 Cost of Capital

SCE’s annual cost of capital applications with the CPUC are required to be filed in May of each year,
with decisions rendered in such proceedings becoming effective January 1 of the following year. On
May 10, 2004, SCE filed an application requesting the CPUC to maintain for 2005 the currently
authorized 11.60% return on common equity for SCE's CPUC-jurisdictional assets. SCE also requested
a change in its authorized capital structure to offset the effects of debt equivalence of power-purchase
agreements and revised SCE’s projected costs of long-term debt and preferred stock. SCE’s overall-
request prOJected a decrease m revenue requ1rements of approxnmately 828 mllllon

On December 16, 2004, the CPUC issued a final decision granting an 11.4% return on common equity -
and debt equivalent recognition through a higher preferred equity capitalization ratio. The decision
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resulted in a $47 million decrease in revenue requirements due to lower interest costs and the reduced
return on equity and an overall rate of return of 9.07% on CPUC-jurisdictional assets.

Transmission Proceeding

In August and November 2002, the FERC issued opinions affirming a September 1999 administrative .-
law judge decision to disallow, among other things, recovery by SCE and the other California public-
utilities of costs reflected in network transmission rates associated with ancillary services and losses
incurred by the utilities in administering existing wholesale transmission contracts after implementation
of the restructured California electric industry. SCE has incurred approximately $80 million of these
unrecovered costs since 1998. After the three California utilities appealed the decisions to the United
States Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit, the FERC filed a motion with the D.C. Circuit Court
seeking voluntary remand to permit issuance of a further order. On February 12, 2004, the D.C. Circuit
Court granted the FERC’s motion and remanded the record back to the FERC for further consideration.
On May 6, 2004, the FERC issued its order reafﬁrmmg its earlier decisions. SCE and the other two
California utilities are pursuing the appeal before the D.C. Circuit Court, and filed their opening briefs -
with the D.C. Circuit Court on October 12, 2004. Oral argument is set for May 9, 2005.

Wholesale Electricity and Natural Gas Markets

In 2000,»the FERC initiated an investigation into the justness and reasonableness of rates charged by
sellers of electricity in the California Power Exchange and ISO markets. On March 26, 2003, the FERC
staff issued a report concluding that there had been pervasive gaming and market manipulation of both
the electric and natural gas markets in California and on the West Coast during 2000-2001 and
describing many of the techniques and effects of that market manipulation. SCE is participating in
several related proceedings seeking recovery of refunds from sellers of electricity and natural gas who
manipulated the electric and natural gas markets. Under the 2001 CPUC settlement agreement,
mentioned in “—Generation and Power Procurement—CPUC Litigation Settlement Agreement,” 90% of
any refunds actually realized by SCE net of costs will be refunded to customers, except for the El Paso
Natural Gas Company settlement agreement discussed below.

El Paso Natural Gas Company (El Paso) entered into a settlement agreement with a number of parties
(including SCE, PG&E, the State of California and various consumer class action representatives)
settling various claims stated in proceedings at the FERC and in San Diego County Superior Court that
El Paso had manipulated interstate capacity and engaged in other anticompetitive behavior.in the natural
gas markets in order to unlawfully raise gas prices at the California border in 2000-2001. The United
States District Court has issued an order approving the stipulated judgment and the settlement agreement
has become effective. Pursuant to a CPUC decision, SCE will refund to customers amounts received
under the terms of the EI Paso settlement (net of legal and consulting costs) through its ERRA
mechanism. In June 2004, SCE received its first settlement payment of $76 million. Approximately

$66 million of this amount was credited to purchased-power expense, and will be refunded to SCE’s
ratepayers through the ERRA over the next 12 months, and the remaining $10 million was used to offset
SCE’s incurred legal costs. Additional settlement payments totaling approximately $127 million are due
from El Paso over a 20-year period. As a result, SCE recorded a receivable and corresponding regulatory
liability of $65 million in 2004 for the discounted present value of the future payments (discounted at an
annual rate of 7.86%). Amounts El Paso refunds to the CDWR will result in reductions in the CDWR’s
revenue requirement allocated to SCE in proportion to SCE’s share of the CDWR’s power charge
revenue requirement. . R T

On July 2, 2004, the FERC approved a éetﬂém@ht agreement betweeh SCE, SDG&E and PG&E and
The Williams Cos. and Williams Power Company, providing for approximately $140 million in refunds
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and other payments to the settling purchasers and others against some of Williams® power charges in
2000-2001. In August 2004; SCE received its $37 million share of the refunds and other payments under
the Williams settlement.

On April 26, 2004, SCE, PG&E, SDG&E and several California state govemmental entities agreed to
settlement terms with West Coast Power, LLC and its owners, ‘Dynegy Inc. and NRG Energy, Inc.
(collectively, Dynegy). The settlement terms provide for refunds and other payments totaling

$285 million, with a proposed allocation to SCE of dpproximately $42 million. The Dynegy settlement’
terms were approved by the FERC on October 25, 2004 and SCE recerved its $42 million share of the
settlement proceeds in November 2004.

On July 12, 2004, SCE, PG&E, SDG&E and several govemmental entities agreed to settlement terms
with Duke Energy Corporauon and a number of its affiliates (collectively Duke). The settlement terms
agreed to with the Duke parties provide for refunds and other payments totaling in excess of

$200 million, with a proposed allocation to SCE of approximately $45 million. The Duke settlement was
approved by the FERC on December 7, 2004 and SCE received its $45 mlllron share of the settlement
proceeds in January 2005.

On January 14, 2005, SCE, PG&E, SDG&E and several governmental entities agreed to settlement terms
with Mirant Corporation and a number of its affiliates (collectively Mirant), all of whom are debtors in a
Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceeding pending in Texas. Among other things, the settlement terms provide
for expected cash and equivalent refunds totaling $320 million, of which SCE’s allocated share is
approximately $68 million. The settlement also provides for an allowed, unsecured claim totaling

$175 million in the bankruptcy of one of the Mirant parties, with SCE being allocated approximately

$33 million of the unsecured claim. The actual value of the unsecured claim will be determined as'part
of the resolution of the Mirant parties’ bankruptcies. The Mirant settlement was submitted to the FERC
for its approval on January 31, 2005 and was submitted to the Mirant bankruptcy court for its approval on
February 23, 2005. :

On November 19, 2004, the CPUC issued a resolution authorizing SCE to establish an Energy Settlement
Memorandum Account (ESMA) for the purpose of recording the foregoing settlement proceeds from
energy providers and allocating them in accordance with the terms of the CPUC litigation settlement
agreement. The resolution accordingly provides a mechanism whereby portions of the settlement
proceeds recorded in the ESMA will be allocated to récovery of SCE’s litigation costs and expenses in-
the FERC refund proceedings described above and as a shareholder incentive pursuant to the CPUC
litigation settlement agreement. Remaining amounts for each settlement are to be refunded to ratepayers
through the ERRA mechanism. In 2004, SCE récorded in the caption “Other nonoperating income” on
the income statement a total of $12 million as shareholder incentives related to refunds received in 2004.

Other Regulatory Matters
Catastrophic Event Memorandum Account’

The catastrophic event memorandum account (CEMA) is a CPUC-authorized mechanism established in
1991 that allows SCE to immediately start the tracking of all of its incremental costs associated with
declared disasters or emergencies and to subsequently receive rate recovery of its reasonably mcurred
costs upon CPUC approval. Incremental costs associated with restoring utility service; repairing,
replacing or restoring damaged utility facilities; and complying with governmental agency orders are
tracked in the CEMA. SCE currently has a CEMA for the bark beetle emergency and a CEMA
associated with the fires that occurred in SCE territory in October 2003. Costs tracked through the
CEMA mechanism may be recovered in future rates after SCE’s filing of a request with the CPUC, a

22




..Southern California Edison Company

showing of their reasonableness and approval by the CPUC with no impact on earnings. However, cash
flow will be impacted due to the timing difference between expenditures and rate recovery. *

Bark Beerle CEMA

On March 7, 2003, the Governor of California issued a proclamation declaring a state of emergency in -
Riverside, San Bernardino and San Diego counties where an infestation of bark beetles has created the
potential for catastrophic forest fires. The proclamation requested that the CPUC direct utilities with .-
transmission lines in these three counties to assist local jurisdictions in responding to this emergency by
ensuring that all. dead, dying and diseased trees and vegetation are completely cleared from their utility
rights-of-way to mitigate the risk of fire. SCE’s role in this effort is to support the State of California, ;.
federal and local agencies by hiring contractors who are capable of removing these trees and vegetation
in a vast area for the purpose of protecting against potential damage that may occur from fires and the .
collapse or falling of these tress into SCE’s electrical lines and facilities. .SCE estimates that it may.incur
over $100 million in incremental expenses over the next several years to remove over 350,000 of these
trees. This cost estimate is subject to significant change, depending on a number of evolving ‘
circumstances, including, but not limited to the spread of the bark beetle infestation, the speed at which:
trees can be removed, and tree disposal costs. As of December 31, 2004, the bark beetle CEMA had a.
balance.of $131 million. On September 23, 2004, the CPUC issued a resolution on SCE's advice filing -
granting recovery of the majority of the $18 million bark beetle related costs recorded in 2003. The:
.CPUC disallowed approximately $500,000 in recorded costs based on the assertion that such costs were
already recovered in rates under SCE’s routine line-clearing program. The CPUC also modified its
original authorization and now requires future bark beetle CEMA filings to be applications.instead of
advice letters. . SCE estimates that it will spend approximately $40 million on this project in 2005 and
approximately $45 million in both 2006 and 2007 SCE will submit.an appllcatlon to recover the 2004
costs in 2005. _ T e . . : z L

Flre-RelatedCEMA : ~,. S _. S : 7 . “ o _—

In October and November of 2003 wxldﬁres damaged SCE s electncal mfrastructure prlmarlly in the E
San Bernardino Mountains of southern California where an estimated 2,085 power poles, 2,059 services,
371 transformers, 557,033 of overhead conductors and 25,822 feet of underground cable were replaced
or repaired. SCE notified the CPUC that it initiated a CEMA on October 21, 2003 to track the .,
incremental costs to repair and restore its infrastructure. As of December 31, 2004, the fire- related )
CEMA had a balance of $12 million. - The total costs associated with the fire-related CEMA, as of
December 31, 2005, are expected to be $16 million. SCE filed an application with the CPUC on
December 2, 2004 to seek recovery of its fire-related costs over a one-year period commencing -,
January 1, 2006. ‘In addition, SCE is requesting that the CPUC find reasonable $28 millionof - ..
incremental capital expenditures, which would be recovered in rates over the useful life of the particular
asset. - o

Holding Company Proceeding

In April 2001, the CPUC issued an order instituting investigation that reopened the past CPUC decisions
authorizing utilities to form holdmg companies and initiated an investigation into, among other things: -
(1) whether the holding companies violated CPUC requirements to give first priority to the capital needs
of their respective utility subsidiaries; (2) any additional suspected violations of laws or CPUC rules and
decisions; and (3) whether additional rules, conditions, or other changes to the holdmg company
decisions are necessary. : : S
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On January 9, 2002, the CPUC issued an interim decision interpreting the CPUC requirement that the
holding companies give fitst priority to the capital needs of their respective utility subsidiaries. The =
decision stated that, at least under certain circumstances, holding companies are required to infuse all
types of capital into their respective utility subsidiaries when necessary to fulfill the utility’s obligation to
serve its customers. The decision did not determine whether any of the utility holding companies had
violated this requirement, réserving such a determination for a later phase of the proceedings. On-
February 11, 2002, SCE and Edison International filed an application before the CPUC for rehearmg of
the decision. On July 17, 2002, the CPUC affirmed its earlier decision on the first priority requirement
and also denied Edison International’s request for a rehearing of the CPUC’s determination that it had’
jurisdiction over Edison International in this proceeding. On August 21; 2002, Edison International and
SCE jointly filed a petition in California state court requesting a review of the CPUC’s decisions with .
regard to first priority requirements, and Edison International filed a petition for a review of the CPUC
decision asserting jurisdiction over holding companies. PG&E and SDG&E and their respective holding
' compames filed similar challenges, and-all cases have been transferred to the First Dlstrrct Court of
Appeals in San Francrsco o : - :

On May 21, 2004, the Court of Appeal-issued its decision irnt the two consolidated cases, and denied the
utilities’ and their holding companies’ challenges to both CPUC decisions. The Court of Appeal held
that the CPUC has limited jurisdiction to enforce in a CPUC proceeding the conditions agreed to by .- -
holding companies incident to their being granted authority to assume ownership of a CPUC-regulated
utility. The Court of Appeal held that the CPUC’s decision interpreting the first priority requirement was
not reviewable because the CPUC had not made any ruling that any holding company had violated the
first priority requirement. However, the Court of Appeal suggested that if the CPUC or any other
authorrty were to rule that a utility or holding company violated the first priority requirement, the utility -
or holding company would be permitted to challenge both the finding of violation and the underlying
interpretation of the first priority requirement itself. On June 30, 2004, Edison International and the -
other utility holding companies filed with the California Supreme Court a petition for review of the Court
of Appeal decision as to jurisdiction over holding companies, but they and the utilities did not file a
challenge to the decision as to the first priority issue. On September 1, 2004, the California Supreme
Court denled the petmon for review:’ The Court of Appeal’s decrsron as to JUI‘ISdlCthﬂ is now ﬁnal

The orlgmal order instituting the mvestlgatlon into whether the utllmes and thelr holdmg companies have
complied with CPUC decisions and applicable statutes remains in effect. However, on February 11,
2005, an administrative law judge ruling was issued which provides that any party to the proceedings that
believes the proceedings should remain open has 30 days to file comments listing matters that remain to -
be decided and explaining why they must be resolved at the CPUC rather than in another forum. The
CPUC indicated that if comments are not received in the 30 day time period, a decision closing the
proceeding will be prepared for CPUC consideration and no further comment will be allowed. At this
time, SCE is not aware whether or not comments have been received or whether the CPUC has taken
further action.

Investigation Regarding Performance Incentives Rewards

SCE is eligible under its CPUC-approved performance-based ratemaking (PBR) mechanism to earn
rewards or penalties based on its performance in comparison to CPUC-approved standards of customer -
sausfactron employee injury and illness reportmg, and syStem rellabrllty : : "

SCE has been conducting investigations into its performance under these PBR mechanisms and has -
reported to the CPUC certain findings of misconduct and misreporting as further discussed below. Asa”
result of the reported events, the CPUC could institute its own proceedings to determine whether and in
what amounts to order refunds or disallowances of past and potential PBR rewards for customer
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satisfaction, injury and illness reporting, and system reliability portions of PBR. The CPUC also may
consider whether to impose additional penalties on SCE.. SCE cannot predict with certainty the outcome
of these matters or estimate the potentlal amount of refunds dlsallowances and penalties that may be .
required.

TSI T T 1S P TR
; ‘ ST R T o A LA
Customer Satisfaction

crel Tt D PE RS SRS PR ¥ A R SR N
SCE recelved two letters in 2003 from one or more anonymous employees allegmg that personnel in the
.service planmng group of SCE’s transmission and distribution business unit altered or omitted data in .
attempts to influence the outcome of customer satisfaction surveys conducted by an 1ndependent survey
organization. The results of these surveys are used, along with other factors, to determine the amounts of
any incentive rewards or penalties to SCE under the PBR provisions for customer satisfaction. SCE
recorded aggregate customer satisfaction rewards of $28 million for the. years 1998 1999 and 2000
Potential customer satisfaction rewards aggregatmg $10 mrllron for the years 2001 and 2002 are pendmg
before the CPUC and have not been recogmzed in'income by SCE SCE also antlclpated that it could be
eligible for customer satisfaction rewards of about $10 million for 2003 T TRy

SCE has been conducting an internal investigation and keeping the CPUC informed of its progress. On-.
June 25, 2004, SCE submitted to the CPUC a PBR customer satlsfactlon mvestlgatlon report, Wthh
concluded that employees in the desngn orgamzatron of the transmission and dlstrrbutlon busmess umt
deliberately altered customer contact information in order to affect the results of customer satrsfactlon
surveys. At least.36 desxgn organization personnel engaged in dellberate mlsconduct mcludmg alteratlon-
of customer mformatlon before the data were transmitted to the 1ndependent survey company,, Because ,
of the apparent scope of the misconduct, SCE proposed to refund to ratepayers $7 million of. the PBR
rewards previously received and forego an additional $5 million of the PBR rewards pendmg that are '
both attributable to the design organization’s portion of the customer satisfaction rewards for the entire -
PBR period (1997-2003). In addition, during its investigation, SCE determined that it could not confirm .
the integrity of the method used for obtaining customer satisfaction survey data for meter reading. Thus,
SCE also proposed to refund all of the: approxtmately $2 mlllxon of customer satlsfactlon rewards ; . .
associated with meter readmg Asa result of these ﬁndmgs SCE accrued a $9 mllllon charge in the 3
caption “Other nonoperating deductlons on the income statement in 2004 for the potentlal refunds of o
rewards thathavebeenrecerved T T T T PSSR LU
: e : i TR
SCE has taken remedlal actlon as to the. customer satlsfactlon survey rmsconduct by severmg the B
employment of several superwsory personnel updatmg system process and related documentatlon for
survey reporting, and implementing additional supervisory controls over data collection and processing.

Performance incentive rewards for customer satisfaction expired in 2003 pursuant to the 2003 GRC.- | -

The CPUC has not yet opened a formal investigation into this matter. However, it has submitted several
data requests to SCE and has requested an opportunity to interview a number of SCE employees-in the |
design organization. SCE has responded to these requests and the CPUC has conducted interviews of
approximately 20 employees who were disciplined for misconduct. IR

Employee Injury and Iliness Reportmg

Y

In llght of the problems uncovered w1th the customer satlsfactlon surveys SCE is conductmg an '
mvestlgatron mto the accuracy of SCE’s employee injury and 1llness reportmg . The yearly results of
employee injury and 1llness reportmg to the CPUC are used to determme the amount of the mcentwe
reward or penalty to, SCE under the PBR mechamsm Smce the mceptxon of PBR in 1997, ,SCE has
received $20 million in employee safety incentives for 1997 through 2000 and, based on SCE’s records
may be entitled to an additional $15 million for 2001 through 2003.
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On October 21, 2004, SCE reported to the CPUC and other appropriate regulatory agencies certain
findings concerning SCE’s performancé under the PBR: incentive mechanism for injury and illness
reporting. Under the PBR mechanism, rewards and/or penalties for the years 1997 through 2003 were
based upon a total incident rate, which included two equally weighted measures: Occupational Safety and
Health Administration (OSHA) recordable incidents and first aid incidents. The major issue disclosed in
the investigative findings to the CPUC was that SCE failed to implement an effective recordkeeping
system sufficient to capture all required data for first aid incidents. SCE’s investigation also found
reporting inaccuracies for OSHA recordable incidents, but the impact of these inaccuracies did not have a
material effect on the PBR mechamsm : :

As a result of these findings, SCE proposed to the CPUC that it not collect any reward under the -
mechanism for any year before 2005, and it return to ratepayers the $20 million it has already received.
Therefore, SCE accrued a $20 million chatge in the caption “Other nonoperating deductions” on the
income statement in 2004 for the potentlal refund of these rewards SCE has also proposed to wuhdraw
the pending rewards for the 2001-2003 time frames.

SCE is taking other remedial action to address the issues identified, including revising its organizational
structure and overall program for environmental, health and safety compliance. Additional actions,
including disciplinary action against specific employees identified as having committed wrongdoing, may
result once the investigation is completed. SCE submitted a report on the results of its investigation to
the CPUC on December 3, 2004. As with the customer satisfaction matter, the CPUC has not yet opened
a formal investigation into this matter. However, SCE anticipates that the CPUC will be submitting data
requests and seekmg additional mformatron in the near future.

System Relzabtlxty '

In light of the problems uncovered with the PBR mechanisms discussed above, SCE is conducting an
investigation into the third PBR metric, system reliability. Since the inception of PBR payments in 1997,
SCE has received $8 million in'rewards and has applied for an additional $5 million reward based on
frequency of outage data for 2001. For 2002, SCE’s data indicates that it earned no reward and incurred
no penalty. Based on the application of the PBR mechanism, as adopted, SCE’s data would result in
penalties of $5 million and $1 million, for 2003 and 2004, respectively. These penalties have not yet
been assessed. As a result of SCE’s data and calculations, SCE has accrued a $6 million charge in the
caption “Other nonoperatmg deductrons on the income statement m 2004 '

On February 28, 2005, SCE provided its final investigatory report to the CPUC concluding that the
reliability reporting system is working as intended.

OTHER DEVELOPMENTS
Electric and Magnetic Fields

Electric and magnetic fields naturally result from the generation, transmission, distribution and use of
electricity. Since the 1970s, concerns have been raised about the potential health effects of electric and
magnetic fields. After 30 years of research, a health hazard has not been established to exist. Potentially
impdrtant public health questions remain about whether there is a link between electric and magnetic
fields exposures in homes or work and some diseases, and because of these questions, some health
authormes have identified electrlc and magnetrc fi elds exposures asa possrble human carcmogen
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In October 2002, the California Department of Health Services released to the CPUC and the public its
report evaluating the possible risks from electric and magnetic fields. The conclusions in the report of. .
the California Department of Health Services contrast with other recent reports by authoritative health
agencies in that the California Department of Health Services has assigned a substantially higher
probability to the possibility that there is a causal connection between electric and magnetic fields
exposures and a number of diseases and conditions, mcludmg childhood leukemia, adult leukemra
amyotrophic lateral sclerosis, and miscarriages. .

On August 19, 2004, the CPUC issued an order instituting a rulemaking to update the CPUC’s policies.
and procedures related to electromagnetic fields emanating from regulated utility facilities. SCE and
other interested parties submitted comments to, clarify the issues to be addressed in the proceeding in,
December 2004 and January 2005. It is anticipated that the CPUC will schedule a prehearing conference
in the near future. SCE cannot predict with certainty the outcome of this proceeding.

Environmental Matters . . o Leoall

SCE is subject to numerous environmental laws and regulations Which require' it to incur substa‘nti'al‘ -
costs to operate existing facilities, construct and operate new facilities, and mitigate or remove the effect
of past operations on the environment. : '

Environmental Remediation

SCE records its environmental remediation liabilities when site assessments and/or remedial actions are
probable and a range of reasonably likely cleanup costs can be estimated. - SCE reviews its sites and ...
measures the liability quarterly, by assessing a range of reasonably likely costs for each identified site .-
using currently available information, including existing technology, presently enacted laws and -
regulations, experience gained at similar sites, and the probable level of involvement and financial
condition of other potentially responsible parties. -These estimates include costs for site investigations,
remediation, operations and maintenance, 'monitoring and site closure. Unless there is a probable
amount, SCE records the lower end of this reasonably lrkely range of costs (classrﬁed as other long-term
liabilities) at undiscounted amounts. -

SCE’s recorded estimated minimum liability to remediate its 24 identified sites is $82 million. In third
quarter 2003, SCE sold certain oil storage and pipeline facilities.. This:sale caused a reduction in SCE’s
recorded estimated minimum environmental liability. . The ultimate costs to clean up SCE’s identified
sites may vary from its recorded liability .due to numerous uncertainties inherent in the estimation .
process, 'such as: the extent and nature of contamination; the scarcity of reliable data for identified sites;
the varying costs of alternative cleanup methods, developments resulting: from investigatory studies; the
possibility of identifying additional sites; and the time periods over which site remediation is expected to
occur. SCE believes that, due to these uncertamtres, it is reasonably possrble that cleanup costs could -
exceed its recorded liability by up to $123.million. ;The upper limit of this range of costs was estlmated
using assumptions least favorable to SCE among a range of reasonably possrble outcomes. In addrtron to
its identified sites (sites in which the upper end of the range of costs is at least $1 million), SCE also had
30 immaterial sites whose total l1abrllty ranges from $4 million (the recorded minimum liability) to -- -
$9 million. . . o

. _ o > ;)_ .
The CPUC allows SCE to recover envrronmental remedratlon costs at certam srtes representmg
$27 million of its recorded lrablhty, through an incentive mechanism (SCE may request to mclude
additional sites).- Under thrs mechamsm, SCE wrll recover 90% of cleanup costs through customer rates,

and other third partles 'SCE has successfully settled insurance claims with all responsible carriers. SCE
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expects to recover costs incurred at its remaining sites through customer rates. SCE has recorded a
regulatory asset of $55 million for its estimated mmlmum environmental-cleanup costs expected to be
recovered through customer rates. -

SCE’s identified sites include several sites for which there is a lack of currently available information,
including the nature and magnitude of contamination and the extent, if any, that SCE may be held
responsible for contributing to any costs incurred for remediating these sites. Thus, no reasonable
estimate of cleanup costs can be made for these sites.

SCE expects to clean up its identified sites over a period of up to 30 years. Remediation costs in each of
the next several years are expected to range from $13 million to $25 million. Recorded costs for 2004
were $14 million.

Based on currently available information, SCE believes it is unlikely that it will incur amounts in excess
of the upper limit of the estimated range for its identified sites and, based upon the CPUC’s regulatory
treatment of environmental remediation costs, SCE believes that costs ultimately recorded will not
materially affect its results of operations or financial position. There can be no assurance, however, that
future developments, including additional information about existing sites or the identification of new
sites, will not require material revisions to such estimates.

Clean Air Act

The Clean Air Act requires power producers to have emissions allowances to emit sulfur dioxide. Power
companies receive emissions allowances from the federal government and may bank or sell excess
allowances. SCE has had and expects to continue to have excess allowances under Phase II of the Clean
Air Act. :

In 1999, SCE and other co-owners of Mohave entered into a consent decree to resolve a federal court
lawsuit that had been filed alleging violations of various emissions limits. This decree, approved by a
federal court in December 1999, required certain modifications to the plant in order for it to continue to
operate beyond 2005 to comply with the Clean Air Act. :

SCE’s share of the costs of complying with the consent decree and taking other actions to continue
operation of Mohave beyond 2005 is estimated to be approximately $605 million. SCE has received from
the State of Nevada a permit to install the necessary pollution-control equipment. If the station is shut
down at that time, the shutdown is not expected to have a'material adverse impact on SCE’s financial
position or results of operations, assuming the remaining book value of the station (approximately

$8 million as of December 31, 2004) and the related regulatory asset (approximately $78 million as of
December 31, 2004), and plant closure and decommissioning-related costs are recoverable in future rates.
SCE cannot predict with certainty what effect any future actions by the CPUC may have on this matter.
See “Regulatory Matters—Generation and Power Procurement—Mohave Generating Statlon and Related
Proceedmgs for further discussion of the Mohave issues.

SCE’s facilities in the United Stateés are subject to the Clean Air Act’s new source review (NSR)
requirements related to modifications of air emissions sources at electric generating stations. Over the
past five years, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA) has initiated
investigations of numerous electric utilities seeking to determine whether these utilities engaged in
activities in violation of the NSR requirements, brought enforcement actions against some of those
utilities, and reached settlements with some of those utilities. The U.S. EPA has made information
requests concerning SCE’s Four Corners station. Other than these requests for information, no
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enforcement-related proceedmgs have been initiated against any SCE facilities by.the U.S. EPA relatmg
toNSRcompllance - e . T T o

Over thxs same perrod the US. EPA has proposed several regulatory changes to NSR requrrements that
would clarify and provide greater guidance to the uttltty industry as to.what activities can be undertaken
without triggering the NSR requirements. Several of these regulatory changes have been challenged in
the courts., As a result of these developments the U. S. EPA s enforcement policy on alleged NSR
violations is currently uncertain. : ~

These developments will continue to be monitored by SCE to assess what implications, if any, they will
have on the operation of domestic power plants owned or operated by SCE, or the impact on SCE’s
results of operations or f1nanc1al posmon
SCE s prOJected envrronmental capltal expendttures over the next three years are: 2005 $407 mrlllon
2006 — $444 mllhon and 2007 — $530 million. The projected environmental capltal expenditures are
mainly for undergroundmg certain transmission and distribution lmes :

EEE L RN B R R )

Federal Income Taxes ‘_ | ;. ST

Ed1son Intematlonal has reached a tentatlve settlement w1th the Internal Revenue Servrce (IRS) on tax
issues and pendmg afﬁrmatlve clalms relatmg to its 1991 to 1993 tax years currently under appeal.. Thxs
settlement, which-should be finalized in 2005, is expected to result in a net eamlngs benefit for SCE of
approximately $70 million. : : :

Edison International received Revenue Agent Reports from the IRS in August 2002 and in January 2005
asserting deficiencies, including deficiencies asserted against SCE, in federal corporate income taxes -
with respect to audits of its 1994 to 1996 and 1997 to 1999 tax years; respectrvely Many of the asserted
tax deﬁ01enc1es are timing differences and therefore, amounts ultlmately,patd_(ex,clusrve of interest and
The IRS Revenue Agent Report for the 1997 to 1999 audlt also asserted deﬁcrencres w1th respect to a.
transaction entered into by an SCE subsidiary which may be considered substantlally similar to a ltsted
transaction described by the IRS as a contingent liability company. While Edison International intends to
defend its tax return position with respect to this transaction, the tax benefits relatmg to the capital loss
deductions will not be claimed for fmancxal accountmg and repomng purposes until and unless these tax
losses are sustained. s B o

In April 2004, Edison International filed California Franchise Tax amended returns for tax years 1997 -
through 2002 to abate the possible imposition of new California penalty provisions on transactions that
may be considered as listed or substantially similar to listed transactions described in an IRS notice that
was published in 2001. These transactions include the SCE subsidiary contingent liability company
transaction described above. Edison International filed these amended returns under protest retaining its
appeal rights.
Navajo Nation Litigation .. - . - . .
L T e At P P T P RIVIE SR S
In June 1999, the Navajo Nation filed a complaint in the United States District Court for the District of
Columbia (D.C. District Court) against Peabody Holding Company (Peabody) and certain of its affiliates,
Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District, and SCE arising out of the coal supply
agreement for Mohave. The complaint asserts claims for, among other things, violations of the federal
Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations statute, interference with fiduciary duties and
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contractual relations, fraudulent misrepresentation by nondisclosure, and various contract-related claims.
The complaint claims that the defendants’ actions prevented the Navajo Nation from obtaining the full
value in royalty rates for the coal supplied to Mohave. The complaint seeks damages of not less than
$600 million, trebling of that amount, and punitive damages of nct less than $1 billion, as well as a
declaration that Peabody’s lease and contract rights to mine coal on Navajo Nation lands should be
terminated. SCE joined Peabody’s motion to strike the Navajo Nation’s complaint. In addition, SCE and
other defendants filed motions to dismiss. The D.C. District Court denied these motions for dismissal,
except for Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District’s motion for its separate
dismissal from the lawsuit.

Certain issues related to this case were addressed by the United States Supreme Court in a separate legal
proceeding filed by the Navajo Nation in the United States Court of Federal Claims against the United -
States Department of Interior. In that action, the Navajo Nation claimed that the Government breached its
fiduciary duty concerning negotiations relating to the coal lease involved in the Navajo Nation’s lawsuit
against SCE and Peabody. On March 4, 2003, the Supreme Court concluded, by majority decision, that
there was no breach of a fiduciary duty and that the Navajo Nation did not have a right to relief against the
Government. Based on the Supreme Court’s analysis, on April 28, 2003, SCE and Peabody filed motions to
dismiss or, in the alternative, for summary judgment in the D.C. District Court action. On April 13, 2004, -
the D.C. District Court denied SCE’s and Peabody’s April 2003 motions to dismiss or, in the alternative, for
summary judgment. The D.C. District Court subsequently issued a scheduling order that imposed a
December 31, 2004 discovery cut-off. Pursuant to a joint request of the parties, the D.C. District Court
granted a 120-day stay of the action to allow the parties to attempt to resolve, through facilitated
negotiations, all issues associated with Mohave. Negotiations are ongoing and the stay has been continued
until further order of the court.

The United States Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit, acting on a suggestion on remand filed by the
Navajo Nation, held in an October 24, 2003 decision that the Supreme Court’s March 4, 2003 decision
was focused on three specific statutes or regulations and therefore did not address the question of
whether a network of other statutes, treaties and regulations imposed judicially enforceable fiduciary
duties on the United States during the time period in question. The Government and the Navajo Nation
both filed petitions for rehearing of the October 24, 2003 D.C. Circuit Court decision. Both petitions
were denied on March 9, 2004. On March 16, 2004, the D.C. Circuit Court issued an order remanding
the case against the Government to the Court of Federal Claims, which conducted a status conference on
May 18, 2004. As a result of the status conference discussion, the Navajo Nation and the Government
are in the process of briefing the remaining issues following remand. Peabody’s motion to intervene as a
party in the remanded Court of Federal Claims case was denied.

SCE cannot predict with certainty the outcome of the 1999 Navajo Nation’s complaint against SCE, the
impact of the Supreme Court’s decision in the Navajo Nation’s suit against the Government on this
complaint, or the impact of the complaint on the operation of Mohave beyond 2005.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND HISTORICAL CASH FLOW ANALYSIS
The following subsections of “Results of Operations and Historical Cash Flow Analysis” provide a

discussion on the changes in various line items presented on the Consolidated Statements of Income as
well as a discussion of the changes on the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.
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Results of Operations
Income from Continuing Operations

SCE income from continuing operations in 2004 were $921 million, compared to income of $882 million
in 2003 and income of $1.2 billion in 2002. SCE’s 2002 income included a $480 million benefit related
to the implementation of the CPUC utility-related generation (URG) decision. Excluding a $480 million
benefit in 2002 related to a regulatory decision on SCE’s utility-retained generation, SCE’s income from
continuing operations was $767 million in 2002. The $39 million increase between 2004 and 2003 was
mainly due to the resolution of regulatory proceedings and prior years’ tax issues which increased
income by $86 million over 2003. The 2004 proceedings included the 2003 GRC that was resolved in
July 2004 and the 2003 ERRA proceeding addressing power procurement reasonableness that was .
resolved in the fourth quarter of 2004. Also, in the fourth quarter of 2004, SCE favorably resolved prior
years’ tax issues. Excluding these items, income decreased $47 million, primarily from the expiration at
year-end 2003 of the ICIP mechanism at San Onofre partially offset by the increase in revenue authorized
by the 2003 GRC decision. Post-test-year revenue increases for 2004 and 2005, to compensate for -
customer growth and increased capital expenditures were authorized in the 2003 GRC decision. The
$115 million increase between 2003 and 2002, excluding the $480 million benefit, results from the net
effect of the resolution of several regulatory proceedings in 2003 and 2002. The 2003 proceedings
include the CPUC decision on the allocation of certain costs between state and federal regulatory
jurisdictions, tax impacts from the FERC rate case, and the final disposition of the PROACT which had.
been created to record the recovery of SCE’s procurement-related obligations. The positive effects of .-
these factors on 2003 income were partially offset by the implementation in 2002 of the CPUC’s URG
decision and PBR rewards received in 2002. SCE’s results also included higher deprematlon'expense
and lower net interest income, partially offset by higher FERC and PBR revenue. :

Operating Revenue
SCE’s retail sales represented over approximately 8§5% of operating revenue. Due to warmer weather
during the summer months, operating revenue during the third quarter of each year is generally

significantly higher than other quarters.

The bfollowing table sets forth the major chénges in operating revenue:

In millions Year ended December 31, 2004 vs. 2003 ’ 2003 vs. 2002

Operating revenue v AU , . .
Rate changes (including surcharges) $ (707) , $ (677)
Direct access credit ‘ —_ S 471
Sales volume changes T o as9 . (60)
Sales for resale ST ' 164 394
" SCE’s variable interest entities L o o285 - —
Other (mcludm" mtercompany transactxons) N i 20

Total s o $ (406) S 148

3 . R E . N
Total operating revenue decreased by $406 million in 2004 (as shown in the table above). The reduction
in operating revenue due to rate changes resulted from the implementation of a CPUC-approved customer
rate reduction plan effective August 1, 2003 and the recognition of revenue in 2003 froma
CPUC-authorized surcharge collected in 2002 used to recover costs incurred in 2003. There wasno.
surcharge revenue recognized in 2004. The operating revenue reduction related to rate changes also
reflects an increase in distribution rates and a further decrease in generation rates, effective in
August 2004, resulting from the implementation of the 2003 GRC, and an allocation adjustment for the
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CDWR energy purchases recorded in 2003. The decrease in electric revenue resulting from sales volume
changes was mainly due to the CDWR providing a greater amount of energy to SCE’s customers in 2004,
as compared to 2003 (see discussion below), partially offset by an increase in kWh sold. Sales for resale
increased due to a greater amount of excess energy in 2004, as compared to 2003. As a result of the
CDWR contracts allocated to SCE, excess energy from SCE sources may exist at certain times, which
then is resold in the energy markets. SCE’s variable interest entities revenue represents the recognition
of revenue resulting from the consolidation of SCE’s variable interest entities on March 31, 2004 (see
“Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” and “New Accounting Principles”).

Total operating revenue increased by $148 million in 2003 (as shown in the table above). The reduction
in operating revenue due to rate changes resulted from the implementation of a CPUC-approved customer
rate-reduction plan effective August 1, 2003, partially offset by the recognition of revenue from a
CPUC-authorized temporary surcharge collected between June and December 2002, used to recover costs
incurred in 2003. The increase in operating revenue due to direct access credits resulted from a net
1¢-per-kWh decrease in credits given to direct access customers. The reduction in electric revenue
resulting from changes in sales volume was mainly due to an increase in the amount allocated to the
CDWR for bond and direct access exit fees (see discussion below), partially offset by an increase in kWh
sold due to warmer weather in 2003 as compared to 2002. Sales for resale revenue increased due to a
greater amount of excess energy at SCE in 2003 as compared to 2002.

Amounts SCE bills and collects from its customers for electric power purchased and sold by the CDWR
to SCE’s customers (beginning January 17, 2001), CDWR bond-related costs (beginning November 15,
2002) and direct access exit fees (beginning January 1, 2003) are remitted to the CDWR and are not
recognized as revenue by SCE. These amounts were $2.5 billion, $1.7 billion, and $1.4 billion for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.

Operating Expenses
Fuel Expense

Fuel expense increased $575 million in 2004 primarily due to the consolidation of SCE’s variable interest
entities resulting in the recognition of fuel expense of $578 million (see “New Accounting Principles”).

Purchased-Power Expense

Purchased-power expense decreased $454 million in 2004 and increased $770 million in 2003. The 2004
decrease was mainly due to the consolidation of SCE’s variable interest entities which resulted in a

$669 million reduction in purchased-power expense (see “New Accounting Principles™) and the receipt of
approximately $190 million in settlement agreement payments between SCE and sellers of electricity and
natural gas. See “Regulatory Matters—Transmission and Distribution—Wholesale Electricity and Natural
Gas Markets” for a discussion of the settlements reached. The decrease was partially offset by higher
expenses of approximately $150 million related to power purchased by SCE from QFs, as discussed below,
higher expenses of approximately $100 million resulting from an increase in the number of gas bilateral
contracts in 2004, as compared to 2003, and higher expenses of approximately $130 million related to ISO
purchases. The 2003 increase was mainly due to higher expenses resulting from SCE’s resumption of power
procurement on January 1, 2003. The higher expenses resulted from an increase in the number of bilateral
contracts entered into during 2003 and an increase in energy purchased in 2003. The increase also includes
higher expenses related to power purchased by SCE from QFs, mainly due to higher spot natural gas prlces
in 2003 as compared to 2002.
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Federal law and CPUC orders required SCE to enter into contracts to purchase power from QFs at . ,
CPUC-mandated prices. Energy payments to gas-fired QFs are generally tied to spot natural gas prices. . ;.
Effective May 2002, energy payments for most renewable QFs were converted to a fixed price of ,
5.37¢-per-kWh. Average spot natural gas prices were higher during 2004 as compared to 2003, and were
higher durmg 2003 as compared to 2002. :

Prowszons for Regulatory Adjustment C lauses — Net

Provisions for regulatory adjustment clauses — net decreased $1.3 billion in 2004 and $364 million in 2003.:
The 2004 decrease was mainly due to the collection of the PROACT balance in 2003 and the
implementation of the CPUC-authorized rate-reduction plan in the summer of 2003, resulting in decreases
of approximately $700 million. The decrease also reflects a net effect of approximately $335 million of
regulatory adjustments, related to the implementation of SCE’s 2003 GRC decision (see “Regulatory ..
Matters—Transmission and Distribution—2003 General Rate Case Proceeding™) and ERRA-related
adjustments resulting from a CPUC decision received in January 2005 (see “Regulatory Matters—
Generation and Power Procurement—Energy Resource Recovery Account Proceedings™), and the deferral
of costs for future recovery in the amount of approximately $100 million associated with the bark beetle
infestation (see “Regulatory Matters—Other Regulatory Matters—Catastrophic Event Memorandum
Account”). The decrease was partially offset by approximately $190 million in settlement agreement
payments received and refunded to ratepayers and shareholder incentives (see “Regulatory Matters—
Transmission and Distribution—Wholesale Electricity and Natural Gas Markets™), the favorable resolution
of certain regulatory cases recorded in the third quarter of 2003 (as discussed below), and an allocation
adjustment of approximately $110 million for CDWR energy purchases recorded in 2003. The 2003
decrease was mainly due to lower overcollections used to recover SCE’s PROACT balance, the
implementation of the CPUC-authorized customer rate-reduction plan, a net increase in energy procurement
costs and favorable resolution of several regulatory proceedings. The 2003 proceedings include the CPUC
decision on the allocation of certain costs between state and federal regulatory jurisdictions and the final
disposition of the PROACT. The 2003 decrease was partially offset by the implementation of the CPUC
decision related to URG and the PBR mechanism, as well as the impact of other regulatory actions recorded
in 2002. :

As a result of the URG decision received in 2002, SCE reestablished regulatory assets previously written off
(approximately $1.1 billion) related to its nuclear plant investments, purchased-power settlements and
flow-through taxes, and decreased the PROACT balance by $256 million, all retroactive to January 1, 2002.
The impact of the URG decision is reflected in the 2002 financial statements as a credit (decrease) to the
provisions for regulatory adjustment clauses of $644 million, partially offset by an increase in deferred
income tax expense of $164 million, for a net credit to earnings of $480 million. As a result of the CPUC -
decision that modified the PBR mechanism, SCE recorded a $136 million credit (decrease) to the prov1510ns
for regulatory adjustment clauses in the second quarter of 2002, to reflect undercollections in
CPUC-authorized revenue resulting from changes in retail rates. :

R

Other 0peranon‘ and Maintenance Expense Ry

Other operating and maintenance expense increased $385 million in 2004 and $137 million in 2003. The
2004 increase was mainly due to approximately $130 million of costs incurred in 2004 related to the
removal of trees and vegetation associated with the bark beetle infestation (see “Regulatory Matters—Other
Regulatory Matters—Catastrophic Event Memorandum Account”), higher operation and maintenance costs
of approximately $60 million related to the San Onofre refueling outages in 2004, operating and -
maintenance expense of $66 million related to the consolidation of SCE’s variable interest entities, higher
operation and maintenance costs related to a scheduled major overhaul at SCE’s Four Corners coal facility
and additional costs for 2003 incentive compensation due to upward revisions in the computation in 2004,
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These increases were partially offset by a decrease in postretirement benefits other than pensions, including
the effects of adopting the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 in the
third quarter of 2004 (see “New Accounting Principles” for further discussion) and lower worker’s
compensation claims in 2004. The 2003 increase was mainly due to higher health-care costs, higher
spending on certain CPUC-authorized programs, higher transmission access charges and costs incurred in
2003 related to the removal of dead, dying and diseased trees and vegetatlon associated with the bark beetle
infestation.

Depreciation, Decommissioning and Amortization Expense

Depreciation, decommissioning and amortization expense decreased $22 million in 2004 and increased
$102 million in 2003. The 2004 decrease was mainly due to a change in the Palo Verde and San Onofre
rate-making mechanisms in 2003 and 2004, partially offset by an increase in SCE’s depreciation
associated with additions to transmission and distribution assets, the consolidation of SCE’s variable -
interest entities, and an increase in nuclear decommissioning expense. The 2003 increase was mainly
due to an increase in depreciation expense associated with SCE’s additions to transmission and
distribution assets, an increase in ruclear decommissioning expense, partially offset by a change in the -
amortization period for SCE’s San Onofre recorded in the third quarter of 20()2 based on the
implementation of a CPUC decision.

Other Income and Deductions -
Interest and Dividend Income

Interest and dividend income decreased $80 million in 2004 and $162 million in 2003, mainly due to the
absence of interest income on the PROACT balance. At July 31, 2003, the PROACT balance was
overcollected and was transferred to the ERRA on August 1, 2003. The 2003 decrease was also due to -
lower interest income from lower average cash balanceés, compared to the same period in 2002.

Interest Expense — Net of Amounts Capitalized

Interest expense — net of amounts capitalized decreased $48 million in 2004 and $127 million in 2003.
The 2004 decrease was mainly due to lower interest expense on long-term debt resulting from the
redemption of high interest rate debt by issuing new debt with lower interest rates. The 2003 decrease
was due to higher interest expense in 2002 resulting from the 2001 and early 2002 suspension of
payments for purchased power (these suspended payments were paid in March 2002), as well as lower
interest expense on SCE’s long-term debt resulting from the early retirement of debt. In 2003 dividend. -
payments on certain preferred securities were reclassified to interest expense. Effective July 1, 2003,
dividend payments on preferred securities subject to mandatory redemption are included as interest
expense based on the adoption of a new accounting standard. The new standard did not allow for prior
period restatements, therefore dividends on preferred securities subject to mandatory redemption for the
first six months of 2003 and 2002 are not included in interest expense — net of amounts capitalized in the
consolidated statements of income.

Other Nonoperating Deductions

Other nonoperating deductions increased $46 million in 2004 and $41 million 2003. The 2004 increase
was mainly due to a $29 million pre-tax charge for the anticipated refund of the previously received
performance incentive rewards as well as the accrual of $6 million in system reliability penalties (see
“Regulatory Matters—Other Regulatory Matters—Investigation Regarding Performance Incentive
Rewards™). The 2003 increase was due to the resolution of regulatory matters accrued for in 2002.
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Minority Interest. .- . . ., . oo

Mmonty 1nterest represents the effects of the adopuon of anew accountmg pronouncement in second
quarter 2004 related to SCE’s variable interest entities (see ‘Critical Accounting Policies and Estrmates
and “New-Accounting Prmcnples ). : 4
I ncome rTaxes .
Income taxes increased-$50 million in 2004 and decreased $254 million in 2003. ,The 2004 increase was
primarily due to an increase in pre-tax income and the favorable resolution of a FERC rate case recorded
by SCE in 2003. The increase was partially offset by adjustments made in 2004 to accrued tax liabilities
to reflect the receipt of an IRS audit report and progress achieved in settlement negotiations for issues
relating to prior year tax liabilities. The 2003 decrease was primarily,due to reductions in pre-tax .-, -
income, the favorable resolution of tax audit issues, and the favorable resolution of a FERC rate case, :
partially offset by the reestablishment of tax-related regulatory assets upon lmplementanon of the URG. -
decxsxon recorded in 2002. - SRV SN : :
SCE's federal and state statutory tax rate was 40 37% for 2004 and 40 551% for. the other years
presented. The lower effective tax rate of 32.2% in 2004 was primarily due to adjustments to tax
liabilities relating to prior years, property-related flow through items and other property-related .
adjustments. The lower effective tax rate of 30.5% realized in 2003 was primarily due to the resolution
of a FERC rate case.and recording the benefit of favorable resolution of tax audit issues..

T . ‘./ xE . . 2 :‘_: L K s .
Incomefrom DtsconnnuedOperatzons N TP e S

SCE’s income from dlscontmued operatlons m 2003 mcluded a $44 mllllon (after-tax) galn on the sale
of SCE’s fuel-oil pipeline business and operating results of $6 million. - : ,

Historical Cash Flow Analysis
Cash F Iows from Operating Activities

Net cash prov1ded by operatlng actlvmes was $2 3 brlhon in 2004 $2.6 bllllon in 2003 and 5548 mllllon
in 2002. The 2004 decrease in cash provided by operating activities from continuing operations was
mainly due;to SCE’s implementation of a CPUC-approved customer rate reduction plan effective-,
August 1, 2003.- The 2003 increase in cash provided by operating activities from continuing operations -
was mainly due to SCE’s March 2002 repayment of past-due obligations. ‘The change during.both -~ .
periods was also due to timing of cash receipts and disbursements related to working capital items. . ;-

Cash Flows from Financing Activities ;
SCE’s short-term debtis norrnally used to working capital requirentents ‘Long-term debt is used mainly
to finance the utility’s rate base. Extemal financings are influenced by market condmons and other.
factors. - R SRR : : o

SCE f" nancmg actwmes in 2004 mclude the issuance of 5300 mllllon of 5% bonds due in 2014 .
$525 million of 6% bonds due in 2034 and $150 million of floating rate bonds due in 2006 all 1ssued
during the first quarter of 2004.. The proceeds from these issuances were used to call at par $300 m1111_on
of 7.25% first and refunding mortgage bonds due March 2026, $225 million of 7.125% first and ‘
refunding mortgage bonds due July 2025, $2QQ millionof 6.9% first and refunding mortgage bonds due
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October 2018, and $100 million of junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures due June 2044, In
addition, during the first quarter of 2004, SCE paid the $200 million outstanding balance of its credit-~
facility, as well as remarketed approximately $550 million of pollution-control bonds with varying
maturity dates ranging from 2008 to 2040. Approximately $354 million of these pollution-control bonds
had been held by SCE since 2001 and the remaining $196 million were purchased and reoffered in 2004:
In March 2004, SCE issued $300 million of 4.65% first and refunding mortgage bonds due in 2015 and:
$350 million of 5.75% first and refunding mortgage bonds due in 2035. A portion of the proceeds from
the March 2004 first and refunding mortgage bond issuances were used to fund the acquisition and* * -
construction of the Mountainview project. During the third quarter, SCE paid $125 million of 5.875%
bonds due in September 2004. During the fourth quarter, SCE issued $150 million of floating rate ﬁrst '
and refunding mortgage bonds due in 2007. Financing activities m 2004 also included dividend :
payments of $750 mllllon to Edlson International. ' ’

SCE’s financing activities durmg’ 2003 included an exchange offer of $966 million of 8.95% variable rate
notes due November 2003 for $966 million of new series first and refunding mortgage bonds due
February 2007: In addition, during 2003, SCE repaid $125 million of its 6.25% bonds, the outstanding
balance of $300 million of a $600 million one-year term loan due March 3, 2003, $300 million on'its
revolving line of credit, and $700 million of a term loan due March 2005. The $700 million term loan
was retired with a cash payment of $500 million and $200 million drawn on a-$700 million credit facility
that expires in 2006. SCE’s financmg activities also mclude a dividend payment of $945 mllllon to
deson Intematronal S ‘

During the first quarter of 2002, SCE paid $531-million of matured commercial paper and remarketed
$196 million of the $550 million of pollution-control bonds repurchased during December 2000 and early
2001. Also during the first quarter of 2002, SCE replaced the $1.65 billion credit facility with a

$1.6 billion financing and made a payment of $50 million to retire the entire credit facility. Throughout
the year, SCE paid approximately $1.2 billion of maturing long-term debt. The $1.6 billion fi inancing
included a $600 million, one-year term loan due March 3; 2003. SCE prepaid $300 million of this loan -
in August 2002,

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash flows from investing activities are affected by additions to property and plant and fundmg of
nuclear decommissioning trusts. _ 3

Investing activities include capital expenditures of $1.7 billion, $1.2 million and $1.0 billion in 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively; primarily for transmission and distribution assets, including approximately-
$70 million in 2004 for nuclear fuel acquisitions. In addition, investing activities in 2004 mclude

$285 million of acquisition costs related to the Mountainview project.

Nuclear decommissioning costs are recovered in utility rates. These costs are expected to be funded from
independent decommissioning trusts that receive SCE contributions of approximately $32 million per
year. The fair value of decommissioning SCE’s nuclear power facilities is $2.2 billion as of

December 31, 2004, based on site-specific studies performed in 2001 for San Onofre and Palo Verde. As
of December 31, 2004, the decommissioning trust balance was $2.7 billion. The CPUC has set certain
restrictions related to the investments of these trusts. Contributions to the decommissioning trusts are
reviewed every three years by the CPUC. The contributions are determined from an analysis of
estimated decommissioning costs, the current value of trust assets and long-termi forecasts of cost
escalation and after-tax return on trust investments. Favorable or unfavorable investment performance in
a period will not change the amount of contributions for that period. However, trust performance for the
three years leading up to a CPUC review proceeding will provide input into future contributions. SCE’s
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costs to decommission San Onofre Unit 1 are paid from the nuclear decommissioning trust funds. These
withdrawals from the decommxssnomng trusts are netted with the contrlbutlons to the trust.funds i m the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

DISPOSITIONS AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On July 10, 2003, the CPUC approved SCE’s sale of certain oil storage and pipeline facilities to Pacific
Terminals LLC for $158 million. .In thxrd quarter 2003 SCE recorded a $44 million after-tax gain t to
shareholders. In accordance with an accounting standard related to the 1mpa1rment and dlsposal of long-
lived assets, this oil storage and pipeline facilities unit’s results have been accounted for as a discontinued
operation in the 2003 financial statements. Due to immateriality, the results of this unit for 2002 have not -
been restated and are reflected as part of continuing operations. For 2003, revenue from dlscontlnued '
operations was $20 million and pre-tax income was $82 million. :

I

ACQUISITION

On March 12, 2004 SCE acQuired Mou'ntainview Power Company LLC‘ whicn owns a power plant ‘
under construction in Redlands, California. SCE recommenced full construction of the approx1mately
$600 million prOJect which is expected to be comp]eted in early 2006. . DTN

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The accountmg p011c1es descnbed below are v1ewed by management as crmcal because thelr applxcatlon
is the most relevant and material to SCE’s results of operations and financial position and these policies
require the use of material judgments and estimates.

Asset Impairment

SCE evaluates long-lived assets whenever indicators of potential impairment exist. Accounting -
standards require that if the undiscounted expected future cash flow from a company’s assets or group of
assets (without interest charges) is less than its carrying value, an asset impairment must be recognized in
the financial statements. -The amount,of impairment is determined by the difference between the carrying
amount and fa1r value of the asset. . : ~

The assessment of 1mpa1rment isa crmcal accountmg estimate because sxgmﬁcant management Judgment
is required to determine: (1) if an indicator of impairment has occurred, (2) how assets shouldbe .
grouped, (3) the forecast of undiscounted expected future cash flow over the asset’s estimated useful life
to determine if an impairment exists, and (4) if an impairment exists, the fair value of the asset or asset
group. Factors SCE considers important,-which could trigger an impairment, include operating losses
from a project, projected future operating losses, the financial condition of counterparties, or 51gmﬁcant
negative industry or economic trends. iy

During the fourth quarter of 2002, SCE assessed the impairment.of Mohave due to the probability of a
‘plant shutdown at the end of 2005. Because the -expected undiscounted; cash flows from the plant during
the years 20032005 were less than the $88 million carrying value of the .plant as of December 31, 2002,
SCE incurred an impairment charge of $61 million. However, in accordance with accounting standards
for rate-regulated enterprises, this incurred cost was deferred and recorded in regulatory assets as a :
‘long-term receivable to be collected from customer revenue. This treatment was based on SCE’s "
expectatlon that any unrecovered book value at the end of 2005 would be recovered in future rates | y o

37



Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

(together with a reasonable return) throu0h a balancing account mechanism: ‘See “Regulatory Matters——
Generation and Power Procurement—Mohave Generating Statron and Related Proceedings,” and “—
Rate Regulated Enterprises.”

Income Taxes

SCE and its subsidiaries are included in Edison Iﬁtemational s consolidated federal income tax and
combined state franchise tax returns. Urider an income tax allocatron agreement approved by the CPUC
SCE’S tax liability is computed as 1f it ﬁled a separate return.

The accounting standard for income taxes requires the asset and liability approach for financial -
accounting and reporting for deferred income taxes. SCE uses the asset and liability method of
accounting for deferred income taxes and provides deferred income taxes for all significant income tax
temporary differences.

As part of the process of preparing its consolidated financial statements, SCE is required to estimate its
income taxés in each of the jurisdictions in which it operates.: This process involves estimating actual
current tax expense together with assessing temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of
items, such as depreciation, for tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred tax
assets and liabilities, which are included within SCE’s consolidated balance sheet. SCE takes certain tax
positions it believes are applied in accordance with tax laws. The application of these positions is-
subject to interpretation and audit by the IRS. As further described in “Other Developments—Federal
Income Taxes,” the IRS has raised i issues in the audit of Edison Intematronal’s tax returns w1th respect to
certain issues at SCE. Pl

Management continually evaluates its income tax exposures and provides for allowances and/or reserves as
deemed necessary. o .

Pensions and Postretzrement Benef ts Other Than Pensions” = -

Pension and other postretirement obligations and the related effects on results of operations are -
calculated using actuarial models. Two crifical assumptions, discourit rate and expected return on assets,
are important elements of plan expense and liability measurement. Additionally, health care cost trend
rates are critical assumptions for postretirement heath care plans. These critical assumptions are
evaluated at least annually. Other assumptions, such as retrrement mortality and tumover are evaluated
periodically and updated to reflect actual experrence ' C

The discount rate enables SCE to state expected future cash flows at a present value on the measurement
date. Atthe December 31, 2004 measurement date, SCE used a discount rate of 5.5% for pensions and
5.75% for postretirement benefits other than pensions (PBOP) that represemed the market interest rate-
for high-quality fixed income investments.

To determine the expected long-term rite of return on pension plan assets, current and expected asset
allocations are considered, as well as historical and expected returns on plan assets. The expected rate of
return on plan assets was 7.5%:for pensidns and7.1% for PBOP. A portion of PBOP trusts asset returns
are subject to taxation, so the 7.1% figure above is determined on an after-tax basis. Actual time-
weighted, annualized returns on the pension ‘plan assets were 12.2%, 5.0% and 11.9% for the one-year,
five-year and ten-year periods ended December 31, 2004, respectively. Actual time-weighted, annualized
returns on the PBOP plan assets were 11.4%, 1.2% and 10.1% over these same periods. Accounting
principles provide that differences between expected and actual returns are recognized over the average
future service of employees.
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At December 31, 2004 SCE’s pensron plans had a $3 O billion prOJected beneﬁt obhgatxon (PBO) a
$2.6 billion accumulated benefit obligation (ABO) and $3.0 billion in plan assets. A 1% decrease in the
discount rate would increase the PBO by $246 m1lhon and a 1% increase would decrease the PBO by
$266 million, with corresponding changes in the ABO A 1% decrease in the expected rate of return on
plan assets would increase pension expense by $28 mllhon

SCE records pensxon expense equal to the amount funded to the trusts, as calculated usmg an actuanal
method required for rate-making purposes, in which the impact of market volatlllty on plan assets is
recognized in earnings on a more gradual ba51s Any difference between pension expense calculated in .
accordance with rate-making methods and pension expense or income calculated in accordance with
accounting standards is accumulated in a regulatory asset or liability, and will, over time, be recovered
from or returned to customers. As of December 31, 2004, this cumulative difference amounted to a
regulatory liability of $114 million, meaning that the rate-making method has resulted in recognizing
$114 million more in expense than the accounting method since 1mplementatlon of the pen31on ;
accounting standard in 1987.

Under accounting standards,,if the ABO exceeds the market value of plan assets at the measurement date,
the difference may result in a reduction to-shareholders’ equity through a charge to other comprehensive
income, but would not affect current net income. The reduction to other comprehensive income would
be restored through shareholders’ equity in future periods to the extent the market value of trust assets - -
exceeded the ABO. This assessment is performed annually.

At December 31, 2004, SCE’s PBOP plans had a $2.1-billion PBO and $1.4 billion in plan assets. Total :
expense for these plans was $87 million for 2004 Increasing the health care cost trend rate by one - -
percentage point would increase the accumulated obligation as of December 31, 2004 by $307 mllllon i
and annual aggregate service and interest costs by $27 million. Decreasing the health care cost trend rate
by one percentage point would decrease the accumulated obligation as of December 31, 2004 by

$248 million and annual aggregate service and interest costs by $21 million.

On December 8, 2003 Presxdent Bush sngned the Medlcare Prescrlptlon Drug, Improvement and o
Modernization Act of 2003. The Act authorized a federal subsidy to be provided to plan sponsors for -
certain prescription drug benefits under Medicare. In May 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) issued accounting guidance related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and .
Modemization Act of 2003. SCE adopted this guidance effective July 1, 2004, which resulted in a ,
decrease of $116 million to SCE’s accumulated benefit obligation for postretirement benefits other than
pensions. SCE’s 2004.expense decreased approximately $8 million as a result of the subsidy. According
to proposed federal regulations, SCE’s retiree health care plans provide prescription drug benefits that
are deemed to be actuarially equivalent to Medrcare benefits. Accordingly, SCE recognized the sub51dy
in the measurement of its accumulated obllgatlon and recorded an actuarial gain. .~ - ..,

Rate Regulated Enterprtses -

SCE applies accounting principles for rate-regulated enterprises to the portion of its operations, in which
regulators set rates at levels intended to recover the estimated costs of providing service, plus a return on
capital. Due to timing and other differences in the collection of revenue, these principles allow an
incurred cost that would otherwise be charged to expense by a nonregulated entity to be capitalized as a
regulatory asset if it is probable that the cost is recoverable through future rates and conversely allow
creation of a regulatory liability for probable future costs collected through rates in advance. SCE’s
management continually assesses whether the regulatory assets are probable of future recovery by
considering factors such as the current regulatory environment, the issuance of rate orders on recovery of
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the specific incurred cost or a similar incurred cost to SCE or other rate-regulated entities in California,
and assurances from the regulator (as well as its primary intervenor groups) that the incurred cost will be
treated as an allowable cost (and not challenged) for rate-making purposes. Because current rates include
the recovery of existing regulatory assets and settlement of regulatory liabilities, and rates in effect are
expected to allow SCE to earn a reasonable rate of return, management believes that existing regulatory
assets and liabilities are probable of recovery. This determination reflects the current political and
regulatory climate in California and is subject to change in the future. If future recovery of costs ceases
to be probable, all or part of the regulatory assets and liabilities would have to be written off against
current period earnings.” At December 31, 2004, the Consolidated Balance Sheets included regulatory
assets of $3.8 billion and regulatory liabilities of $3.8 billion. Management continually evaluates the
anticipated recovery of regulatory assets, liabilities, and revenue subject to refund and provides for
allowances and/or reserves as deemed necessary. '

SCE applied judgment in the use of the above principles when it: (1) restored $480 million (after-tax) of
generation-related regulatory assets based on the URG decision in the second quarter of 2002; and

(2) established a $61 million regulatory asset related to the impaired Mohave in the fourth quarter of
2002. In all instances, SCE recorded corresponding credits to earnings upon concluding that such
incurred costs were probable of recovery in the future. See further discussion in “Regulatory Matters—
Generation and Power Procurement—Mohave Generating Station and Related Proceedings™ section.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

A new accounting standard requires companies to use the fair value accounting method for stock-based
compensation. SCE currently uses the intrinsic value accounting method for stock-based compensation.
SCE will adopt the new method effective July 1, 2005. The difference in expense, net of tax, between
the two methods is $4 million. SCE is reviewing the new standard and has not yet selected a transition
method for adoption of the new standard. :

In December 2004, the FASB issued guidance (Staff Position 109-1) on accounting for a tax deduction
resulting from the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004. The primary objective of this Position is to
provide guidance on accounting for the provision within the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 that
provides a tax deduction on qualified production activities. Under this Position, recognition of the tax
deduction on qualified production activities, which include the production of electricity, is reported in the
year it is earned. This FASB Staff Position had no material impact on SCE’s financial statements. SCE
is evaluating the effect that the manufacturer’s deduction will have in subsequent years.

In December 2003, the FASB issued a revision to an accounting Interpretation (originally issued in
January 2003), Consolidation of VIEs. The primary objective of the Interpretation is to provide guidance
on the identification of, and financial reporting for, VIEs, where control may be achieved through means
other than voting rights. Under the Interpretation, the enterprise that is expected to absorb or receive the
majority of a VIE’s expected losses or residual returns, or both, must consolidate the VIE unless specific
exceptions apply. This Interpretation was effective for special purpose entities, as defined by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States, as of December 31, 2003, and all other entities as of
March 31, 2004.

SCE has 270 long-term power-purchase contracts with independent power producers that own QFs. SCE
was required under federal law to sign such contracts, which typically require SCE to purchase 100% of
the power produced by these facilities under terms and pricing controlled by the CPUC. SCE conducted
a review of its QF contracts and determined that SCE has variable interests in 12 contracts with gas-fired
cogeneration plants that are potential VIEs and that contain variable pricing provisions based on the price
of natural gas and for which SCE does not have sufficient information to determine if the projects qualify
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for a scope exception. SCE requested from the entities that hold these contracts the financial information
necessary to determine whether SCE must consolidate these projects. All 12 entities declined to provide
SCE with the necessary financial information. However, four of the 12 contracts are with entities
49%-50% owned by a related party, Edison MlSSlOl’l Energy (EME). EME is an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of SCE’s parent company, Edison Intemauonal Although the four related-party entities have
declined to provide their financial information to SCE, Edison International has access to such
information and has provxded combined ﬁnancml statements to SCE. SCE has determined that it must
consolidate the four. power projects pamally owned by EME based on a qua]1tat1ve analy51s of the facts
and circumstances of the entities, including the related-party nature of the transaction. SCE will continue
to attempt to obtain information for the other eight projects in order to determine whether they should be
consolidated by SCE. ;

The remaining 258 contracts will not be consolidated by SCE under the new accounting standard, since
SCE lacks a varlable interest in these contracts or the contracts are vnth governmental agencies, which
are generally excluded from the standard.

SCE analyzes its potential variable interests by calculating operating cash flows. A fixed-price contract.
to purchase electricity from a power plant does not transfer sufficient risk to SCE to be considered a
variable interest. A contract with a non-natural-gas-fired plant that is based on the price of natural gas is
also not a variable interest. SCE has other power contracts with non- QF generators. SCE has determined
that these contracts are not significant variable interests.

COMMITMENTS AND INDEMNITIES
SCE’s commitments for the years 2005 through 2009 and thereafter are estimated below:

In millions O 005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter

Long-term debt maturities and L 4 : o

sinking fund requirements’” - $503  S$1,168  $1,580 $ 255 $418 $5,704
Fuel supply contract payments 173 58 65 59 .36 454
Purchased-power capacity pa)ments - 898 725 648 421 394 3,059
Unconditional purchase obligations =~~~ 5° 5 5 5 6 43
Estimated noncancelable lease payments 48 45 9 8 5 9
Preferred stock redemption

requirements 9 9 74 56 —_ —
Employee benefit plans contributions™ 109 126 127 — — —

(1) Amount includes scheduled principal payments for debt outstanding as of December 31, 2004, assuming
long-term debt is held to maturity, and related forecast interest payments over the applicable period of the debt.

(2) Amount includes estimated contributions to the pension plans and postretirement benefits other than pensions.
The estimated contributions beyond 2007 are not available.

Fuel Supply Contracts
SCE has fuel supply contracts which require payment only if the fuel is made available for purchase.

SCE has a coal fuel contract that requires payment of certain fixed charges whether or not coal is
delivered.
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Power Purchase Contracts

SCE has power-purchase contracts with certain QFs (cogenerators and small power producers) and other
power producers. These contracts provide for capacity payments if a facility meets certain performance
obligations and energy payments based on actual power supplied to SCE (the energy payments are not
included in the table below). There are no requirements to make debt-service payments. In an effort to
replace higher-cost contract payments with lower-cost replacement power, SCE has entered into
purchased-power settlements to end its contract obligations with certain QFs. The settlements are
reported as power purchase contracts on the balance sheets.

Unconditional Purchase Obligations

SCE has an unconditional purchase obligation for firm transmission service from another utility.
Minimum payments are based, in part, on the debt-service requirements of the provider, whether or not
the transmission line is operable.

Leases

SCE has operating leases, primarily for vehicles, with varying terms, provisions and expiration dates.
Additionally, in accordance with an accounting standard, certain power contracts in which SCE takes
virtually all of the power from specific power plants are classified as operating leases.

Indemnity Provided as Part of the Acquisition of Mountainview

In connection with the acquisition of Mountainview, SCE agreed to indemnify the seller with respect to
specific environmental claims related to SCE's previously owned San Bernardino Generating Station,
divested by SCE in 1998 and reacquired as part of the Mountainview acquisition. The generating station
has not operated since early 2001, and SCE retained certain responsibilities with respect to
environmental claims as part of the original divestiture of the station. The aggregate liability for either
party to the purchase agreement for damages and other amounts is a maximum of $60 million. This
indemnification for environmental liabilities expires on or before March 12, 2033. SCE has not recorded
a liability related to this indemnity.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and
Shareholder of Southern California Edison Company

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of
income, comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in common shareholder’s equity present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of Southern California Edison Company and its subsidiaries
at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2004 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in
which it accounts for asset retirement costs as of January 1, 2003, financial instruments with
characteristics of both debt and equity as of July 1, 2003, and variable interest entities as of March 31,
2004.

wive Wk péa/,%; LA

Los Angeles, California
March 15, 2005
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In millions - Year ended December 31, - 2004 2003 12002 -
Operating revenue $ 8,448 $ 8,854 $. 8,706
Fuel 810 235 . 243
Purchased power 2,332 2,786 2,016
Provisions for regulatory adjustment clauses — net (201) 1,138 21,502
Other operation and maintenance 2,457 . 2,072 - 1,935
Depreciation, decommissioning and amortization 860 - 882 . 780"
Property and other taxes 177 168 - 117
Net gain on sale of utility plant — B . B
Total operating expenses 6,435 - 7276 6,588
Operating income 2,013 1,578 2,118
Interest and dividend income 20 100 262
Other nonoperating income L 84 72 .75
Interest expense ~ net of amounts capitalized 409) “4s7) - (584)
Other nonoperating deductions (69) (23) - 18
Income from continuing operations before tax R L
and minority interest 1,639 : 1,270 1,889
Income tax 438 » 388 o642
Minority interest 280 — —
Income from continuing operations 921 _ 882 1,247 -
Income from discontinued operations — net of tax — 50 —
Net income e 921 932 - 1,247
Dividends on preferred stock S
subject to mandatory redemption — -5 213
Dividends on preferred stock o R R
not subject to mandatory redemption 6 5. : 6
Net income available for common stock $ 915  § 922 $ 1,228
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
In millions Year ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002
Net income $ 921 $ 932 $ 1,247
Other comprehensive income (1oss), net of tax:
Minimum pension liability adjustment N 4) 5
Amortization of cash flow hedges 3 1 11
Comprehensive income $ 923 $ 929 $ 1,253

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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In millions v December 31, 2004 . 2003
ASSETS - | .
Cash and equivalents $ 122 $ 95
Restricted cash 61 66
Receivables, less allowances of $31 and $30 :
for uncollectible accounts at respectxve dates 618 602
Accrued unbilled revenue 320 273
Fuel inventory 8 10
Materials and supplies 188 168
Accumulated deferred income taxes — net 134 563
Regulatory assets ( 553 299
Prepayments and other current assets .72 62
Total current assets 2,076 2,138
Nonutility property — less accumulated provision '
for depreciation of $34 and $24 at respective dates 583 116
Property of variable interest entities — net 377 =
Nuclear decommissioning trusts 2,757 2,530
Other investments 170 150
Total investments and other assets’ 3,887 2,796
Utility plant, at original cost: R
Transmission and distribution 15,685 14,861
Generation 1,356 1,388
Accumulated provision for deprecnatlon " (4,506) (4 386)
Construction work in progress 789 601
Nuclear fuel, at amortized cost - 151 141
_Total utility plant . 13475 - 12,605
Regulatory assets ‘ ' 3,285,j o 3,725
Other deferred charges 567 507
Total deferred charges 3,852 4,232
Total assets $ 23,290 $ 21,771

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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In millions, except share amounts "~ . December 31, - v 2004 - 2003 .
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY e SR
Short-term debt o | $ 8 'S 200
Long-term debt due within one year,_ ... 246 .. ..371
Preferred stock to be redeemed thhm one year 9. ,.- .9
Accounts payable 700 v 497
Accrued taxes ' . : S 357 . 476
Accrued interest - : OIS e 107
Customer deposits - o 168 152
Book overdrafts 232 189
Regulatory liabilities o o490 . 659
Other current liabilities . . 643 0 972
Total current liabilities . 3048 3,632
Long-term debt 5225 U 4,121
Accumulated deferred income taxes — net e 2.,8765‘” S 2726
Accumulated deferred investment tax credits Do 126 e - 136 -
Customer advances and other deferred credits S s10 .., T 428
Power-purchase contracts ‘ .. 130 Co 213
Preferred stock subject to mandatory redemptlon 139 ... . 141 .
Accumulated provision for pensions and benefits 417 . - .330
Asset retirement obligations 2,183 - - 2,084 -
Regulatory liabilities ‘ 3,356 - 3,234 _
Other long-term liabilities - 2320 ot 242
Total deferred credits and other liabilities 9958 . . 9534
Total liabilities - oo e - 18,231 - o 17,287 ¢
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 2, 9 and 10) i
Minority interest  ~ .~ "~ . . | ;'"." S e
Common stock (434,888,104 shares outstanding at €ach date) =~ S '2 168 T ST 2,168
Additional paid-in capital ‘350 o 338
Accumulated other comprehensive loss P (17) L (19)
Retained earnings - : s 20200 1,868
Total common shareholder’s equity “ 4521 700 T 4355
Preferred stock not subject to niandatory redemption L 1290 L 129
Total shareholders’ equity SRR cou 4,680 0 e 4,484
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity” * = - $23290 ¢ U 21771

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

In millions Year ended December 31, - 2004 2003 -2002.
Cash flows from operating activities: e e : . . :
'Income from Continuing operations’  © $ 921 "$ 882 S 1,247
Adjustments to reconcile to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation, decommissioning and amortization 860 882 780
Other amortization 90 101 106
Minority interest " 280 — —
Deferred income taxésand investment tax credits 514 (104) (640)
Regulatory assets — long-term 442 535 (6,738)
Regulatory liabilities ~ long-term (69) (48) 8,589
Other assets .- ) amn 122 98
Other liabilities ' 18 (364) 135
Receivables and accrued unbilled revenue 9) 185 480
..Inventory, prepayments and other current assets .. - - (10) 78. - (86)
Regulatory assets — short-term (254) 13,268 (1,252)
) 'Regulatory llabllmes — short-term i (169) (12,486) 876
-- Accrued interest and taxes - : . -~ (111)- - (223) (191)
Accounts payable and other current liabilities (152) - (181) ' (2,856)
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,274 2,647 548
Cash flows from financing activities:
Long-term debt issued and issuance costs 1,747 ap (32)
Long-term debt repaid (966) (1 263) (1,200)
Bonds remarketed — net - 350 - 191
Redemption of preferred stock 2) (6) (100)
Rate reduction notes repaid (246) (246) (246)
Nuclear fuel financing - net — — (59)
Short—term debt fi nancmg net’ o - (112) ) 527
.Change inbook overdrafts .. . . ... ———— e o 43 65 77 .
Shares purchased for stock- based compensatlon (60) (13) 3)
‘Proceeds from sfock option exercises o ’ 29 3 —_
Minority interest ' ‘ (290) — —_
Dividends paid (756) (955) (40)
-Net cash used by financing activities -~ - =~ - - - (263) (2,430) (1,939)
Cash flows from investing activities: '
Cap1ta1 expenditures (1,678) (1,153) (1,037)
Acquisition costs related to nonutility generation plant (285) — —
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations A ] S — 146 —
Contributions to and earnings  from o ‘ T ‘
~-=nuclear decommissioning trusts = net - - (109) 2 (86) (12)
Sales of investments in other assets L N 9 13 18
Net cash used by invé’sting activities (2.063) (1,080) (1,031
Effect of consolidation of variable interest entities 79 — —
Net change in cash of discontinued operations — (34) —
Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents 27 897) (2,422)
Cash and equivalents, beginning of year 95 992 3,414
Cash and equivalents; end of year-continuing operations - - $ 122 - $ 95 $ 992

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Stafements of Changes in Cnnnnon
Shareholder’s Equity |

‘Southern California Edison Company

- P : Y ; R
Accumulated ... ~Total. :
Additional Other Common
Common ; ~ :Paid-in - .Comprehensive = Refained.: .;Shareholder’s
In millions Stock Capital Income (Loss) Eamings Equity
Balance at December 31,2001 ©' $ 2 168 $ 336 - $7(22) ¢ $ 664 - $3146 °
Net income e T 1za7 T 147
Minimum pension liability adjustment ) )
Tax effect 4 : gt
Amortization of cash ﬂow hedges 4 4
Tax effect RPN L BRI

Dividénds accrued on preferred'stock - 7 oS n
ssubject to'mandatory redemption . < it o ¥

G sy e (13)

Dividends-accrued on prefeired stock : LR A T B AL e
not subject to mandatory redemption. . -t -0 s ie “(6) . (6)
Shares purchased for stock-based compensation (3) (3)
Non-cash stock-based compensation . ..+ ..., ... . .38 , e 8
Cap1ta1 stock expense and other, g T T D : , o (l)
Balance at December 31 2002 r. $2,168- .  $340 $(16).: -$1,892 . - $ 4, 384 .
Net i mcome TR T ' .1.;"’," " >;7 s ," A,"fi‘ T ‘ : PR 932 . T 932 H
Minimum pensmn hablllty adjustment R LN Ty T e (T
Tax effect © - = = & N L o T L PR

t L

Amortization ofcash flow hedges:. <! - e Lo
Tax effect

Dividends declared on common stock

Dividends declared on preferred stock
subject to mandatory redemption
Dividends declared on preferred stock .
“hot subject to mandatory redemptlon .

Shares purchased for’ stock baSed compensanon" o

Proceeds from stock option éxercises ¢ ¢ T e

SN PR

Non-casH ‘stock-bdsed compénsation - i 11 PR SR A T
Capital stock expense and'other. -t « oo -t o o C B2

M )
L945) . (945)

[N

®» "'(5')‘
o ©. Ty
@ 3,

C s

Balance at December 31, 2003

$2,168 7 338

T $7(16) 51,868 $4355

Netincome ,. ;. .- g IR TR et e 920 L 921
Minimum penswn 11ab111ty ad_)ustment o [¢)) ' BG))
Amortization of cash flow hedges 5 -
Tax effect 2 R )
D1v1dends declared on common stock . N _ 750y, (750);
Dividends de¢ldred on préferred stock - s o A
not subject to mandatory redemptlon AL ! : (6)° -7 i)
Shares ‘purchiased for:stock-based compensatlon L (17) ' e TLo43) o (60Y
Proceeds from stock option exercises- i s Ll f Ll wa o 29 el 29
Non-cash stock-based compensation ... - 1% »i ] o 30. T LI S R gL
Capital stock-expense and other i (1) - 38 ST Rt

Balance @t December 31, 2004

1§ 2,168 ¢ i $350

“$.(17) 82,0200

Authorized common stock is 560 million shares with no par value.

$4521°

~i .: The:accompanying notes are an intégral part of these financial statements. .-
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies are discussed in Note 1, unless discussed in the respective Notes for
specific topics.

Note 1. Summary of Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies

Southem Cahfomla deson Company (SCE) is a rate-regulated electric utility that supplles elecmc _
energy to a 50,000 square-mile area of central, coastal and southern California. '

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include SCE, its subsidiaries and variable interest entities (VIEs)
for which SCE is the primary beneficiary. Effective March 31, 2004, SCE began consolidating four
cogeneration projects for which SCE typically purchases 100% of the energy produced under long-term
power-purchase agreements, in accordance with a new accounting standard for the consolldatlon of
variable interest entities. Intercompany transactions have been eliminated.

SCE’s accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United' States, .
including the accounting principles for rate-regulated enterprises, which reflect the rate-making policies
of the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) and the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
(FERC). In 1997, due to changes in the rate recovery of generation-related assets, SCE began using
accounting principles applicable to enterprises in general for its investment in generation facilities. . In
April 2002, SCE reapplied accounting principles for rate-regulated enterprises to assets that were
returned to cost-based regulation under the utility-retained generation decision.

Certain prior-period amounts were reclassified to conform to the December 31, 2004 f1nanc1al statement
presentation.

Financial statements prepared in compliance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and Notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Certain significant
estimates related to regulatory matters, financial instruments, income taxes, pensions and postretirement
benefits other than pensions, decommissioning and contingencies are further discussed in Notes 2, 3, 6,
7,9 and 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, respectively.

SCE’s outstanding common stock is owned entirely by its parent company, Edison International.
Business Segments

SCE’s reportable business segments include the rate-regulated electric utility segment and the VIE |
segment. The VIEs were consolidated as of March 31, 2004. Electric utility segment revenue was
$8.2 billion in 2004. Electric utility segment assets were $22.8 billion as of December 31, 2004. Electric
utility income was 100% of SCE’s net income in 2004. Additional details on the VIE segment are shown
under the heading “Variable Interest Entities” in this Note. The VIEs are gas-fired power plants that sell
both electricity and steam. The VIE segment consists of non-rate-regulated entities. SCE’s management
has no control over the resources allocated to the VIE segment and does not make decxslons about its.
performance.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include other investments of $64 million at December 31, 2003 with original maturities of
three months or less. There were no cash equivalents at December 31, 2004. Additionally, at December 31,
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2004, the VIE segment had $90 mrlhon in cash and equivalents. For a discussion of restricted cash, see_
“Restrlcted Cash.”

Lo T i

Debt dnd Equity Irit'éstrll‘énts o 1 , ‘

Unrealrzed garns and losses on decommrssmnmg trust funds increase or decrease the related regulatory
asset or llab1l1ty All 1nvestments are cla551ﬁed as ava1lab1e for-sale.

Divt‘dend Réstriction : ’

The CPUC regulates SCE’s capltal structure and lrmrts the ‘dividends it may pay Edrson Intematronal
SCE’s authorrzed caprtal structure mcludes a common equrty component of 48%. SCE determrnes ‘
compliance wrth this caprtal structure based on a 13 -month weighted-average calculation. At
December 31, 2004, SCE'’s 13- month werghted average common equity component of total caprtallzatron
was 50. 5% At December 31 2004 SCE had the capacity to pay $222 million in additional dividends
based on the 13 mionth werghted average method ‘Based on recorded December 31, 2004 balances,
SCE’s common equity to total capitalization ratio was 50.4% for ratemakmg purposes SCE had the
capacity to pay $213 million of additional dividends to Edison International based on December 31, 2004
recorded balances. .. : e

In uehiory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market, cost being determined by the first in, first out method
for fue] and the average cost method for matertals and supplies.

New AcCOunting Pﬁnciples

A new accounting standard requires companies to use the fair value accounting method for stock-based
compensation. SCE currently uses the intrinsic value accounting method for stock-based compensatron
SCE will adopt the new method effective July 1, 2005. The difference in expense between the two
methods is shown in Note 1 under “Stock-Based Compensation.” SCE is reviewing the new standard and
has not yet selected a transrtton method for adoptlon of the new standard. - :

In December 2004 the Frnancral Accountmg Standards Board (FASB) tssued guldance (Staff Posrtlon ’
109-1) on accountmg for atax deduct10n resultmg from the American J obs Creatlon Act of 2004. The
primary ObjeCthG of this P051t10n is to provrde gurdance on accounting for the prov1sron wrthtn the
American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 that provrdes a tax deduction on qualtfled productlon activities.
Under this Posttlon recognmon of the tax deductron on “qualified production activities, which 1nclude the
production of electricity, is reported i |n the year 1t 1s eamed This FASB Staff Position had no material
impact on SCE’s financial statements SCE is evaluatlng the effect that the manufacturer s deduct1on
will have in subsequent years e e
In December 2003, the FASB issued a revision to an accounting Interpretation (originally issued in
January 2003), Consolidation of VIEs. The primary objective of the Interpretation is to provide guidance
on the identification of, and financial reporting for, VIEs, where control may be achieved through means
other than voting rights. Under the Interpretation, the enterprise that is expected to absorb or receive the
majortty ofa VIE’s expected losses or, resrdua] retums or both, must consolidate the VIE unless specrﬁc
exceptions apply This Interpretatlon was effectrve for specral purpose entities, as defined by accountmg
prmcrples generally accepted in the Umted States as ‘of December 31, 2003, and all other entities as of
March 31, 2004. ; : ;

i -
RS o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SCE has 270 long-term power-purchase contracts with independent power producers that own qualifying
facilities (QFs). SCE was required under federal law to sign such contracts, which typically require SCE
to purchase 100% of the power produced by these facilities under terms and pricing controlled by the
CPUC. SCE conducted a review of its QF contracts and determined that SCE has variable interests in

12 contracts with gas-fired cogeneration plants that are potential VIEs and that contain variable pricing
provisions based on the price of natural gas and for which SCE does not have sufficient information to
determine if the projects qualify for a scope exception. SCE requested from the entities that hold these
contracts the financial information necessary to determine whether SCE must consolidate these projects.
All 12 entities declined to provide SCE with the necessary financial information. However, four of the
12 contracts are with entities 49%-50% owned by a related party, Edison Mission Energy (EME). EME
is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of SCE’s parent company, Edison International. Although the
four related-party entities have declined to provide their financial information to SCE, Edison
International has access to such information and has provided combined financial statements to SCE.
SCE has determined that it must consolidate the four power projects partially owned by EME based on a
qualitative analysis of the facts and circumstances of the entities, including the related-party nature of the
transaction. SCE will continue to attempt to obtain information for the other eight projects in order to -
determine whether they should be consolidated by SCE. ’

The remaining 258 contracts will not be consolidated by SCE under the new accounting standard, since
SCE lacks a variable interest in these contracts or the contracts are with governmental agencies, which
are generally excluded from the standard.

SCE analyzes its potential variable interests by calculating operating cash flows. A fixed-price contract
to purchase electricity from a power plant does not transfer sufficient risk to SCE to be considered a
variable interest. A contract with a non-natural-gas-fired plant that is based on the price of natural gas is
also not a variable interest. SCE has other power contracts with non-QF generators. SCE has determined
that these contracts are not significant variable interests,

See “Variable Interest Entities’ for further information.

Effective July 1, 2003, SCE adopted a new accounting standard, Accounting for Certain Financial
Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity, which required issuers to classify certain
freestanding financial instruments as liabilities. These freestanding liabilities include mandatorily
redeemable financial instruments, obligations to repurchase the issuer’s equity shares by transferring
assets and certain obligations to issue a variable number of shares. Effective July 1, 2003, SCE
reclassified its preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption to the liabilities section of its
consolidated balance sheet. These items were previously classified between liabilities and equity. In
addition, effective July 1, 2003, dividend payments on these instruments were included in interest
expense — net of amounts capitalized on SCE’s consolidated statements of income. Prior period financial
statements were not permitted to be restated for these changes. Therefore, upon adoption there was no
cumulative impact incurred due to this accounting change. See disclosures regarding preferred stock in
Note 3.

Nuclear

Effective January 1, 2004, San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station (San Onofre) Units 2 and 3 returned to
traditional cost-of-service ratemaking. The July 8, 2004 CPUC decision on SCE’s 2003 general rate case
returned Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station (Palo Verde) to traditional cost-of-service ratemaking
retroactive to May 22, 2003 (the date a final CPUC decision was originally scheduled to be issued). As
authorized by the CPUC, SCE had been recovering its investments in San Onofre and Palo Verde on an
accelerated basis; these units also had incentive rate-making plans.
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SCE’s nuclear plant investments made prior to the return to cost-of-service ratemaking are recorded as
regulatory assets on its balance sheets. Since the return to cost-of-service ratemaking, capital additions
are recorded in utility plant.” These classrﬁcatlons ‘do not affect the rate-making | treatment for these
assets.

Other Nonoperating Income and Dedrlfctiqtt’s"

Other nonoperating income and deductions are as follows:

In millions - ' : Year ended December 31, _ 2004 | Y 2003- 2002, .
Property condemnation settlement $ — $ —  $38
Allowance for funds used during construction 35 27 19
Performance-based incentive awards ® o 31 > t21 R
Other 18 24 18

_ Total other nonoperating income ' _$ 84  $72 875

. Provisions for regulatory issues andlrefun_cls' : $ — 'lS — 3 42) .. '
Various penalties ' 35 . — =
Other 34 23 24

Total other nonoperating deductions . - $ 69 . § 23 $(18)
. . IR . ] L . )

Planned Major Maitttérl_czizce . o o

Certain plnnt facilltle:s‘ require major maiﬁi"e}ié{ri.ée on a periodic basis. All such costs are expense"d as

incurred. L : - ' ‘ ' o

o

Property and Plant -

Utility plant addmons mcludmg replacements and betterments are caprta]rzed ‘Such costs mclude direct
material and labor, construction overhead, a portion of administrative and general costs capitalized at a
rate authorized by the CPUC, and an allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) AFUDC
represents the estimated cost of debt and equity funds that finance utility-plant construction. AFUDC is
capitalized during plant construction and reported in current earnings in other nonoperating income. .
AFUDC is recovered in rates through depreciation expense over the useful life of the related asset ’
Depreciation of utility plant is computed on a straight-line, remarmnmltfe basrs ' a

Depreciation expense stated as a percent of average original cost of depreciable utrllty plant was 3 9% for
2004, 4.3% for 2003 and 4.2% for 2002. -

AFUDC - equity was $23 million in 2004, $21 million in 2003 and $11 mllllon in 2002 AFUDC debt
was $12 million in 2004 $6 million in 2003 and $8 million in 2002. :

Replaced or retired property costs are charged to the accumulated provrs10n for deprec1atlon Cash
payments for removal costs less salvage reduce the liability for asset retirement obligations.
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Estimated useful lives of SCE’s property, plant and equipment, as authorized by the CPUC, are as
follows:

Generation plant 38 years to 81 years
Distribution plant 24 years to 53 years
Transmission plant 40 years to 60 years
Nonutility property 5 years to 60 years
Other plant 5 years to 40 years

SCE’s net investment in generation-related utility plant was $920 million at December 31, 2004 and
$867 million at December 31, 2003.

Nuclear fuel is recorded as utility plant in accordance with CPUC rate-making procedures.

Nonutility property, including construction in progress, is capitalized at cost, including interest accrued
on borrowed funds that finance construction. Capitalized interest was $9 million in 2004, zero in 2003
and $1 million in 2002. The Mountainview power plant is included in nonutility property in accordance
with the rate-making treatment.

As a result of an accounting standard adopted in 2003, SCE recorded the fair value of its liability for
legal asset retirement obligations (ARO), which was primarily related to the decommissioning of its
nuclear power facilities. In addition, SCE capitalized the initial costs of the ARO into a nuclear-related
ARO regulatory asset, and also recorded an ARO regulatory liability as a result of timing differences
between the recognition of costs recorded in accordance with the standard and the recovery of the related
asset retirement costs through the rate-making process. SCE has collected in rates amounts for the future
costs of removal of its nuclear assets, and has placed those amounts in independent trusts. Prior to this
standard, SCE had recorded these amounts in accumulated provision for depreciation and
decommissioning. SCE follows accounting principles for rate-regulated enterprises and receives
recovery of these costs through rates; therefore, implementation of this new standard did not affect
earnings.

A reconciliation of the changes in the ARO liability is as follows:

In millions
Initial ARO liability as of January 1, 2003 § —
Adoption of new standard 2,024
. Accretion expense 128
Liabilities settled (68)
ARO liability as of December 31, 2003 2,084
. Accretion expense : 132
Liabilities settled (33)
ARO liability as of December 31, 2004 S 2,183
Fair value of nuclear decommissioning trusts $ 2,757

Purchased Power
From January 17, 2001 to December 31, 2002, the California Department of Water Resources (CDWR)

purchased power on behalf of SCE’s customers for SCE’s residual net short power position (the amount of
energy needed to serve SCE’s customers in excess of SCE’s own generation and purchased power
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contracts). Additionally, the CDWR signed long-term contracts which provide power for SCE’s customers.
Effective January 1, 2003, SCE resumed power procurement responsibilities for its residual net short
position. SCE acts as a billing agent for the CDWR power, and any power purchased by the CDWR for
delivery to SCE’s customers is not considered a cost to SCE.

Receivables

SCE records an allowance for uncollectible accounts, as determined by the average percentage of
revenue not collected in prior accounting periods. SCE assesses its customers a late fee of 0.9% per
month, beginning 19 days after the bill is prepared. Inactive accounts are written off after 180 days.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

In accordance with accounting principles for rate-regulated enterprises, SCE records regulatory assets,
which represent probable future recovery of certain costs from customers through the rate-making
process, and regulatory liabilities, whrch represent probable future credits to customers through the
rate-making process. :

Included in these regulatory assets and liabilities are SCE’s regulatory balancmg accounts. Sales
balancing accounts accumulate differences between recorded revenue and revenue SCE is authorized to
collect through rates. Cost balancing accounts accumulate differences between recorded costs and costs
SCE is authorized to recover through rates. Undercollections are recorded as regulatory balancing
account assets. Overcollections are recorded as regulatory balancing account liabilities. SCE's
regulatory balancing accounts accumulate balances until they are refunded to or received from SCE’s
customers through authorized rate adjustments. Primarily all of SCE’s balancing accounts can be
classified as one of the following types: generation-revenue related, distribution-revenue related, -
generation-cost related, distribution-cost related, transmission-cost related or public purpose and other
cost related. o

Balancing account undercollections and overcollectrons accrue interest based ona three month
commercial paper rate published by the Federal Reserve Income tax effects on all balancing account
changes are deferred.
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Regulatory Assets

Regulatory assets included in the consolidated balance sheets are:

In millions December 31, 2004 2003

Current: h
Regulatory balancing accounts . L $ 371 S 140
Direct access procurement charges : o 109 90
Purchased-power settlements S ' 62 57
Other 11 12

553 299 .

Long-term:

Flow-through taxes — net ' ' 1,018 974
Rate reduction notes — transition cost deferral - ‘ 739 985
Unamortized nuclear investment — net: ' 526 583
Nuclear-related ARO investment — net 272 288
Unamortized coal plant investment — net 78 66
Unamortized loss on reacquired debt 250 222
~ - Direct access procurement charges ‘ 141 250
" Environmental remediation- ‘ 55 71
Purchased-power settlements 91 153
Other ) 115 133
- . 3,285 3,725
Total Regulatory Assets - $ 3,838 $ 4,024

SCE’s regulatory assets related to direct access procurement charges are for amounts direct access
customers owe bundled service customers for the period May 1, 2000 through August 31, 2001, and are
offset by corresponding regulatory liabilities to the bundled service customers. These amounts will be
collected by mid-2007. SCE’s regulatory assets related to purchased-power settlements will be recovered
through 2008. Based on current regulatory ratemaking and income tax laws, SCE expects to recover its
net regulatory assets related to flow-through taxes over the life of the assets that give rise to the
accumulated deferred income taxes. SCE’s regulatory asset related to the rate reduction bonds is
amortized simultaneously with the amortization of the rate reduction bonds liability, and is expected to
be recovered by the end of 2007. SCE’s nuclear-related regulatory assets are expected to be recovered by
the end of the remaining useful lives of the nuclear facilities. SCE has requested a four-year recovery
period for the net regulatory asset related to its unamortized coal plant investment. CPUC approval is
pending. SCE’s regulatory asset related to its unamortized loss on reacquired debt will be recovered over
the remaining original amortization period of the reacquired debt over periods ranging from 1 year to

31 years. SCE’s regulatory asset related to environmental remediation represents the portion of SCE’s
environmental liability recognized at the end of the period in excess of the amount that has been
recovered through rates charged to customers. This amount will be recovered in future rates as
expenditures are made.

SCE earns a return on three of the regulatory assets listed above: unamortized nuclear investment — net,
unamortized coal plant investment — net and unamortized loss on reacquired debt.
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Regulatory Liabilities

Regulatory liabilities included in the consolidated balance sheets are:

In millions ____ December 31, 2004 2003
Current:
Regulatory balancing accounts $ 357 $ 549
Direct access procurement charges 109 90
Other - : : 24 .20
' ' ’ 490 659
Long-term: ' ‘ o ,
ARO . o ‘ 819 720
. Costs of removal 2,112 2,020
Direct access procurement charges f 141 250
'Employee benefits plans N 200 207
Other . - 84 37
3,356 3,234
Total Regulatory Liabilities $ 3,846 $ 3,893

SCE’s regulatory liability related to the ARO represents timing differences between the recognition of
nuclear decommissioning obligations in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and
the amounts recognized for rate-making purposes. SCE’s regulatory liabilities related to costs of removal
represent revenue collected for asset removal costs that SCE expects to incur in the future. Historically,
these removal costs have been recorded in accumulated depreciation; however, in accordance with recent
Securities and Exchange Commission accounting guidance, the amounts accrued in provision for
depreciation for decommissioning and costs of removal were reclassified to regulatory liabilities as of
December 31, 2002. SCE’s regulatory liabilities related to direct access procurement charges are a
liability to its bundled service customers and are offset by regulatory assets from direct access customers.
SCE’s regulatory liabilities related to employee benefit plan expenses represent pension and
postretirement benefits other than pensions costs recovered through rates charged to customers in excess
of the amounts recognized as expense. These balances will either be returned to ratepayers in some
future rate-making proceeding, or be charged against expense to the extent that future expenses exceed
amounts recoverable through the rate-making process.

Related Party Transactions

Four EME subsidiaries have 49% to 50% ownership in partnerships (QFs) that sell electricity generated
by their project facilities to SCE under long-term power purchase agreements with terms and pricing
approved by the CPUC. Beginning March 31, 2004, SCE consolidates these projects (see “Variable
Interest Entities™). '

SCE holds $153 million in notes receivable from affiliates, due in June 2007. The notes were issued by
Edison International in second quarter 1997, and assigned to SCE in fourth quarter 1997. A $78 million
note receivable from EME with an interest rate of LIBOR plus 0.275%; and a 4.4%, $75 million note
receivable from Edison Capital. The amounts are in other deferred charges on the balance sheet.
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Restricted Cash

SCE’s restricted cash represents amounts used exclusively to make scheduled payments on the current
maturities of rate reduction notes issued on behalf of SCE by a special purpose entity.

Revenue

Operating revenue is recognized as electricity is delivered and includes amounts for services rendered but
unbilled at the end of each year. Amounts charged for services rendered are based on CPUC-authorized
rates and FERC-approved rates. Revenue related to SCE’s transmission function is authorized by the
FERC in periodic proceedings that are similar to the CPUC’s proceedings, except that requested rate
changes are generally implemented when the application is filed, and revenue collected prior to a final
FERC decision is subject to refund. Rates include amounts for current period costs, plus the recovery of
certain previously incurred costs. However, in accordance with accounting standards for rate-regulated
enterprises, amounts currently authorized in rates for recovery of costs to be incurred in the future are not
considered as revenue until the associated costs are incurred. Instead, these amounts are recorded as
deferred revenue. For costs recovered through CPUC-authorized general rate case rates, costs incurred in
excess of revenue billed are deferred in a balancing account, and recovered in future rates.

Since January 17, 2001, power purchased by the CDWR or through the California Independent System
Operator (ISO) for SCE’s customers is not considered a cost to SCE, because SCE is acting as an agent
for these transactions. Further, amounts billed to ($2.5 billion in 2004, $1.7 billion in 2003 and

$1.4 billion in 2002) and collected from SCE’s customers for these power purchases, CDWR
bond-related costs (effective November 15, 2002) and direct access exit fees (effective January 1, 2003)
are being remitted to the CDWR and are not recognized as revenue to SCE.

Stock-Based Compensation

SCE has stock-based compensation plans, which are described more fully in Note 7. SCE accounts for
those plans using the intrinsic value method. ‘Upon grant, no stock-based compensation cost is reflected
in net income, as all options granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of
the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The following table illustrates the effect on net
income if SCE had used the fair-value accounting method.

In millions Year ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002

Net income available

for common stock, as reported $ 915 $922 - $1,228
Add: stock-based compensation expense using

the intrinsic value accounting method — net of tax 28 7 7
Less: stock-based compensation expense using _

the fair-value accounting method — net of tax 32 9 5

Pro forma net income
available for common stock $ 911 $ 920 $ 1,230
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Supplemental Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss Information

Supplemental information regarding SCE’s accumulated other comprehensive loss is:

In millions o Decertber 31, s 2004 ' 2003
Minimum pensjon llablllty net . _— ' . $ (10) o $ O
Unrealized losses on cash flow hcdges —net , . (7) . (10) o
Accumulated other comprehensive loss - . . e B $(17) ‘$ (19) L

The minimum pvension liability is discussed in Note 7,'Compensation and Benefit Plans.

Unrealized losses on cash flow hedges relate to SCE’s interest rate swap (the swap termmated on
January 5, 2001 but the related debt matures in 2008) ‘The unamortized loss of $7 million (as of
December 31, 2004, net of tax) on the interest rate swap will be amortized over a period ending in 2008.
Approx1mately $2 million, after tax, of the unamomzed loss on this swap will be reclass1ﬁed mto
eammgs durmg 2005, ’

Supplem ental Cash Flows I n fqrhlqtion

SCE supplemental cash flows information is:

In millions Yearended December3l, ' 2004 2003 2002
Cash payments for interest and taxes L o R - L cl
Interest — net of amounts capitalized . - . $.342 .$390 §$ 487.

Tax payments =, . . . , .29 585 1,110

Non-cash investing and financing activities:-

Details of consolidation of varlable mterest entities: _ _
Assets ' S %48 = —
Llabllmes - e o e (537) o= e

Reoffermg of pollutlon -control bonds S N '$ ©196 1 — . ==

Details of pollution-control bonds redemption: o ' ) L
Release of funds held in trust - e 820 - —
Pollution-control bonds redeemed . (20) oot

Details of debt ex"hange o ,
Retirement of senior secured credit facility s — s —
Short-term credit facility utilized Co— 200 0 —

Cashpaid = S S ¢ 10.e) B

Details of long-term debt exchange offer: N S e
Variable rate notes redeemed o _ % —  $(966) ¢ - —
First and refunding mortgage bonds issued S o — -966. . —

Obligation to fund investment in acquisition $ — 8 —

Details of senior secured credit facility transaction:
Retirement of credit facility — —  $(1,650)
Senior secured credit facility replacement — — 1,600

Cash paid on retirement of credit facility — — (50)
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Variable Interest Entities

SCE has variable interests in contracts with certain QFs that contain variable contract pricing provisions
based on the price of natural gas Further, four of these contracts are with entities that are partnerships
owned in part by a related party, EME. These four contracts have 20-year terms. The QFs sell électricity
to SCE and steam to nonrelated parties. Under a new accounting standard, SCE consolidated these four
projects effective’ March 31, 2004. Prior periods have not been restated.

Project . Capacity ~ Termination Date EME Ownership
Kern River 300 MW ~ August 2005 50%
Midway-Sunset - 225 MW , May 2009 - 50%
Sycamore L T300MW o December 2007 ' 50%
Watson 38B5MW December 2007 O 49%

SCE has no investment in, nor obligation to pr'ovide support to, these entities other than its requirement
to make contract payments. Any profit or loss generated by these entities will not effect SCE’s income
statement, except that SCE would be required to recognize losses if these projects have negative equnty m
the future. These losses, if any, would not affect SCE’s liquidity. Any liabilities of these projects are *
non-recourse to SCE.

SCE has no controlling ownership interest in the four entities that have been consolidated under the new
accountmg Interpretation and has no legal or contractual nghts to compel these entities to prov1de ‘
information to SCE. As a result, SCE has no legal, contractual or other right to’design, establish,
maintain or evaluate the effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting for these consolidated
variable interest entities. Accordingly, SCE did not include these variable interest entities in its °
conclusion regarding internal controls over financial reporting, : :

The variable interest entities’ operating costs, instead of purchased power expense, are shown in SCE’s
income statements effective April 1, 2004. Further, SCE’s operating revenue now includes revenue from
the sale of steam by these four projects. The table below shows the effect on SCE’s consolidated
statement of income now that these variable interest entities are consolidated. :

In millions Year ended December 31, | 2004

Operating revenue ., . .. % 285

Fuel 578

Purchased power ) , (669)

Other operation and mati»ntenance o , 68
Depreciation, decommissioning and amortization : ’ 28

Total operating expenses - : 5

Operating income 280 . -
Minority interest . ’ -~ (280) e
Income from continuing operations ' $ —-
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The table below shows the effect on SCE’s consolidated balance sheet now that these varrable mterest
entmes are consolldated .

RN Lo e : B . B
e - A ’ B N T I D J',,DL-'l'-

Inmillions. _ i December3l, . iwco e 2004
»‘:MTASSETS' [P T T B L S R T N £ SRR T AU R ST 3
‘Cash- Co e S e e T T i § 90 e
«‘.‘Accounts recervable net B I 11 PR UM T AU S U S 57 | B AP ST
Other current assets - S b e Tt et 18 o BT b
‘Nonutility property ~ less accumulated provision for deprec1at|on of S519 AR L AL ST A
Deferred charges U un Tl ',':'ev'S' 0Dt
_Total assets $ 539 ’
'LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY .~~~ /"7 /"7 " 00 7 o0
.,'Accounts payable e o et $ _' §2 P
Other current liabilities .=, o T ,;2)|
Long-term debt (5.0%, due2008) T ; SR Y- SR
.. Deferred credits - . e e 120
Minority interest . . P L. 409
Total liabilities and shareholder s equity - RSN RRTTONE '=r.-j$ ;539 R

T

i,r" S PR PO . S . t'-.r;‘.-’:' - T

As noted urider New Accountmg Pr1nc1ples SCE also has’ erght other contracts w1th certam QFs that .
contain variable pricing provisions based on the price 'of natural gas and are potentral 'VIES. SCE mlght '
be considered to be the consolidating entity under the new accounting standard. However, these entities.
are not legally obligated to provide the financial information to SCE that is necessary to determine ~
whether SCE must consolldate these entities. These eight entities have declined to provide SCE with the.
necessary fmancral mformat1on SCE will contmue to attempt to ‘obtain 1nformat10n for these prolects m
order to determme whether they should be consohdated by SCE. The aggregate capacxty dedlcated to,
SCE for these pl‘O_]eCtS is 267 MW, SCE pa1d $166 mrllron in 2004 to these pI‘OJCCtS These amounts are
recoverable in utility customer rates. SCE his no exposure to loss as a result of its involveément with
these projects.

Note 2. Regulatory Matters

CDWR Power Purchases and Revenue Requtrement Proceedmgs o ”

In accordance’ with an emergency order- by the Govemor of Calrfomra the CDWR began making i
emergency power purchases for'SCE’s customers on January 17, 2001; In February 2001, a ‘California -
law was eriacted which'authorized the CDWR to: (1) enter into contracts to purchase ¢électric power and
sell power at cost dlrectly to SCE’s retail’ customers “and (2) issue bonds to finance those electrrcrty
purchases. The CDWR’s total statewide power Charge‘and bond charge reventie requrrements are” -
allocated by the CPUC among the custoriets 6f SCE, Pacific 'Gas and Electric (PG&E) and San Drego
Gas'& Electrrc (SDG&E) (collectrvely, the investor-owned utilities). “Amounts billed to SCE’s’ i
customers for electrié power purchased and sold by the CDWR (approxrmately $2.5 billion in 2004) are
remitted directly to the CDWR and are not recognized as revenue by SCE and therefore have no impact -
on SCE’s eammgs _

In December 2004, the CPUC issued its decision on how the CDWR s power charge revenue requirement
for 2004 through 2013, when the last CDWR contract expires, will be allocated among the investor-"" """
owned utilities. The CPUC rejected a settlement agreement among PG&E, the Utility Reform Network
(TURN), and SCE and which'the ORA supported However, the CPUC’s firial decision adopts key - -
attributes of that settlement agreément. It adopts a cost-follows-contract allocation to éach of the
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investor-owned utilities of the unavoidable portion of costs incurred under CDWR contracts. A previous
CPUC decision allocated the avoidable portion of the costs on a cost-follows-contract basis. Allocating
the avoidable and unavoidable portions on a cost-follows-contract basis provides the investor-owned
utilities the appropriate incentives to operate and administer the contracts that have been allocated to
them. In addition, in order to fairly allocate the total burden of the CDWR contracts among the investor-
owned utilities, the decision adjusts the cost-follows-contract allocation of the total costs (avoidable and
unavoidable) such that the above-market cost burden associated with the contracts is allocated as follows:
44.8% to PG&E’s customers, 45.3% to SCE’s customers, and 9.9% to SDG&E’s customers. The .
CPUC’s December 2004 decision is based on the above market cost analysis that SCE presented in its
initial testlmony in December 2003.

In response to an application filed by SDG&E, the CPUC issued an order granting limited rehearing of
the December 2004 decision. The rehearing permits parties to present alternative methodologies and
updated data for the calculation of above market costs associated with the CDWR contracts. A schedule
has not been adopted for the rehearing, but it is expected to take place in the second quarter of 2005.

SDG&E has also filed a petition for modification of the decision urging the CPUC to replace the ad_bpted
methodology with a methodology that would retain the cost-follows-contract allocation of the avoidable
costs, but would allocate the unavoidable costs associated with the contracts: 42.2% to PG&E’s
customers, 47.5% to SCE’s customers, and 10.3% to SDG&E’s customers. Such an allocation would
decrease the total costs allocated to SDG&E’s customers and increase the total costs allocated to SCE'’s
customers. The CPUC is expected to act on the petition in March 2005

CPUC Litigation Settlement Agreement

In October 2001, SCE and the CPUC entered into a settlement of SCE's lawsuit against the CPUC which
sought full recovery of its electricity procurement costs incurred during the energy crisis. A'key element
of the 2001 CPUC settlement agreement was the establishment of a reguldtory balancmg account, called

the Procurement-Related Obligations Account (PROACT), which was fully recovered by August 2003.

Energy Resource Recovery Account Proceedings

In an October 2002 decision, the CPUC established the ERRA as the rate-making mechanism to track and
recover SCE’s: (1) fuel costs related to its generating stations; (2) purchased-power costs related to
cogeneration and renewable contracts; (3) purchased-power costs related to existing interutility and
bilateral contracts that were entered into before January 17, 2001; and (4) new procurement-related costs
incurred on or after January 1; 2003 (the date on which the CPUC transferred back to SCE the
responsibility for procuring energy resources for its customers). SCE recovers these costs on a cost-
recovery basis, with no markup for return or profit. SCE files annual forecasts of the above-described
costs that it expects to incur during the following year. As these costs are subsequently incurred, they
will be tracked and recovered through the ERRA, but are subject to a reasonableness review in a separate
annual ERRA application. If the ERRA overcollection or undercollection exceeds 5% of SCE's prior .
year’s procurement costs, SCE can request an emergency rate adjustment in addition to the annual
forecast and reasonableness ERRA applications. :

ERRA Reasonableness Review for the Period September 1, 2001 through June 30, 2003
On October 3, 2003, SCE submitted its first ERRA feasonableness review applicatien requesting that the
CPUC find its procurement-related operations during the period from September 1, 2001 through

June 30, 2003 to be reasonable. The CPUC’s Office of Ratepayer Advocates (ORA) was allowed to-
review the accounting calculations used in the PROACT mechanism. The ORA recommended
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disallowances that totaled approximately $14 million of.costs recovered through the PROACT
mechanlsm during the period from September : 1 2001 through June 30, 2003. In April 2004, SCE o
reached an agreement with the ORA (subject to CPUC approval) to reduce the PROACT dlsallowances ,
to approximately $4 million. On January 27,2005, the CPUC issued a decision approving the agreement.
The $4 million, which is mainly comprised of ISO grid management charges and employee-related
retraining costs, will be refunded to ratepayers through a credit to the ERRA.. .. :

The January 27, 2005 CPUC decision also provides that SCE’s administration of its procurement
contracts will be subject to reasonableness review under the “reasonable manager” standard. However
the CPUC decision prov1des that the review. of SCE’s daily dispatch of its generation resources will be
subject to a compllance review, not a reasonableness review, and will only include a review of spot -
market transactions in the day-ahead, hour-ahead and real-time markets. The decrslon found that SCE’s
daily drspatch decisions during the record period complred with the CPUC’s standard, and that its -
administration of its contracts was reasonable in all respects. It authorized recovery of amounts paid to
Peabody Coal Company for costs associated with the Mohave mine closing as well as transmission costs
related to serving municipal utilities, and also resolved outstandmg issues from 2000 and 2001 related to
CDWR costs. As aresult of thls decxslon, SCE recorded a pre-tax net regulatory gain of $118 million in
2004. 1"1':? s .3 . Co ?‘.‘T.' i} - N

ERRA Reasonableness Rewew for the Penod July 1, 2003 through December 31 2003 -

On Apnl 1, 2004 SCE submxtted its second ERRA reasonableness revrew applxcatlon requestmg that the
CPUC find its procurement-related operations during the period from July 1, 2003 through December 31,
2003, to be reasonable. In addition, SCE requested recovery of a $10 million reward for Palo Verde
Unit 3 efficient operation and $5 million in electric energy transaction administration costs.

On January .17, 2005, the CPUC issued a decision finding that SCE’s administration of its power
purchase agreements and its daily decisions dlspatchmg its procurement resources were reasonable and
prudent. The decision also found that the revenue and expenses recorded in SCE’s ERRA account during
the record period were reasonable and prudent and approved SCE’s requested recovery of the items .
discussed above. .. . - .

Generation Procurement Proceedings o

SCE resumed power procurement respons1b1ltt1es for its net- short position (expected load requlrements
exceed ‘generation supply) on January 1, 2003, pursuant to CPUC orders and California statutes passed in
2002. The current regulatory and statutory framework requlres SCE to assume limited responsibilities . .
for. CDWR contracts allocated by the CPUC, and provide full power procurement responsibilities on the .
basis of annual short- term procurement plans, long-term resource plans and increased procurement of -
renewable resources. Currently, the CPUC and the, California Energy Commission are working together
to set rules for various aspects of generatron procurement which are described below.

Procurement Plan

Resource Planning Component of the Procurement Plan

On April 1, 2004, the CPUC instituted a resource planning proceeding that, among other things, will .
coordinate consideration of long-term resource plans On July 9, 2004, SCE filed testimony on its -
long-term procurement plan, which mcludes a substantial commitment to cost-effective energy efﬂc1ency
and an advanced load-control program. A CPUC decision approving SCE’s long-term procurement plan
was issued i in December 2004, The decrs10n requrred all long-term procurement to be conducted through
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all-source solicitations; allowed the consideration of debt equivalence in the bid evaluation process; and
required the use of a greenhouse gas adder as a bid evaluation component. The decision also extended
the utilities’ authority to procure longer-term products and lifted the affiliate ban on long-term power
products. SCE’s next long-term procurement plan will be filed in 2006.

Assembly Bill 57 Component of the Procurement Plan

In December 2003, the CPUC adopted a 2004 short-term procurement plan for SCE which established a
target level for spot market purchases equal to 5% of monthly need, and allowed SCE to enter into
contracts of up to five years. Currently, SCE is operating under this approved short-term procurement
plan. To the extent SCE procures power in accordance with the plan, SCE receives full-cost recovery of
its procurement transactions pursuant to Assembly Bill 57. Accordingly, the plan is referred to as the
Assembly Bill 57 component of the procurement plant.

Each quarter, SCE is required to file a report with the CPUC demonstrating that SCE’s procurement-
related transactions associated with serving the demands of its bundled electricity customers were in
conformance with SCE’s adopted short-term procurement plan. SCE has submitted seven quarterly
compliance filings covering the period from January 1, 2003 through September 30, 2004, including its
third quarter 2004 compliance filing on November 1, 2004. To date, however, the CPUC has only issued
one resolution approving SCE’s first compliance report for the period January 1, 2003 to March 31,
2003. While SCE believes that all of its procurement transactions were in compliance with its adopted
short-term procurement plan, SCE cannot predict with certainty whether or not the CPUC will agree with
SCE’s interpretation regarding some elements.

Resource Adequacy Requirements

Under the framework adopted in the CPUC’s January 22, 2004 decision, all load-serving entities in
California have an obligation to procure sufficient resources to meet their customers’ needs. On
October 28, 2004, the CPUC issued a decision clarifying the January 2004 decision. The October 2004
decision requires load-serving entities to ensure that adequate resources have been contracted to meet
that entity’s peak forecasted energy resource demand and an additional planning reserve margin of
15-17% of that peak load by June 1, 2006. Currently, the decision requires SCE to demonstrate that it
has contracted 90% of its May—September 2006 resource adequacy requirement by September 30, 2005.
As the May-September period approaches, SCE will be required to fill out the remaining 10% of its
resource adequacy requirement one month in advance of expected need. The October 28, 2004 decision
also clarified that although the first compliance filing will only cover May-September 2006, the 15-17%
planning reserve margin is a year-round requirement. In its October 2004 decision, the CPUC also
decided that long-term CDWR contracts allocated to the investor-owned utilities during the 2001 energy
crisis are to be fully counted for resource adequacy purposes, and that deliverability standards developed
during subsequent phases will be applied to such contracts. These deliverability standards, as well as a
wide range of other issues, including scheduling and load forecasting, will be addressed in a separate
phase of the proceeding which is expected to be completed by mid-2005. SCE expects to meet its
resource adequacy requirements by the deadlines set forth in the decision.

Avoided Cost Proceeding

SCE purchases electric energy and capacity from various QFs pursuant to contracts that provide for
payment at avoided cost, as determined by the CPUC. On April 22, 2004, the CPUC opened a
rulemaking to develop, review and update methodologies for determining avoided costs, including the
methodologies SCE uses to pay its QFs. Among other things, the rulemaking is to consider modifications
to the current methodology for short-run avoided cost energy pricing and the current as-available
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capacity pricing. .The rulemaking also proposes to develop a long-run avoided cost pricing methodology
for QFs. Hearings are scheduled for May 2005. Although the rulemalung may affect the amounts paid to
QFs and customer rates, changes to pricing methodology should not affect SCE’s earnings as such costs
are recovered from ratepayers, subject to reasonableness review. :

Extens_ion of QF Conrrqcts and Néw QF Con{rqcrs -

SCE has 270 power-purchase contracts with QFs, a number of which will expire in the next five years.
On September 30, 2004, the CPUC issued a rulmg requesting proposals and comments on the . .. .
development of a long-term policy for expmng QF contracts and new QFs. SCE filed its response to the
ruling on November 10, 2004, in which it proposed to purchase electricity from QFs by (1) allowing QFs
to compete in SCE’s competitive solicitations; (2) conducting bilateral negotiations for new contracts or
contract extensions with QFs; or (3) offering an energy-only contract at market- based avoided cost
prices. Hearmgs are scheduled for May 2005... ., : = :

Procurement of Renewable Resources [

As part of SCE's resumptlo\n;of, power pr_oeu_lre_ment, and in accordance with a California statute passed in
2002, SCE is required to increase its procurement of renewable resources by at least 1% of its annual
electricity sales per year so that 20% of its annual electricity sales are procured from renewable resources
by no:later than December 31, 2017. . At year-end 2004, SCE obtained approximately 18% of its power
supplies from renewable resources. Tn June 2003, the CPUC issued a decision adopting prehmmary rules
and guidance on renewable procurement-related issues, including penaltles for noncompliance with
renewable procurement targets. - In June 2004, the CPUC issued two decisions adopting addmonal rules -
on renewable procurement: a.decision adoptmg standard contract terms and conditions and a decision
adopting a market-price methodology.. In July 2004, the CPUC 1ssued a decns1on adopting criteria for the
selection of least cost and best-fit renewable resources. In December 2004 an assigned commissioner’s -
rulmg and scoping-memo was 1ssued establrshmg a schedule for addressmg various renewable C
procurement-related issues that were not resolved by prior rulmgs and decrslon and directing the utllmes
to file renewable procurement plans addressmg thelr 2005 renewable procurement goals and a plan { for .
renewable procurement over the period 2005—2014 SCE’s 2005 renewable procurement plan was flled
on March 7,2005. . . T PR '

SCE recelved bldS for renewable resource contracts in response toa solrcrtatron it made m August 2003
and conducted negotiations with bidders regardmg potential procurement contracts. On March §, 2005, -
SCE filed an advice letter with the CPUC requesting approval of 6 renewable contracts. SCE expects a
CPUC decision on its advice letter by the second quarter of 2005. The procedures for measuring .
renewable procurement are still being. developed by the CPUC. Based upon the current regulatory
framework, SCE anticipates that it will comply, even without new renewable procurement contracts, wrth
renewable procurement mandates through at least 2005.- Beyond 2005, SCE will either need to srgn new
contracts and/or extend existing renewable QF contracts. T el ' . »
CDWR Contract Allocatzon and Operatzng Order

. ,l:t‘-" o s { ' :
The CDWR power-purchase contracts entered.into as a result of the Callfomla energy crisis have been
allocated: ona contract-by-contract ] basrs among SCE PG&E and SDG&E in accordance with a 2002
agent for the CDWR, for _contract,1mplernent_atron ‘Llegal title, f1nanc1_al reportmg and responsrbrlrty f_or_ :
the payment of contract-related bills remain with the CDWR. The allocation of CDWR contracts to SCE
significantly reduces SCE’s residual-net short and also increases the likelihood that SCE will have excess
power during certain periods. SCE has incorporated CDWR contracts allocated to it in its procurement
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plans. Wholesale revenue from the sale of excess power, if any, is prorated between the CDWR and
SCE.

SCE’s maximum annual disallowance risk exposure for contract administration, including administration
of allocated CDWR contracts and least cost dispatch of CDWR contract resources, is $37 million. In
addition, gas procurement, including hedging transactions, associated with CDWR contracts is included
within the cap.

On January 28, 2005, the CPUC opened a new phase of its procurement proceeding to consider the
reallocation of certain CDWR contracts. Evidentiary hearings may be held later this year.

Holding Company Proceeding

In April 2001, the CPUC issued an order instituting investigation that reopened the past CPUC decisions
authorizing utilities to form holding companies and initiated an investigation into, among other things:
(1) whether the holding companies violated CPUC requirements to give first priority to the capital needs
of their respective utility subsidiaries; (2) any additional suspected violations of laws or CPUC rules and
decisions; and (3) whether additional rules, conditions, or other changes to the holding company
decisions are necessary. '

On January 9, 2002, the CPUC issued an interim decision interpreting the CPUC requirement that the
holding companies give first priority to the capital needs of their respective utility subsidiaries. The
decision stated that, at least under certain circumstances, holding companies are required to infuse all
types of capital into their respective utility subsidiaries when necessary to fulfill the utility’s obligation
to serve its customers.” The decision did not determine whether any of the utility holding companies had -
violated this requirement, reserving such a determination for a later phase of the proceedings. On
February 11, 2002, SCE and Edison International filed an application before the CPUC for rehearing of
the decision. On July 17, 2002, the CPUC affirmed its earlier decision on the first priority requirement
and also denied Edison International’s request for a rehearing of the CPUC’s determination that it had
jurisdiction over Edison International in this proceeding. On August 21, 2002, Edison International and
SCE jointly filed a petition in California state court requesting a review of the CPUC’s decisions with
regard to first priority requirements, and Edison International filed a petition for a review of the CPUC
decision asserting jurisdiction over holding companies. PG&E and SDG&E and their respective holding
companies filed similar challenges, and all cases have been transferred to the First District Court of
Appeals in San Francisco.

On May 21, 2004, the Court of Appeal issued its decision in the two consolidated cases, and denied the
utilities” and their holding companies’ challenges to both CPUC decisions. The Court of Appeal held
that the CPUC has limited jurisdiction to enforce in a CPUC proceeding the conditions agreed to by
holding companies incident to their being granted authority to assume ownership of a CPUC-regulated
utility. The Court of Appeal held that the CPUC’s decision interpreting the first priority requirement was
not reviewable because the CPUC had not made any ruling that any holding company had violated the
first priority requirement. However, the Court of Appeal suggested that if the CPUC or any other
authority were to rule that a utility or holding company violated the first priority requirement, the utility
or holding company would be permitted to challenge both the finding of violation and the underlying
interpretation of the first priority requirement itself. On June 30, 2004, Edison International and the
other utility holding companies filed with the California Supreme Court a petition for review of the Court
of Appeal decision as to jurisdiction over holding companies, but they and the utilities did not file a
challenge to the decision as to the first priority issue. On September 1, 2004, the California Supreme
Court denied the petition for review. The Court of Appeal’s decision, as to jurisdiction, is now final.
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The original order instituting the investigation into whether the utilities and their holding companies have
complied with CPUC decisions and applicable statutes remains in effect. However, on February 11,
2005, an administrative law judge ruling was issued which provides that any party to the proceedings that
believes the proceedings should remain open has 30 days to file comments listing matters that remain to -
be decided and explamm‘r why they must be resolved at the CPUC rather than in ‘another forum The
CPUC 1nd1cated that if comments are not recelved in the 30 day time perlod a decision c]osmg the
proceedmg will be prepared for CPUC cons1deratlon and no further comment will be allowed. At this
time, SCE is not aware whether or not comments have been received or whether the CPUC has taken
further actlon

AIolzaVe Generating Station and Related Ifroceediitgs

On May 17, 2002, SCE filed an application with the CPUC to address certain issues (mainly coal and
slurry-water supply issues) facing any future extended operation of Mohave, which is partly owned by
SCE. Mohave obtains all of its coal supply from the Black Mesa Mine in northeast Arizona, located on .
lands of the Navajo Nation and Hopi Tribe (the Trlbes) This coal is delivered from the mine to Mohave
by means of a coal slurry plpehne which requrres water from wells located on lands belonging to the
Tribes in the mine vicinity.

Due to the lack of progress in negotlatrons W1th the Trrbes and other partles to resolve several coal and
water supply issues, SCE’s application stated that SCE would probably be unable to extend Mohave’s
operation beyond 2005. The uncertainty over a post-2005 coal and water supply has prevented SCE and
other Mohave co-owners from making approxrmate]y $1.1 billion in Mohave-related investments (SCE s
share is $605 million), including the installation of enhanced pollution-control equipment that must be_
put in place in order for Mohave to continue to operate beyond 2005, pursuant to a 1999 consent decree ’
concerning air quality.

On December 2 2004 the CPUC 1ssued a flnal decision on the application. Prlncxpally, the decision:
(1) directs SCE to continue the ongoing negotrauons and other efforts toward resolving the post-2005
coal and water supply issues; (2) directs SCE to conduct a study of potential generation resources that
might serve as alternatives or complements to Mohave including solar generation and coal gasification;
3) provrdes an opportunity for SCE to recover in future rates certain Mohave-related costs that SCE has
already mcurred or is expected to incur by 2006, including certain preliminary engineering costs, water .
study costs and the costs of the study of potentlal Mohave alternatives; and (4) authorizes SCE to
establish a rate-making account to track certam Worker protection-related costs that might be incurred in
2005 in preparation for a temporary or permanent Mohave shutdown after 2005.

In parallel with the CPUC proceedmg, negotratlons have contmued among the relevant partles in an
effort to resolve the coal and water supply i issues. Since November 2004, the parties have engaged i in
negotratrons facilitated by a professional medlator but no final resolution has been reached. In addition,
agencies of the federal govemment are now conductmg both a hydro-geological study and an
environmental review regarding a possxble alternative groundwater source for the slurry water; these
studies, projected to cost approximately $6 million, are being funded by SCE and the other Mohave
co-owners subject to the terms and conditions of a 2004 memorandum of understanding among the
Mohave co-owners, the Tribes and the federal govemment

The outcome of the coal and water negotlatlons and SCE’s application are not expected to 1mpact
Mohave’s operation through 2005, but the presence or absence of Mohave as an available resource
beyond 2005 will impact SCE’s long-term resource plan. The outcome of this matter is not expected to
have a material impact on earnings.
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For additional matters related to Mohave, see “Navajo Nation Litigation™ in Note 10.

In light of the issues discussed above, in 2002 SCE concluded that it was probable Mohave would be shut
down at the end of 2005. 'Because the expected undiscounted cash flows from the plant during the years
2003-2005 were less than the $88 million carrying value of the plant as of December 31, 2002, SCE
incurred an impairment charge of $61 million in 2002. However, in accordance with accounting
standards for rate-regulated enterprises, this incurred cost was deferred and recorded in regulatory assets
as a long-term receivable to be collected from customer revenue. This treatment was based on SCE’s
expectation that any unrecovered book value at the end of 2005 would be recovered in future rates
(together with a reasonable return) through a balancing account mechanism, as presented in its May 17,
2002 application and discussed in its supplemental testimony filed in January 2003.

Wholesale Electricity and Natural Gas Markets

In 2000, the FERC initiated an investigation into the justness and reasonableness of rates charged by -
sellers of electricity in the California Power Exchange and 1SO marl;et‘s. On March 26, 2003, the FERC
staff issued a report concluding that there had been pervasive gaming and market manipulation of both
the electric and natural gas markets in California and on the West Coast during 2000-2001 and
describing many of the techniques and effects of that market manipulation. SCE is participating in
several related proceedings seeking recovery of refunds from sellers of electricity and natural gas who
manipulated the electric and natural gas markets. Under the 2001 CPUC settlement agreement,
mentioned in “CPUC Litigation Settlement Agreement,” 90% of any refunds actually realized by SCE
net of costs will be refunded to customers, except for the El Paso Natural Gas Company settlement
greement dlscussed below.

El Paso Natural Gas Company (El Paso) entered into a settlement agreement with a number of parties
(including SCE, PG&E, the State of California and various consumer class action representatives)
settling various claims stated in proceedings at the FERC and in San Diego County Superior Court that
El Paso had manipulated interstate capacity and engaged in other anticompetitive behavior in the natural
gas markets in order to unlawfully raise gas prices at the California border in 2000-2001. The United
States District Court has issued an order approving the stipulated judgment and the settlement agreement
has become effective. Pursuant to a CPUC decision, SCE will refund to customers amounts received
under the terms of the El Paso settlement (net of legal and consultmg costs) through its ERRA
mechanism. In June 2004, SCE received its first settlement payment of $76 million. Approximately
$66 million of this amount was credited to purchased-power expense, and will be refunded to SCE’s
ratepayers through the ERRA over the next 12 months, and the remaining $10 million was used to offset
SCE’s incurred legal costs. Additional settlement payments totaling approximately $127 million are due
from El Paso over a 20-year period. As a result, SCE recorded a receivable and corresponding regulatory
liability of $65 million in 2004 for the discounted present value of the future payments (discounted at an
annual rate of 7.86%). Amounts El Paso refunds to the CDWR will result in reductions in the CDWR’s
revenue requirement allocated to SCE in proportion to SCE’s share of the CDWR’s power charge
revenue requirement.

On July 2, 2004, the FERC approved a settlement agreement between SCE, SDG&E and PG&E and

The Williams Cos. and Williams Power Company, providing for approximately $140 million in refunds
and other payments to the settling purchasers and others against some of Williams’ power charges in
2000-2001. In August 2004, SCE received its $37 mllllon share of the refunds and other payments under
the Williams settlement.

On April 26, 2004, SCE, PG&E, SDG&E and several California state governmental entities agreed to
settlement terms with West Coast Power, LLC and its owners, Dynegy Inc. and NRG Energy, Inc.
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(collectively, Dynegy). The settlement terms provide for refunds and other payments totaling

$285 million, with a proposed allocatlon to SCE of approxrmately $42 million. The Dynegy settlement
terms were approved by the FERC on Octoher 25 2004 and SCE recerved its $42 million share of the
settlement proceeds in November 2004,

On July 12, 2004, SCE, PG&E, SDG&E and several governmental entities agreed to settlement terms
with Duke Energy Corporatlon and a number of xts affiliates (collectively Duke). The settlement terms
agreed to with the Duke parties provide for refunds and other payments totaling in excess of

$200 million, with a proposed allocation to SCE of approximately $45 million. The Duke settlement ‘was
approved by the FERC on December 7, 2004 and SCE received its $45 million share of the settlement
proceeds in January 2005.

On January 14, 2005, SCE, PG&E, SDG&E and several governmental entities agreed to settlement terms
with Mirant Corporation and a number of its. afflltates (collectively Mirant), all of whom are debtors in a
Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceeding pendmg in Texas. Among other things, the settlement terms provide
for expected cash and equivalent refunds totaling $320 million, of which SCE’s allocated share is
approximately $68 million. The settlement also provides for an allowed, unsecured claim totaling

$175 million in the bankruptcy of one of the Mirant parties, with SCE being allocated approximately

$33 million of the unsecured claim. The actual value of the unsecured claim will be determined as part
of the resolution of the Mirant parties’ bankruptcies. The Mirant settlement was submitted to the FERC
for its approval on January 31, 2005 and was submitted to the Mirant bankruptcy court for its approval on
February 23, 2003.

On November 19, 2004, the CPUC issued a resolution authorizing SCE to establish an Energy Settlement
Memorandum Account (ESMA) for the purpose of recording the foregoing settlement proceeds from
energy providers and allocating them in accordance with the terms of the CPUC litigation settlement
agreement. The resolution accordingly provides a mechanism whereby portions of the settlement
proceeds recorded in the ESMA will be allocated to recovery of SCE’s litigation costs and expenses in
the FERC refund proceedings described above and as a shareholder incentive pursuant to the CPUC
litigation settlement agreement. Remaining amounts for each settlement are to be refunded to ratepayers
through the ERRA mechanism. .In 2004, SCE recorded in the caption “Other nonoperating income” on
the income statement a total of $12 million-as shareholder incentives related to refunds received in 2004.

Note 3. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

SCE’s risk management policy allows the use of derivative financial instruments to manage financial
exposure on its investments and fluctuatlons in mterest rates and commodity prices, but prohibits the use
of these instruments for speculative purposes.

SCE is exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by counterparties. Counterparties are
required to post collateral for certain transactions depending on the creditworthiness of each counterparty
and the risk associated with the transaction. SCE does not expect the counterparties to fail to meet their
obligations. : :

SCE records its derivative instruments on its balance sheet at fair value unless they meet the definition of
a normal purchase or sale. The normal purchases and sales exception requires, among other things, ,
physical delivery in quantities expected to be used or, sold over a reasonable period in the normal course
of business. Gains or losses from changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or a firm -
commitment are reflected in earnings for the meffectlve portion of a designated hedge. For a designated
hedge of the cash flows of a forecasted transaction, the effective portion of the gain or loss is initially
recorded as a separate component of shareholder’s equity under the caption “accumulated other
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comprehensive income,” and subsequently recylassiﬁed into earnings when the forecasted transaction
affects earnings. The ineffective portion of a hedge is reflected in earnings immediately. Hedge _
accounting requires SCE to formally document, designate and assess the effectiveness of hedge
transactions.

SCE enters into contracts for power and gas options, as well as swaps and futures, in order to mitigate its
exposure to increases in natural gas and electricity prxcmg These transactions are pre-approved by the
CPUC or executed in compllance with CPUC-approved procurement plans Hedge accounting is not
used for these transactions. Any fair value changes for recorded derivatives are offset through a
regulatory mechanism; therefore, fair value changes do not affect earnings.

SCE purchases power from certain QFs in which the contract pricing is based on a natural gas index, but
the power is not generated with natural gas. The portion of these contracts that is not eligible for the
normal purchases and sales exception under accounting rules is recorded on the balance sheet at fair
value.

The carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments are:

i

December 31,

2004 . : 2003
Carrying ~ Fair Carrying Fair
In millions Amount Value Amount . Value.
Derivatives:
Interest rate hedges : $ 3 $ 3 $ M $ M
Commodity price assets ‘ 14 - 14 3 3
Commodity price liabilities (12). (12) — —
Other: _
Decommissioning trusts 2,757 2,757 2,530 2,530
DOE decommissioning and decontamination fees (13) - =~ (13) 19) (18)
QF power contracts : (12) (12): (32) (32)
Long-term debt (5,225) . (5,551) (4,121 (4,446)
Long-term debt due within one year (246) . 254) . (371 377)
Preferred stock to be redeemed within one year ) 9) 9) )]
Preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption (139) (140) (141) (139)

Fair values are based on: brokers’ quotes for interest rate hedges, long-term debt and preferred stock;
financial models for commodity price derivatives and QF power contracts; quoted market prices for
decommissioning trusts; and discounted future cash flows for United States Department of Energy (DOE)
decommissioning and decontamination fees.

Due to their short maturities, amounts reported for cash equivalents appfoximate'fair value,
Note 4. Liabilities and Lines of Credit

Almost all SCE properties are subject to a trust indenture lien. SCE has pledged first and refunding
mortgage bonds as security for borrowed funds obtained from pollution-control bonds issued by
government agencies. SCE used these proceeds to finance construction of pollution-control facilities.
SCE has debt covenants that require certain interest coverage, interest and preferred dividend coverage,’
and debt to total capitalization ratios to be met. At December 31, 2004, SCE was in compliance with
these debt covenants.

70




Southern California Edison Company

Debt premium, discount and issuance expenses are deferred and amortized through interest expense over
the life of each issue. ‘Under CPUC rate- makmg procedures, debt reacqursmon expenses are amortized
over the remaining life of the reacquired debt or, if refinanced, the life of the new debt. Cahfomla law .
prohibits SCE from incurring or guaranteemg debt for its nonutrhty affiliates.

In December 1997 $2 5 b11110n of rate reductlon notes were 1ssued on behalf of SCE by SCE Fundmg
LLC, a special purpose entity. These notes were lssued to finance the 10% rate reductlon mandated by
state law. The proceeds of the rate reductlon notes were used by SCE Fundmg LLC to purchase from
SCE an enforceable right known as transition property. Transition property is a current property right
created by the restructuring legislation and a financing order of the CPUC and consists generally of the
right to be paid a specified amount from nonbypassable rates charged to residential and small commercial
customers. The rate reductron notes are being repaid over 10 years through these nonbypassable :
residential and small commercral customer rates, which constitute the transition property purchased by .
SCE Funding LLC. The notes are collaterahzed by the transition property and are not collateralized by,
or payable from, assets of SCE or Edison International. SCE used the proceeds from the sale of the
transition property to retire debt and equity securities. Although, as required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States, SCE Fundmg LLC is consolidated with SCE and the rate .
reduction notes are shown as long-term debt in the consolidated financial statements, SCE Fundmg LLC
is legally separate from SCE. The assets of SCE Funding LLC are not available to creditors of SCE or
Edison International and the transition property is legally not an asset of SCE or Edison International.

Long-term debt is:

In millions December 31, - <. 2004 2003
First and refunding mortgage bonds: ' '

2007 — 2035 (4.65% to 8.00% and variable) $ 2,741 $ 15816
Rate reduction notes: . '

2005 — 2007 (6.38% to 6.42%) - . 739 985
Pollution-control bonds: : S : -

" 2006 - 2031 (2.0% to 7. 2%) ' ’ 1,196 ‘ 71,216
- Bonds repurchased : oo - — (354)
Debentures and notes:

2006 — 2053 (5.06% to 7.625%) ~ - ..+ 812 o 758
.Subordinated debentures: - e R T o s
2044 (8.375%) =0 e v ) T — S 100
-Long-term debt due within one year o L (246) N <72 B
Unamortized debt discount —net - - - ' : an - (29)

Total e C$5225 0 %4121

Note: Rates and'terms a“s‘of Deee’mberzB‘l A 2004

Long-term debt maturities and smkmg-fund requlrements for the next five years are: 2005 - .
$246 million; 2006 — $927 mllllon 2007 $1 4 billion; 2008 $54 million; and 2009 - $219 mllllon :

At December 31, 2004 and 2003 SCE had a credit line with a limiit of $700 million. At Decerhber'Sl 12004,
SCE had $602 million in available credit under its credit line. The outstanding amount and weighted-
average interest rate, respectively, for short-term debt was $88 mrlllon at2. 48% for December 31, 2004 and
$200 million at 2.83% for December 31, 2003. ‘
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In January 2005, SCE issued $650 million ‘of first and refundmg mortgage bonds. ‘The issuance mcluded .
$400 million of 5% bonds due in 2016 and $250 million of 5.55% bonds due in 2036. ‘The proceeds were ’
used to redeem $650 million of 8% ﬁrst and refundmg mortgage bonds due February 2007 e S

In compliance with a new accounting standard, effective July I, 2003, SCE reclassified its preferred
stock subject to mandatory redemption to the liabilities sectlon of its consolidated balance sheet.’ Thls
item was previously ¢lassified between liabilities and equ1ty D1v1dend payments on preferred Securities
subject to mandatory redemptlon are included as interest expense effectlve July l 2003 The new o
standard did not allow for prlor per1od restatements S R

SCE has 12 mrlhon authorized shares of preferred stock subject to mandatoryredemptron Shares of
SCE’s preferred stock have liquidation and dividend preferences over shares of SCE’s common stock.
Mandatorily redeemable preferred stock'is subject to sinking- fund provrsmns ‘When preferred shares are
redeemed, the premlums pa1d if any, are charged to expense ,
Preferred stock redemption requirements for the next fivé years are: 2005 -$9 mrlhon, 2006 -
$9 mllhon 2007 $74 mxlhon 2008 $56 mrlhon and 7009 none :

Cumulative preferred stock subject to mandatory redemptron is:

Dollars in millions, except per-share amounts December 31, 2004 2003
December 31, 2004
- Shares Redemption. R
Outstanding Price . . . . L
$100 par value: > S S ;
6.05% Series 673,800 $100.00 $ 67 $ 69
7.23 807,000 100.00 o 811 -8l
Preferred stock to be redeemed within one year 9) 9

Total $139° $ 141

The 6.05% Series preferred stock has mandatory sinking funds, requiring SCE to redeem at least ;: .
37,500 shares per year from 2003 through 2007, and 562,500 shares in 2008,  SCE is allowed to credit
previously repurchased shares against the mandatory sinking fund provisions. In 2004, SCE redeemed
20,000 shares of 6.05% Series preferred stock. In 2003, SCE redeemed 56,200 shares of 6.05% Series
preferred stock. At December 31, 2004, SCE had 1,200 of prev1ously repurchased, but not retired, shares
available to credit against the mandatory sinking fund provrsrons L

e .

The 7.23% Series preferred stock also has mandatory sinking funds, requiring SCE to redeem at least
50,000 shares per year from 2002 through 2006, and 750,000 shares in 2007. However, SCE is allowed
to credit previously repurchased shares against the mandatory sinking fund provisions. Since SCE had
previously repurchased 193,000 shares of this series, no shares were redeemed in the last three years Atf_
Decémbér 31, 2004, SCE had 43,000 of previously repurchased but not retired, shares available to credit
against the mandatory sml\mg fund provrslons

In 2002, SCE redeemed 1,000, OOO shares of 6.45% Series preferred stock SCE d1d ot issue any
preferred stock in the last three years.
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Note 5. Preferred Stock Not Subject to Mandatory Redemption . ... . ..: . g e-iv

SCE's authorized shares are: $25 cumulative preferred = 24 million and preference — 50 million.: Shares
of SCE’s preferred stock have liquidation and dividerid preferences over shares of SCE’s common stock
All cumulative preferred stock is redeemable. When preferred shares are redeemed, the premrums pald
if any, are charged to common equity. No preferred stock not subject to mandatory redemptlon was ,’

I
issued or redeemed in the last three years. N B
i fetiboe er o

Cuml'glative preferred stoc}: not subject to mandatory redemption is: , - [‘:
) N i RIS
Dy . 1y AN
Doll4rs in millions, except per-share amounts December 31, 20045
T L T s T December 31,2004 T
oo o s s e ==s Qhares™ 7 Redemption”T T T e r" e e
o z¢: = - Outstanding Price R

$25 par value: at e e b
4.08% Series fre 1,000,000 $25.50 Cr $528% 8 250 G
424 N e 1,200,000 25.80 30 .,..»:v:.-f30:".1
4.32 i3 1,653,429 28.75 41 oo 41
478 i LA 1,296,769 25.80 33 33 0
Total .. .+ 7 PN o¥ $ 129

fab e e el i 5
Note 6. Income Taxes Ut MR B e e
ITAN el co s s e by

SCE and its subsidiaries are included in Edison International’s consolidated fedéral income tax ‘and
combined state franchise tax returns. Under an income tax allocation agreement approved by the CPUC,
SCE’S tax 11ab111ty is computed as 1f it filed a separate retum

» . .
. 8 LN s ﬂ..' T X et T Lo ey e
UMW ST TR LI L T RS EREP S 100 RIS v DRI L S N S DR TS AR DR S A

Income tax expense includes the current tax liability from operations and the change in deferred income
taxes during the year. Im{estment tax credits are amortized over the lives of the related properties.
A1

-

The components of i mcome tax expense from contmumg operattons by locatlon of taxmg _]UI‘]SdlCthIl are:

In mrlltons .C.7 Year ended December 31, 2004 - 2003“"-’1 2002'
Current: P e .!f b
Federal o $ (88) S 408 7 - "'$-'990
Staté g & 46 - N 174 AR AT S 273
B L S S U A SISO (42) - 58D e "‘1‘,*2‘63";'

e

DT L LU e U
Federal 425 (134) (504)
oState s xiiz  n vy e, 88 o (60) ) e (A1)
i ,,,<,?48()-, """';=(194)s ot 621)
'*~$"'438 s 388 s 642 L

CnV et pee ngarrie ape e Tt e

RO
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The components of the net accumulated deferred income tax liability are:

In millions B December 31, 2004 2003
‘Deferred tax assets: -

Accrued charges $ 200 $ 334
Investment tax credits ' 64 68
Property-related 196 243
Regulatory balancing accounts 321 204
Unrealized gains or losses 392 365
Decommissioning .. 84 106
Other ' 245 199
Total $ 1,502 $ 1,519
Deferred tax liabilities:

Property-related $ 2,915 $ 2,762
Capitalized software costs 164 160
Regulatory balancing accounts 710 360
Unrealized gains and losses 289 262
Decommissioning 31 30
Other 124 108
Total - $ 4,233 $ 3,682
Accumulated deferred income taxes — net $ 2,731 $ 2,163
Classification of accumulated deferred income taxes: ,
Included in deferred credits $ 2,865 $ 2,726
Included in current assets 134

563

The federal statutory income tax rate is reconciled to the effective tax rate from cbntinuing operations

as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002
Federal statutory rate o 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Tax audit adjustments (7.3) (2.8) (1.9)
Resolution of FERC rate case — (5.9) —_
Property-related . 0.4 0.1 0.4
Transition costs — — 4.5)
State tax — net of federal deduction 4.8 6.0 54 .
Other ' ’ , (0.7) (1.9) 0.4)
Effective tax rate ‘ 32.2% 30.5% 34.0%

The composite federal and state statutory income tax rate was 40.37% for 2004, and 40.551% for 2003
and 2002. The lower effective tax rate of 32.2% realized in 2004 was primarily due to adjustments to tax
liabilities relating to prior years, property-related flow-through items, and other property-related =
adjustments. The lower effective tax rate of 30.5% realized in 2003 was primarily due to the resolution
of a FERC rate case and recording the benefit of a favorable resolution of tax audit issues. The lower
effective tax rate of 34.0% realized in 2002 was primarily due to reestablishing a tax-related regulatory
asset due to implementation of the utility-retained generation decision and recording a benefit of a

favorable settlement of tax audits.
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As a matter of course, SCE is regularly audited by federal and state taxing authorities. For further . .-
discussion of this matter, see “Federal Income Taxes” in Note 10.

Note 7. Compensation and Benefit Plans =~~~ R
Empflo}e'e Savings I;lan »

SCE hasa 401(k) defined contribution savings plan designed to supplement employees’ retrrement '
income. The plan recelved employer contributions of $37 million in 2004, $33 million in 2003 and
$30 mrlllon in 2002.

Pens:on Plans and Postretlrement Beneﬁts Other Than Penswns e TR E L P

B E R e e

Penswn Plins =~

Defined benefit pension plans (some with cash balance features) cover employé'lés"'meetmg' minimum
service requirements. SCE recognizes pension expense for its nonexecutive plan as calculated by the
actuarlal method used for ratemakmg

At December 31, 2004‘and December _31. 2003, the accumulated benefit obligations of the executive
pension plans exceeded the related plan assets at the measurement dates. In accordance with accounting -
standards, SCE’s balance sheets include an additional minimum liability, with corresponding charges to
intangible assets and shareholder’s equity (through a charge to accumulated other comprehensive .
income). The charge to accumulated other comprehenswe income would be restored through
shareholder s equity in future perlods to the extent the fa1r value of the plan assets exceed the o
accumulated benefit obligation:- ' :

The expected contributions (all by the employer) are approximately $38 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005. This amount is subject to change based on, among other thmgs the 11m1ts
established for federal tax deductibility. «

SCE uses a December 31 measurement date for all of its plans. The fair value of plan assets i
determined by market value. o
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Information on plan assets and benefit obligations is shown below:

In millions Year ended December 31, 2004 2003
Change in projected benefit obligation ' '

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 2,809 $ 2,550
Service cost 86 79
Interest cost . 162 162
Amendments 22 —
Actuarial loss 106 | 148 .
Benefits paid (152) (130)
Projected benefit obligation at end of year - - : $ 3,033 $ 2,809
Accumulated benefit obligation at end of year $ 2,627 S 2,424
Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 2,779 $ 2,281
Actual return on plan assets ' 316 594
Employer contributions 38 34
Benefits paid (152) (130)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 2,981 $ 2,779
Funded status ' $ (52) $ @0
Unrecognized net loss 105 111
Unrecognized transition obligation S | 6
Unrecognized prior service cost 91 84
Recorded asset ' ' $ 145 S 171
Additional detail of amounts recognized in balance sheets: '

Intangible asset . , $ 2 $ 3
Accumulated other comprehensive income . (16) (16)

Pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation
in excess of plan assets:

Projected benefit obligation $ 77 $ 78
Accumulated benefit obligation 61 60
Fair value of plan assets — —
Weighted-average assumptions at end of year:

Discount rate 5.5% 6.0%
Rate of compensation increase 5.0% 5.0%
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2004 2003 2002

In millions ' Year ended December 31,

Service cost -$ 86 .- $ 79. 0§ 69
Interest cost 162 . .« 162 158 . .
Expected return on plan assets 2o01) = - .(187) Y (224) =
Special termination benefits — 3 —
Net amortization and deferral 22 34 - 21
Expense under accounting standards 69 91 24
Regulatory adjustment — deferred (260) 44 18
Total expense recognized $ 43 $ 47 $ 6
Change in accumulated other comprehensive income $ — - 5. 9
Weighted-average assumptions: o
Discount rate 6.0% 65% - 7.0%
Rate of compensation increase 5.0% 50% - 5.0%
Expected return on plan assets

7.5% 8.5% . 8.5%

The following benefit pa‘ym’ents, which reflect expected future service, are expected to ‘bAe paid: - -

In millions Year ended December 31,
2005 $ 207
2006 220 ’
2007 - - 234
2008 7248 -
2009 258 . :
2010-2014 1438 . .
Total $:2,605 .
Asset allocations are: S
’ K Target for . December 31,
» 2005 2004 - : 2003
United States equity 45% 7 4T%  46% "
Non-United States equity 25" . 25 " 26
Private equity 4 2 3
Fixed income 26 26 25

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions

Employees retiring at or after age 55 with at least 10 years of service are eligible for postretirement

health and dental care, life insurance and other benefits.

On December 8, 2003, President Bush signed the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and
Modernization Act of 2003. The Act authorized a federal subsidy to be provided to plan sponsors for
certain prescription drug benefits under Medicare. SCE adopted a new accounting pronouncement for
the effects of the Act, effective July 1, 2004, which reduced SCE’s accumulated benefits obligation by
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$116 million upon adoption. SCE’s 2004 expense decreased by approximately $8 million as a result of

the subsidy.

The eﬁ(pected contributions (all by the employer) to the postretirement benefits other than pensions trust
are $76 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. This amount is subject to change based on,

among other things, the limits established for federal tax deductibility.

SCE uses a December 31 measurement date. The fair value of plan assets is determined by market value.

Information on plan assets and benefit obligations is shown below:

In millions Year ended December 31, 2004 2003
Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 2,137 $ 2,103
Service cost 40 42
Interest cost 123 122
Amendments 28 (622)
Actuarial loss (gain) (88) 581
Benefits paid 94 (89)
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 2,146 S 2,137
Change in plan assets .

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 1,389 $ 1,072
Actual return on plan assets 145 291
Employer contributions 25 115
Benefits paid (94) (89)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 1,465 $ 1,389
Funded status $ (681 S (748)
Unrecognized net loss 841 1,027
Unrecognized prior service cost (285) (342)
Recorded liability $ (12%) S (63)
Assumed health care cost trend rates:

Rate assumed for following year 10.0% 12.0%
Ultimate rate 5.0% 5.0%
Year ultimate rate reached 2010 2010
Weighted-average assumptions at end of year:

Discount rate 5.75% 6.25%
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Expense components are:

In millions | Year ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002
Service cost - SN $ 40 $ 42 S 42
Interest cost 123 122 133
Expected return on plan assets (96) (89) 93)
Special termination benefits — S T C—
Amortization of unrecognized prior service costs (29) (20) —
Amortization of unrecognized loss ’ BRI 49 52 - 10
Amortization of unrecognized transition obllgatlon — 9 ‘ 27
Total expense $ 87 $ 117 $ 119
Assumed health care cost trend rates: : : o

Current year 12.0% 9.75% 10.5%
Ultimate rate , o 5.0% 5.0% - 5.0%
Year ultimate rate reached 2010 2008 2008
Weighted-average assumptions: " o
Discountrate .~ . . L : 6.25% 6.4% - - 7.25%

Expected return on plan assets -~ : ' 7.1% - 82% - 82%

Increasing the health care cost trend rate by one percentage point would increase the accumulated .
obligation as of December 31, 2004 by $307 million and annual aggregate service and interest costs by
$27 million. Decreasing the health care cost trend rate by one percentage point would decrease the
accumulated obligation as of December 31, 2004 by $249 million and annual aggregate service and
interest costs by $21 million.

The following benefit payments are expected to be paid:

In millions Year ended December 31,
2005 | o | $ 106 |
2006 — S 104
2007 | T 111
2008 F 111
2009 118
2010-2014 668

Total $ 1,218

Asset allocations are:

Target for _ December 31,
, 2005 2004 2003
United States equity | - 64% - 64% 64%
Non-United States equity - , S 16 .. 14 . 13 .

Fixed income - - S 20 : 22 23

Description of Pension and Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions Investment Strategies

The investment of plan assets is overseen by a fiduciary investment committee. Plan assets are invested
using a combination of asset classes, and may have active and passive investment strategies within asset
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classes. SCE employs multiple investment management firms. Investment managers within each asset
class cover a range of investment styles and approaches. Risk is controlled through diversification
among multiple asset classes, managers, styles and securities. Plan, asset class and individual manager
performance is measured against targets. SCE also monitors the stability of its investments managers’
organizations.

Allowable investment types include:

United States Equity: Common and preferred stock of large, medium, and small companies which are
predominantly United States-based.

Non-United States Equity: Equity securities issued by companies domiciled outside the United States
and in depository receipts which represent ownership of securities of non-United States companies.

Private Equity: Limited partnerships that invest in non-publicly traded entities.

Fixed Income: Fixed income securities issued or guaranteed by the United States government,

non United States governments, government agencies and instrumentalities, mortgage backed securities
and corporate debt obligations. A small portion of the fixed income position may be held in debt
securities that are below investment grade.

Permitted ranges around asset class portfolio weights are plus or minus 5%. Where approved by the
fiduciary investment committee, futures contracts are used for portfolio rebalancing and to approach fully
invested portfolio positions. Where authorized, a few of the plan s investment managers employ limited
use of derivatives, including futures contracts, options, options on futures and interest rate swaps in place
of direct investment in securities to gain efficient exposure to markets. Derivatives are not used to
leverage the plans or any portfolios.

Determination of the Expected Long-Term Rate of Return on Assets for United States Plans

The overall expected long term rate of return on assets assumption is based on the target asset allocation
for plan assets, capital markets return forecasts for asset classes employed, and active management
excess return expectations. A portion of postretirement benefits other than pensions trust asset returns
are subject to taxation, so the expected long-term rate of return for these assets is determined on an
after-tax basis.

Capital Markets Return Forecasts

The estimated total return for fixed income is based on an equilibrium yield for intermediate United
States government bonds plus a premium for exposure to non-government bonds in the broad fixed
income market. The equilibrium yield is based on analysis of historic data and is consistent with
experience over various economic environments. The premium of the broad market over United States
government bonds is a historic average premium. The estimated rate of return for equity is estimated to
be a 3% premium over the estimated total return of intermediate United States government bonds. This
value is determined by combining estimates of real earnings growth, dividend yields and inflation, each
of which was determined using historical analysis. The rate of return for private equity is estimated to be
a 5% premium over public equity, reflecting a premium for higher volatility and illiquidity.
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Active Management Excess Return Expectations . |

For asset classes that are actively managed, an | excess return premium is added to the capital market
return forecasts discussed above.

Stock-Based Compensation

Under various plans, SCE may grant stock OpthIlS at exercise prices equal to the market price at the grant
date and other awards based on Edison International common stock to directors and certain employees
Optlons generally expire 10 years after the grant date and vest over a period of up to five years, with - .
expense accruing evenly over the vesting perlod Edison International has approx1mately 14 million
shares remaining for future issuance under equlty compensation plans.

Most EdlSOIl Intematxonal stock options 1ssued prior to 2000 accrue dividend equivalents, subject to
certain performance criteria. The 2003 and 2004 options accrue dividend equivalents for the first five
years of the option term. Unless deferred, dividend equivalents accumulate without interest.

The fair value for each option granted, reflecting the basis for the pro forma disclosures in Note 1, was
determined as of the grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The following assumptions
were used in determining fair value through the model

December 31, 2004 2003 2002
Expected years until exercise . 9-10. 10 7-10
Risk-free interest rate 4.0% - 4.3% 3.8% -4.5% 4.7% — 6.1%
Expected dividend yield 2.7% - 3.7% 1.8% 1.8%

Expected volatility 19% - 22% 44% - 53% 189 — 54%

A summary of the status of Edison International stock options is as follows:

Weighted-Average

Share Exercise Fair Value
Options Price At Grant
Outstanding, Dec. 31, 2001 . 5,256,581 $23.70
Granted . 1,769,017 1854  $7.86
Expired (138,899) 24.88
Forfeited (73,651) 21.04
Exercised (2,250) 15.26
OQutstanding, Dec. 31, 2002 6,810,798 $22.37
Granted 2,076,070 12.41 $7.34
Expired (115,612) 22.98
Forfeited (59,473) 15.34
Exercised (156,697) 18.71
Outstanding, Dec. 31, 2003 8,555,086 $20.06
Granted 2,476,820 21.98 $6.61
Expired (509) 16.23
Forfeited (79,536) 16.83
Exercised (1,589,948) 18.20
Outstanding, Dec. 31, 2004 9,361,913 $20.91
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A summary of stock options outstanding at December 31, 2004 is as follows:

Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted o
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average ‘ Average
Range of Number Years of Exercise Number Exercise
Exercise Prices ~of Options:  Contractual Life Price of Options Price
$ 8.90-$12.99 2,004,689 8 $12.19 489,038 $12.07
$13.00-$18.99 1,762,799 6 $18.23 896,330 - $1795
$19.00-$29.09 5,594,425 6 $24.87 3,161,343 $27.11
6 $20.91 4,546,711 $23.69

Total 9,361,913

The number of options exercisable and their weighted-average exercise pnces at December 31, 2003 and
2002 were 4,845,967 at $24.06 and 4,160,675 at $24.23, respectively.

Performance shares were awarded to executives in J anuary 2002, January 2003 and January 2004 and
vest at the end of December 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectlvely The number of common shares paid out
from the performance share awards depends on the performance of Edison International common stock
relative to the stock performance of a specified group of companies. Performance share values are
accrued ratably over the vesting period based on the value of the underlying Edison International
common stock. The number of performance shares granted and their weighted-average grant-date fair
value for 2004, 2003 and 2002 were 178,684 at $21 94, 293,497 at $12.33, and 218,248 at $15. 20
respectively.

In November 2001, deferred stock units were issued in exchan'ge for stock optiohs granied in 2000.
The deferred stock units vest at a rate of 25% per year over four years.

See Note | for SCE’s accounting policy and expenses related to stock-based compensation.
Note 8. Jointly Owned Ultility Projects
SCE owns interests in several generating stations and transmission systems for which each participant

provides its own financing. SCE’s share of expenses for each project is included in the consolidated
statements of income.
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SCE’s investment in each project as of ]}December 31,2004 is:

Investment Accumuléted oL
L - S o in . . Depreciationand _ Ownership
In millions ; / " Facility Amortization .. Interest

- Transmission systems: , . REETEN , R Cos

Eldorado R $ .48 $ 16 . ~60%
Pacific Intertie . - R 305 - 80 . -~ -50 .
Generating statlons . : o : K .
Four Comers Units 4 and 5 (coal) 497 ; 395 .. . . . 48
Mohave (coal) 347 262 56
Palo Verde (nuclear) - - < -1,679 - 1,459 16
San Onofre (nuclear) . - - 4420 13,943 _ 75

Total = . o +$ 7,296 - $ 6,155

RSN

A portion of Mohare, San Onofre énd‘P'z_ﬁo,Verde is included in regulatory assets on the:—:
. - balance sheet. See Notes 1 and 2. ‘

Note 9. Commitments
Leases

Operating lease expense was $17 million in 2004, $15 million in 2003 and $16 million in 2002. SCE’s
lease expense is primarily for vehicles; the leases have varying terms, provisions and expiration dates..

In accordance with an accounting standard, certain power contracts in which SCE takes virtually all of
the power from specific power plants are classified as operating leases.- Estimated remaining -
commitments for noncancelable leases (prlmarlly for power purchases in 2005.and 2006) at .

December 31, 2004 are: . .

’ Inmllllons Year. ended December 31 ,
2005 T o S . § .48
2006 . S e . 45
.2007. o R : 9
2008 i - .8
2009 5
Thereafter . T T T 9

NuclearDecommtsswnmg , Loy

As aresult of an accountmg standard adopted m 2003 'SCE recorded the fair value of its 11ab111ty for
ARO, pnmanly related to the decomm1ssxonmg of its nuclear power facilities. At that time, SCE
adjusted its nuclear decommissioning obligation, capltahzed the initial costs of the ARO into a nuclear-
related ARO regulatory asset, and also recorded an ARO regulatory liability as a result of timing
differences between the recognition of costs recorded in accordance with the standard and the recovery
of the related asset retirement costs through the rate-making process. SCE has collected in rates amounts
for the future costs of removal of its nuclear assets, and has placed those amounts in independent trusts.
The fair value of decommissioning SCE’s nuclear power facilities is $2.2 billion as of December 31, -
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2004, based on site-specific studies performed in 2001 for San Onofre and Palo Verde. Changes in the
estimated costs, timing of decommissioning, or the assumptions underlying these estimates could cause
material revisions to the estimated total cost to decommission in the near term. SCE estimates that it will
spend approx1mately $11.4 billion through 2049 to decommission its nuclear facilities. This estlmate is
based on SCE’s current-dollar decommissioning cost methodology used for rate-making purposes,
escalated at rates ranging from 1.1% to 10.0% (depending on the cost element) annually:* These costs are
expected to be funded from independent decommissioning trusts, which effective October 2003 receive
contributions of approximately $32 million per year. SCE estimates annual after-tax earnings on the
decommissioning funds of 3.7% to 6.5%. If the assumed return on trust assets is not earned, it is’
probable that additional funds needed for decommissioning will be recoverable through rates.

Decommissioning of San Onofre'Unit 1 is underway and will be completed in three phases:

(1) decontamination and dismantling of all structures and some foundations; (2) spent fuel storage .
monitoring; and (3) fuel storage facility dismantling, removal of remaining foundations, and site
restoration. Phase one is anticipated to continue through 2008. Phase two is expected to continue until
2026. Phase three will be conducted concurrently with the San Onofre Units 2 and 3 decommissioning
projects. On February 3, 2004, SCE announced that it has discontinued plans to ship the San Ondfre
Unit 1 reactor pressure vessel to a disposal site until such time as appropriate arrangements are made for
its permanent disposal. It will continue to be stored at its current location at San Onofre Unit 1, where it
poses no risk to the public or the environment. This action results in placing the disposal of the reactor
pressure vessel in Phase three of the San Onofre Unit 1 decommissioning project.

All of SCE’s San Onofre Unit 1 decommissioning costs will be paid from its nuclear decommissioning
trust funds, subject to CPUC review.' The estimated remaining cost to decommission San Onofre Unit 1
is recorded as an ARO liability ($154 million at December 31, 2004). Total expenditures for the
decommissioning of San Onofre Unit [ were $360 million through December 31, 2004.

SCE plans to decommission its nuclear generating facilities by a prompt removal method authorized by -
the Nuclear Regulatory Commission. Decommissioning is expected to begin after the plants’ operating ~
licenses expire. The operating licenses expire in 2022 for San Onofre Units 2 and 3, and in 2024, 2026 '
and 2027 for the Palo Verde units. Decommissioning costs, which are recovered through nonbypassable
customer rates over the term of each nuclear facility’s operating license, are recorded as a component of
depreciation expense, with a corresponding credit to the ARO regulatory liability. The earnings impact
of amortization of the ARO asset included within the unamortized nuclear investment and accretion of
the ARO liability, both created under this new standard, are deferred as increases to the ARO regulatory
liability account, with no impact on earnings. -

SCE has collected in rates amounts for the future costs of removal of its nuclear assets, and has
historically recorded these amounts in accumulated provision for depreciation and decomm1ssxon1ng
However, in accordance with recént Securities and Exchange Commission accounting guidance, the”
amounts accrued in accumulated provision for depreciation and decommissioning for nuclear
decommissioning and costs of removal were reclassified to regulatory liabilities:ds of December 31,
2002. Upon implementation of the new accounting standard for AROs, SCE reversed the
decommissioning amounts collected for assets legally required to be removed and récorded the fair value
of this ARO (included in the déeferred credits and other liabilities section of the consolidated balance '
sheet). The cost of removal amounts collected for assets not legally requ:red to be removed remain m
regulatory liabilities as of December 31 2004. o
Decommissioning expense under the rate- makmg method was $125 million in 2004, $118 million in 2003
and $73 million in 2002. The ARO for decommissioning SCE’s active nuclear facilities was $2.0 bllllon
at December 31, 2004 and $1.9 billion at December 31, 2003. o a "
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Decommissioning funds collected in rates are placed in independent trusts, which, together with
accumulated earnings, will be utilized solely for. decommissioning.

TR Gl

Trost investments (at fair V) inelude: " "L T
Inmillions. .~ ... MatrityDates  December 31, 2004 2003
Mumcrpal bonds it s - -2005-2042 - . . %784 $.702-

LSOk e fr e L 1403 1324
United States govemment issues 2005 2033 -0 485y 0 363 10
Corporate bonds 2005 - 2037 41 91
Short-term 2005 cut 44 e 500
Total o . $ 2,757 $2,530

Note Matury e 1 of Decerbir 31, 2004,

Trust fund earnings (based on specific identification) increase the trust fund balance and the ARO
regulatory liability. Net earnings (loss) were $91 million in 2004, $93 million in 2003 and $(25) million,
in 2002. Proceeds from sales of securities (which are reinvested) were $2.5 billion in 2004, $2.2 billion ~
in 2003 and $3.8 billion in 2002. Net.unrealized holding gains were $796 million and $677 million at-
December 31 2004 and 2003, respecttvely Approxlmately 91% of the cumulatrve trust fund
contributions were tax-deductible.

Other Commitments

N ] N R i . ) - I N P
(R vy AT oo . . ¢ St : ' L AN Lo de
'

SCE has fuel supply contracts whrch requrre payment only 1f the fuel is made avarlable for purchase .
SCE has a coal fuel contract that requrres payment of certam fixed charges whether or not coal is .
delivered., ‘ R - . S o

1 PSR DIy S T D [N C

o

1 ,
SCE has pow er- purchase contracts wrth certam QFS (cogenerators and small pow er. producers) and other
power producers These contracts provrde for capacrty payments if | a facrlrty meets certain performance
obligations and energy payments based on actual power supplied to SCE (the energy payments are not
included in the table below). There are no requirements to make debt-service payments. In an effort to
replace higher-cost contract payments with lower-cost replacement power, SCE has entered into ..
purchased power settlements to end 1ts contract obllgatrons with certam QFs. The settlements are
reported as power purchase contracts on the balance sheets :

fad P

Certam commrtments for the years 2005 through 2009 are estrmated below » ‘

. '«~.,___,. PR ETY TERT T
L DS P A

In millions 0005 2006 '-200'7['.."720087‘ 2009

Fuelsupply o o oee . 5173558 865 - $50- $36.
.,~.Purchased power R R e . 898 ... 725 - 648 421 .- ,,--.*394,,,: :
o7 Trge, i ot I R '%; i EN o T . s _ .

PR S AT Tin

SCE has an uncondltronal purchase obllgatron for f1rm transmrssron servrce from another uttllty _
Minimum payments are based, in part on the debt-service requrrements of the provrder whether or not
the transmission line is operable. The contract requires minimum payments of $69 million through 2016
(approximately $6 million per year).
TR TS S UPTE LU P ARG MR R PSS M ST I T H U S SO RS

N [ S e P Y R TILIE SPAS S R A R A IR ; ' [P P
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Indemnity Provided as Part of the Acquisition of Mountainview

In connection with the acquisition of Mountainview, SCE agreed to indemnify the seller with respect to
specific environmental claims related to SCE's previously owned San Bernardino Generating Station,
divested by SCE in 1998 and reacquired as part of the Mountainview acquisition. The generating station
has not operated since early 2001, and SCE retained certain responsibilities with respect to
environmental claims as part of the original divestiture of the station. The aggregate liability for either
party to the purchase agreement for damages and other amounts is a maximum of $60 million. This
indemnification for environmental liabilities expires on or before March 12, 2033. SCE has not recorded
a liability related to this indemnity.

Note 10. Contingencies

In addition to the matters disclosed in these Notes, SCE is involved in other legal, tax and regulatory
proceedings before various courts and governmental agencies regarding matters arising in the ordinary
course of business. SCE believes the outcome of these other proceedings will not materially affect its
results of operations or liquidity.

Environmental Remediation

SCE is subject to numerous environmental laws and regulations, which require it to incur substantial
costs to operate existing facilities, construct and operate new facilities, and mmgate or remove the effect
of past operations on the environment.

SCE records its environmental remediation liabilities when site assessments and/or remedial actions are
probable and a range of reasonably likely cleanup costs can be estimated. SCE reviews its sites and
measures the liability quarterly, by assessing a range of reasonably likely costs for each identified site
using currently available information, including existing technology, presently enacted laws and
regulations, experience gained at similar sites, and the probable level of involvement and financial
condition of other potentially respon51ble parties. These estimates include costs for site investigations,
remediation, operations and maintenance, monitoring and site closure. Unless there is a probable
amount, SCE records the lower end of this reasonably likely range of costs (classified as other long-term
llabllmes) at undlscounted amounts.

SCE’s recorded estimated minimum liability to rémediate its 24 1dent1f1ed sites is $82 million. In third
quarter 2003, SCE sold certain oil storage and pipeline facilities. This sale caused a'reduction in SCE’s
recorded estimated minimum environmental liability. The ultimate costs to clean up SCE’s identified
sites may vary from its recorded liability due to numerous uncertainties inherent in the estimation
process, such as: the extent and nature of contamination; the scarcity of reliable data for identified sites;
the varying costs of alternative cleanup methods; developments resulting from investigatory studies; the
possibility of identifying additional sites; and the time periods over which site remediation is expected to
occur. SCE believes that, due to these uncertainties, it is reasonably possible that cleanup costs could
exceed its recorded liability by up to $123 million. The upper limit of this range of costs was estimated
using assumptions least favorable to SCE among a range of reasonably possible outcomes. In addition to
its identified sites (sites in which the upper end of the range of costs is at least $1 million), SCE also had
30 immaterial sites whose total liability ranges from $4 million (the recorded minimurn liability) to

39 million.

The CPUC allows SCE to recover environmental remediation costs at cértain sites, representing

$27 million of its recorded liability, through an incentive mechanism (SCE may request to include
additional sites). Under this mechanism, SCE will recover 90% of cleanup costs through customer rates;
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shareholders fund the remaining 10%, with the opportunity to recover these costs from insurance carriers
and other third parties. SCE has successfully settled insurance claims with’ all respons1ble carriers. SCE
expects to recover costs incurred at its remaining sites through customer rates. SCE has recordeda
regulatory asset of $55 million for its estlmated minimum env1ronmental cleanup costs expected to be
recovered through customer rates. - e :
SCE’s identified sites include several sites for which there is a lack of currently available information,
mcludmg the nature and magnitude of contammatlon and the extent, if any, that SCE may be held
responsrble for contr1but1ng to any costs mcurred for remedlatmg these sntes Thus no reasonable B
estimate of cleanup costs can be made for these 51tes L

¢ o~

SCE expects to clean up its 1dent1ﬁed sxtes over a perlod of up to 30 years Remed1at10n costs in each of
the next several years are expected to range from $13 mlllxon to $25 mxlhon Recorded costs for 2004
were $14 million.

Based on currently available information, SCE believes it is unlikely that it will incur amounts in excess,
of the upper limit of the estimated range for its identified sites and, based upon the CPUC’s regulatory
treatment of environmental remediation costs, SCE believes that costs ultimately recorded will not, -
materially affect its results of operatlons or ﬁnancral position. There can be no assurance, however that
future developments mcludmg addmonal mformatlon about existing sites or the 1dent1ﬁcauon of new
sites, will not require materral revisions to such estrmates ‘

FederallncbnzéfTaxésv.-, L S 4 R ‘

Edlson Intematlonal has reached a tentatlve settlement w1th the Internal Revenue Serv1ce (IRS) on tax . '
issues and pending affirmative clalms relatmg to its 1991 to 1993 tax. years currently under appeal Thls,
settlement, which should be finalized in 2005, is expected to result in a net earnings benefit for SCE of
approximately $70 million. :

Edison International recelved Revenue Agent Reports from the IRS in August 2002 and m J anuary 2005 .
asserting deﬁc1encres mcludmg det" iciencies asserted agamst SCE in federal corporate income taxes -
w1th respect to audits of its 1994 to 1996 and 1997 to 1999 tax years, respectlvely ‘Many of the asserted
tax deﬁcuencres are, tlmmg dlfferences and therefore, amounts ‘ultimately paid (exclusrve of interest and
penaltres), if any, would beneﬁt SCE as future tax deductions. :

‘.(:-

The IRS Revenue Agent Repor’t for the 1997 to 1999 audlt also asserted defrcrencres w1th respect toa
transactlon entered into by an SCE subsrd1ary Wthh may | be con51dered substant1ally similar to a listed-
transaction descrlbed by the IRS asa contmgent llablllty company.. ‘While Edison Intematlonal mtends to
defend its tax retum pos1t10n w1th respect to this transaction, the tax benefits relatmg to the capital loss
deduct1ons will not be clalmed for fmanc1al accountmg and reportmg purposes until and unless these tax
losses are sustamed ,

R R S e S o
. - sl !

In April 2004, Edison International filed California Franchise Tax amended returns for tax years 1997
through 2002 to abate the possible imposition of new California penalty provisions on transactions that .
may be con31dered as listed or substantrally 51m11ar to llsted transactions described in an IRS notice that
was pubhshed in 2001. These transactlons mclude the SCE subsrdlary contmgent llablhty company -,
transaction descrlbed above Edlson Intematlonal ﬁ]ed these amended returns under protest retamlng its .
appeal rights.
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Investigations Regarding Performance Incentives Rewards

SCE is eligible under its CPUC-approved performance-based ratemaking (PBR) mechanism to eam
rewards or penalties based on its performance in comparison to CPUC-approved standards of customer
satisfaction, employee injury and illness reporting, and system reliability.

SCE has been conducting investigations into its performance under these PBR mechanisms and has
reported to the CPUC certain findings of misconduct and misreporting as further discussed below. Asa
result of the reported events, the CPUC could institute its own proceedings to determine whether and in
what amounts to order refunds or disallowances of past and potential PBR rewards for customer
satisfaction, injury and illness reporting, and system reliability portions of PBR. The CPUC also may
consider whether to impose additional penalties on SCE. SCE cannot predict with certainty the outcome
of these matters or estimate the potential amount of refunds, disallowances, and penalties that may be
required.

Customer Satisfaction

SCE received two letters in 2003 from one or more anonymous employees alleging that personnel in the
service planning group of SCE’s transmission and distribution business unit altered or omitted data in
attempts to influence the outcome of customer satisfaction surveys conducted by an independent survey
organization. The results of these surveys are used, along with other factors, to determine the amounts of
any incentive rewards or penalties to SCE under the PBR provisions for customer satisfaction. SCE
recorded aggregate customer satisfaction rewards of $28 million for the years 1998, 1999 and 2000.
Potential customer satisfaction rewards aggregating $10 million for the years 2001 and 2002 are pending
before the CPUC and have not been recognized in income by SCE. SCE also anticipated that it could be
eligible for customer satisfaction rewards of about $10 million for 2003.

SCE has been conducting an internal investigation and keeping the CPUC informed of its progress. On
June 25, 2004, SCE submitted to the CPUC a PBR customer satisfaction investigation report, which
concluded that employees in the design organization of the transmission and distribution business unit
deliberately altered customer contact information in order to affect the results of customer satisfaction
surveys. At least 36 design organization personnel engaged in deliberate misconduct including alteration
of customer information before the data were transmitted to the independent survey company. Because
of the apparent scope of the misconduct, SCE proposed to refund to ratepayers $7 million of the PBR
rewards previously received and forego an additional $5 million of the PBR rewards pending that are
both attributable to the design organization’s portion of the customer satisfaction rewards for the entire
PBR period (1997-2003). In addition, during its investigation, SCE determined that it could not confirm
the integrity of the method used for obtaining customer satisfaction survey data for meter reading. Thus,
SCE also proposed to refund all of the approximately $2 million of customer satisfaction rewards
associated with meter reading. As a result of these findings, SCE accrued a $9 million charge in the
caption “Other nonoperating deductions” on the income statement in 2004 for the potential refunds of
rewards that have been received.

SCE has taken remedial action as to the customer satisfaction survey misconduct by severing the
employment of several supervisory personnel, updating system process and related documentation for
survey reporting, and implementing additional supervisory controls over data collection and processing.
Performance incentive rewards for customer satisfaction expired in 2003 pursuant to the 2003 general
rate case.

The CPUC has not yet opened a formal investigation into this matter. However, it has submitted several
data requests to SCE and has requested an opportunity to interview a number of SCE employees in the
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design organization. SCE has responded to these requests and the CPUC has conducted interviews of
approximately 20 employees who were disciplined for misconduct.

Employeé Injmj' rznd lll)zess Rept#ting ' . |

In lrght of the problems uncovered wrth the customer satrsfactron surveys SCE is conductmg an
investigation into the accuracy of SCE’s employee injury and illness reportmg ‘The yearly results of
employee injury. and illness reporting to the CPUC are used to determme the amount of the incentive
reward or penalty to SCE under the PBR mechamsm Since the mceptlon of PBR in 1997, SCE has
received $20 million in employee safety mcentnves for 1997 through 2000 and, based on SCE’s records
may be entrtled to an additional $15 million for 2001 through 2003. :

On October 21, 2004 SCE reported to the CPUC and other appropriate regulatory agencres certam N
ﬁndmgs concerning SCE’s performance under the PBR incentive mechanism for injury and 1llness .
reporting. Under the PBR mechanism, rewards and/or penalties for the years 1997 through 2003 were
based upon a total incidént rate, which included two equally weighted measures: Occupatlonal Safety and
Health Administration (OSHA) recordable incidents and first aid incidents. The major issue disclosed in
the investigative findings to the CPUC was that SCE failed to implement an effective recordkeeping
system sufficient to capture all requ1red data for first aid incidents. SCE’s mvestrgatlon also found
reporting maccuracres for OSHA recordable mcrdents but the impact of these inaccuracies did not have a
mater1a1 effect on the PBR mechamsm

As a result of these fmdmgs SCE proposed to the CPUC that it not collect any reward under the
mechanism for any year before 2005, and it retum to ratepayers the $20 mllllon it has already recerved
Therefore 'SCE accrued a $20 mllllon charge in the caption “Other nonoperating deductions” on the
income statement in 2004 for the potentral refund of these rewards. SCE has also proposed to. wrthdraw
the pending rewards for the 2001—2003 trme frames

SCE is taking other remedral action to address the issues ldentrfred mcludmg rev1smg its orgamzatlonal
structure and overall program for env1ronmental health and safety compliance. Additional actions, .
meludrng disciplinary action against spemﬁc employees identified as having commrtted wrongdomg, may
result once the investigation is completed. SCE submitted a report on the results of its investigation to
the CPUC on December 3, 2004. As with the customer satisfaction matter, the CPUC has not yet opened
a formal investigation into this matter. However, SCE anticipates that the CPUC w111 be submrttmg data
requests and seeking add1tlonal mformatlon in the near future.

System Reliability

In hght of the problems uncovered wrth the PBR mechamsms discussed above, SCE is conductmg an’
investigation into the third PBR metric, system relrab111ty Since the inception of PBR payments in 1997,
SCE has received $8 million in rewards and has applred for an additional $5 million reward based on.
frequency of outage data for 2001. For 2002 SCE’s 'data indicates that it earned no reward and mcurred
no penalty. Based on the application of the PBR mechamsm as adopted SCE’s data would result in
penalties of $5 million and $1 million, for 2003 and 2004, respectively. These penaltres have not yet
been assessed. As aresult of SCE’s data and calculations, SCE has accrued a $6 million charge in the -
caption “Other nonoperatrng deductrons on the mcome statement in 2004.

On February 28, 2005, SCE provided its final investigatory report to the CPUC concluding that the
reliability reporting system is working as intended.
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Navajo Nation Litigation

In June 1999, the Navajo Nation filed a complaint in the United States District Court for the District of
Columbia (D.C. District Court) against Peabody Holding Company (Peabody) and certain of its affiliates,
Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District, and SCE arising out of the coal supply
agreement for Mohave. The complaint asserts claims for, among other things, violations of the federal
Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations statute, interference with fiduciary duties and
contractual relations, fraudulent misrepresentation by nondisclosure, and various contract-related claims.
The complaint claims that the defendants’ actions prevented the Navajo Nation from obtaining the full
value in royalty rates for the coal supplied to Mohave. The complaint seeks damages of not less than
$600 million, trebling of that amount, and punitive damages of not less than $1 billion, as well as a
declaration that Peabody’s lease and contract rights to mine coal on Navajo Nation lands should be
terminated. SCE joined Peabody’s motion to strike the Navajo Nation’s complaint. In addition, SCE and
other defendants filed motions to dismiss. The D.C. District Court denied these motions for dismissal,
except for Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District’s motion for its separate
dismissal from the lawsuit.

Certain issues related to this case were addressed by the United States Supreme Court in a separate legal
proceeding filed by the Navajo Nation in the United States Court of Federal Claims against the United
States Department of Interior. In that action, the Navajo Nation claimed that the Government breached its
fiduciary duty conceming negotiations relating to the coal lease involved in the Navajo Nation’s lawsuit
against SCE and Peabody. On March 4, 2003, the Supreme Court concluded, by majority decision, that
there was no breach of a fiduciary duty and that the Navajo Nation did not have a right to relief against the
Government. Based on the Supreme Court’s analysis, on April 28, 2003, SCE and Peabody filed motions to
dismiss or, in the alternative, for summary judgment in the D.C. District Court action. On April 13, 2004,
the D.C. District Court denied SCE’s and Peabody’s April 2003 motions to dismiss or, in the alternative, for
summary judgment. The D.C. District Court subsequently issued a scheduling order that imposed a
December 31, 2004 discovery cut-off. Pursuant to a joint request of the parties, the D.C. District Court
granted a 120-day stay of the action to allow the parties to attempt to resolve, through facilitated
negotiations, all issues associated with Mohave. Negotiations are ongoing and the stay has been continued
until further order of the court.

The United States Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit, acting on a suggestion on remand filed by the
Navajo Nation, held in an October 24, 2003 decision that the Supreme Court’s March 4, 2003 decision
was focused on three specific statutes or regulations and therefore did not address the question of
whether a network of other statutes, treaties and regulations imposed judicially enforceable fiduciary
duties on the United States during the time period in question. The Government and the Navajo Nation
both filed petitions for rehearing of the October 24, 2003 D.C. Circuit Court decision. Both petitions
were denied on March 9, 2004. On March 16, 2004, the D.C. Circuit Court issued an order remanding
the case against the Government to the Court of Federal Claims, which conducted a status conference on
May 18, 2004. As a result of the status conference discussion, the Navajo Nation and the Government
are in the process of briefing the remaining issues following remand. Peabody’s motion to intervene as a
party in the remanded Court of Federal Claims case was denied.

SCE cannot predict with certainty the outcome of the 1999 Navajo Nation’s complaint against SCE, the

impact of the Supreme Court’s decision in the Navajo Nation’s suit against the Government on this
complaint, or the impact of the complaint on the operation of Mohave beyond 2005.
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Southern California Edison Company

Nuclear Insurance

Federal law limits public liability claims from a nuclear incident to $10.8 billion. SCE and other owners
of San Onofre and Palo Verde have purchased the maximum private primary insurance available

($300 million). The balance is covered by the industry’s retrospective rating plan that uses deferred
premium charges to every reactor lrcensee if a nuclear incident at any licensed reactor in the United
States results in claims and/or costs which exceed the primary insurance at that plant site. Federal .
regulations require this secondary level of financial protection. The Nuclear Regulatory Commission
exempted San Onofre Unit 1 from this secondary level, effective June 1994. The maximum deferred
premium for each nuclear incident is $101 million per reactor, but not more than $10 million per reactor
may be charged in any one year for each incident. Based on its ownership interests, SCE could be
required to pay a maximum of $199 million per . nuclear incident. However, it would have to pay no more
than $20 million per incident in any one year. Such amounts include a 5% surcharge if additional funds
are needed to satisfy public liability claims and are subject to adjustment for inflation. If the public
liability limit above is insufficient, federal regulations may impose further revenue-raising measures to
pay claims, including a possible additional assessment on all licensed reactor operators All licensed
operating plants mcludmg San Onofre and Palo Verde are grandfathered under the appllcable law.

Property damage insurance covers losses up. to $500 million, including decontam1nat10n costs atSan .
Onofre and Palo Verde. Decontammat1on llabllrty and property damage coverage exceedmg the primary
$500 million also has been purchased in amounts greater than federal requirements. Additional i insurance
covers part of replacement power expenses durmg an accrdent-related nuclear umt outage. A mutual -
facility covered by the arrangement were to exceed the accumulated funds for these insurance programs
SCE could be assessed retrospective prem1um adjustments of up to $44 mrlhon per year. Insurance
premiums are charged to operating expense. ™ - o

Spent Nuclear Fuel

Under federal law, the United States Department of Energy (DOE) is responsible for the selection and
construction of a facility for the permanent disposal of spent nuclear fuel and high-level radioactive
waste. The DOE did not meet its obligation to begin acceptance of spent nuclear fuel not later than -
January 31, 1998. It is not certain when the DOE will begin accepting spent nuclear fuel from San
Onofre or other nuclear power plants. Extended delays by the DOE have led to the construction of costly
alternatives and associated siting and environmental issues.  SCE has paid the DOE the required one-time
fee applicable to nuclear generation at San Onofre through April 6, 1983 (approximately $24 million,
plus interest). SCE is also paying the required quarterly fee equal to 0. 1¢- -per-kWh of nuclear-generated
electricity sold after April 6, 1983. On January 29, 2004, SCE, as operating agent, filed a complaint °
against the DOE in the United States Court of Federal Claims seeking damages for DOE’s failure to meet
its obligation to begin accepting spent nuclear fuel from San Onofre. The case if currently stayed
pending development in other spent nuclear fuel cases also before the United States Court of Federal
Claims.

SCE has primary responsibility for the interim storage of spent nuclear fuel generated at San Onofre.
Spent nuclear fuel is stored in the San Onofre Units 2 and 3 spent fuel pools and the San Onofre
independent spent fuel storage installation. Movement of Unit 1 spent fuel from the Unit 3 spent fuel
pool to the independent spent fuel storage installation was completed in late 2003. Movement of Unit 1
spent fuel from the Unit 1 spent fuel pool to the independent spent fuel storage installation was
completed in late 2004. Movement of Unit 1 spent fuel from the Unit 2 spent fuel pool to the
independent spent fuel pool storage installation is scheduled to be completed by summer 2005. With
these moves, there will be sufficient space in the Unit 2 and 3 spent fuel pools to meet plant requirements
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through mid-2007 and mid-2008, respectively. In order to maintain a full core off-load capability, SCE is
planning to begin moving Unit 2 and 3 spent fuel into the independent spent fuel storage installation by
late ”006 '

In order to increase on-site storage capacity and maintain core off-load capability, Palo Verde has
constructeda dry cask storage facility. Arizona Public Service, as operating agent, plans to continually
load casks on a schedule to maintain full core off-load capability for all three units.

Note 11. Mountainview Acquisition

On March 12, 2004, SCE acquired Mountainview Power Company LLC, which owns a power plant
under construction in Redlands, California. SCE recommenced full construction of the approximately
$600 million project, which'is expected to be completed in early 2006.

Note 12. Discontinued Operations

On July 10, 2003, the CPUC approved SCE’s sale of certain oil storage and pipeline facilities to Pacific
Terminals LLC for $158 million. In third quarter 2003, SCE recorded a $44 million after-tax gain to
shareholders. In accordance with an accounting standard related to the impairment and disposal of
long-lived assets, this oil storage and pipeline facilities unit’s results have been accounted for as a
discontinued operation in the 2003 financial statements. Due to immateriality, the results of this unit for
2002 have not been restated and are reflected as part of continuing operations. For 2003, revenue from
discontinued operations was $20 million and pre-tax income was $82 million.

Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

2004 2003

In millions Total Fourth Third Second First Total Fourth Third Second First
Operating revenue $8,448 -$1,920. $2,655 $2,176 $1,696 38,854 $1,859 $2,794 $2,386 $1,815
Operating income 2,013 499 682 587 245 1,578 . 293 609 416 260
Net income 921 |, 317 260 243 101 932 223 375 229 105
Net income available for -

common stock 915 315 259 242 100 922 222 374 225 101
Common dividends declared 750 155 150 145 300 945 945 — —_— —

Operating income was restated for prior quarters due to a reclassification of performance share expense from
nonoperating to operating expenses

Totals may not add precisely due to rounding.
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Selected Financial and Operating Data:’ 2000 - 2004

Southern California Edison Company

Dollars in millions 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Income statement data: 7
Operating revenue $8,448 $8854 $8706 $8,126 . $7.870
Operating expenses _ S 6,435 7,276 6,588 ~.3,509 10,529
Purchased-power expenses S 2332 2,786 2,016 3,770 4,687
Income tax (benefit) = - ..438 0 388 642 1,658 (1,022)
Provisions for regulatory adjustment clauses —net . (201) 1,138 1,502 (3,028) © 2,301
Interest expense — net of amounts capitalized 409 457 584 185 . 572
Net income (loss) from continuing operations 921 882 1,247~ 2,408 (2,028)
Net income (loss) L 921 932 1,247 -~ - 2,408 © (2,028)
Net income (loss) available for common stock . ,, 915 = 922 1,228 2,386  (2,050)
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 4.40 3.81 4.21 6.15 %
*less than 1.00 o
Balance sheet data: . »
Assets $23,290 $21,771 $36,058 $22,453 - $15966
Gross utility plant - 17,981 16,991 16,232 . 15982 .. 15,653
Accumulated provision for depreciation ‘ - :
and decommissioning © 4,506 4,386 4,057 7,969 7,834
Short-term debt o - 88 200 — 2,127 -, -1,451
Common shareholder’s equity - -4521 ¢ 4,355 4,384 3,146.. . 780
Preferred stock: TR S X
Not subject to mandatory redemption ~129 129 129 129 129
Subject to mandatory redemption 139 141 147 151 256
Long-term debt 5,225 .. 4,121 4,525 4,739 5,631
Capital structure: R o B
Common shareholder’s equity " 451%  49.8% 477% = 385% & 11.5%
Preferred stock: S S T
Not subject to mandatory redemption 1.3% 1.5% 1.4% 1.6% . 1.9%
Subject to mandatory redemption " '1.4% 1.6% 1.6% 1.9% 3.8%
Long-term debt e B22% 47.1% 49.3% 58.0% 82.8%
Operating data:
Peak demand in megawatts (MW) 20,762 20,136 18,821 17,890 19,757
Generation capacity at peak (MW) 10,207 9,861 9,767 9,802 9,886
Kilowatt-hour deliveries (in millions) 97,273 92,763 79,693 78,524 84,430
Total energy requirement (kWh) (in millions) 78,738 77,158 71,663 83,495 82,503
Energy mix:
Thermal 337%  37.9% 40.2% 32.5% 36.0%
Hydro 4.5% 5.2% 5.0% 3.6% 5.4%
Purchased power and other sources 61.8% 56.9% 54.8% 63.9% 58.6%
Customers (in millions) 4.67 4.60 4.53 4.47 442
Full-time employees 13,454 12,698 12,113 11,663 12,593
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Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of shareholders
will be held on Thursday, May 19,
2005, at 10:00 a.m., Pacific Time, at
the Pacific Palms Conference Resort;
One Industry Hills Parkway, City of
Industry, California 91744.

Corporate Governance Practices
A description of SCE's corporate gov-
ernance practices is available on our
Web site at wuwedisoninvestor.com.
The SCE Board Nominating/
Corporate Governance Committee
periodically reviews the Company’s
corporate governance practices and
makes recommendations to the
Company’s Board that the practices
be updated from time to time.

Stock Listing and Trading
Information

Preferred Stock

SCE's 4.08%, 4.24%,4.32%

and 4.78% Series of $25 par value
cumulative preferred stock are listed
on the American Stock Exchange
under the ticker symbol SCE.
Previous day’s closing prices, when
stock was traded, are listed in the
daily newspapers in the American
Stock Exchange composite table.
The 6.05% and 7.23% " Series

of the $100 par value cumulative
preferred stock are not listed and
are traded over-the-counter.

Shareholder Information

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., which
maintains shareholder records, is
the transfer agent and registrar for
SCE’s preferred stock. Shareholders
may call Wells Fargo Shareowner
Services, (800) 347-8625, between
7 a.m. and 7 p.m. (Central Time),
Monday through Friday, to speak
with a representative (or to use

the interactive voice response

unit 24 hours a day, seven days

a week) regarding:

m stock transfer and name-change
requirements;

m address changes, including
dividend payment addresses;

m electronic deposit of dividends;

m taxpayer identification number
submissions or changes;

m duplicate 1099 and W-9 forms;

m notices of, and replacement of,
lost or destroyed stock certificates
and dividend checks; and

m requests for access to online
account information.

(1) The 7.23% Series will be redeemed on April 26, 2005.

Inquiries may also be directed to:

Mail

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
Shareowner Services Department
161 North Concord Exchange Street
South St. Paul, MN 55075-1139

Fax
(651) 450-4033

Email
stocktransfer@wellsfargo.com

Web Address

wwrw.edisoninvestor.com

Online account information:
e s /Jdreowrzeroﬂl iﬂé’. com
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FORWARD- LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form lO-K contains forward lookmg statements that reﬂect Southem Cahfomla
Edison Company’s (SCE) current expectations and projections about future events based on SCE’s
knowledge of present facts and circumstances and assumptions about future events. Other information -
distributed by SCE that is incorporated in this report, or that refers to or incorporates this report, may also
contain forward-looking statements. In this report and elsewhere, the words *expects,” “believes,”

“anticipates,” “‘estimates,” “intends,” “plans,” “probable,” and variations of such words and similar
expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. .Such statements necessarily involve -
risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated.. Some of
the risks, uncertainties and other i important factors that could cause results to differ, or that otherwise .
could impact SCE are referred to in the first paragraph of the Introduction in the Management’s = -
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (MD&A) that appears in
SCE’s 2004 Annual Report to Shareholders (Annual Report), a copy of which is filed as Exhlbrt 13 to this
Form 10-K, and is mcorporated by reference into Pan II, Item 7 of this report

Additional mfonnatlon about I'lSkS and uncertamtres is contamed throughout thls report in the MD&A and
in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Notes to Financial Statements) that appear in SCE’s .
Annual Report and are incorporated by reference into Part II, Item 8 of this report. Readers are urgedto
read this entire report, including the information incorporated by reference, and carefully consider the risks,
uncertainties and other factors that affect SCE’s business. . The information contained in this report is
subject to change without notice, and SCE is not obligated to publicly update or revise forward-looking . -
statements. Readers should review future reports filed by SCE with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC).

Lo . PARTI . .
Item 1. Busmess Lo ST
SCE was mcorporated in 1909 under the laws of the State of Cahfomra SCE isa publlc utility primarily
engaged in the business of supplying electric energy to a 50,000-square-mile area of central, coastal and
southern California, excluding the City of Los Angeles and certain other cities. - This SCE service territory
includes approximately 430 cities and communities and a population of more than 13 million people. In
2004, SCE’s total operating revenue was derived as follows: 39% commercial customers, 32% residential
customers, 8% other electric revenue, 7% industrial customers, 7% resale sales, 6% public authorities,
and 1% agricultural and other.customers. :At-December-31, 2004, SCE had consolidated assets of
$23.3 billion and total shareholder’s equnty of $4.6 billion. SCE had 13,463 full-tlme employees at .
year-end 2004. Coblmeng M T e e . ,
Information about SCE is available on the internet website maintained by Edison International at
http://www.edisoninvestor.com. SCE makes available, free of charge on that internet website, its Annual
Report on Form 10-K; Quarterly Reports on  Form 10- -Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and amendments
to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securmes Exchange Act of
1934, as soon as reasonably practicable after SCE electronically files such material with, or furnishes it
to, the SEC. Such reports are also avallab]e on the SEC’s internet website at http://www.sec.gov.
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SCE's retall operatlons are subJect to regulauon by the California Pub]rc Utllmes Commission (CPUC).
The CPUC has the authority to regulate, among otherthings, retail rates, issuance of securities, and
accounting practices.. SCE’s wholesale operations are subject to regulation by the Federal Energy




Regulatory Commission (FERC). The FERC has the authority to regulate wholesale rates as well as other
matters, including retail transmission service pricing, accounting practices, and licensing of hydroelectric
projects.

Additional information about the regulation of SCE by the CPUC and the FERC, and about SCE’s -
competitive environment, appears in the MD&A under the headings “Management Overview” and
“Regulatory Matters,” and is incorporated herein by this reference. Also see “Competition” below.

SCE is subject to the jurisdiction of the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission with respect to its
nuclear power plants. United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission regulations govern the granting of
licenses for the construction and operation of nuclear power plants and subject those power plants to
continuing review and regulation. ‘

The construction, planning, and siting of SCE’s power plants within California are subject to the
jurisdiction of the California Energy Commission and the CPUC. SCE is subject to the rules and
regulations of the California Air Resources Board, State of Nevada, and local air pollution control
districts with respect to the emission of pollutants into the atmosphere; the regulatory requirements of the
California State Water Resources Control Board and regional boards with respect to the discharge of
pollutants into waters of the state; and the requirements of the California Department of Toxic Substances
Control with respect to handling and disposal of hazardous materials and wastes. SCE is also subject to
regulation by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (US EPA), which administers federal
statutes relating to environmental matters.  Other federal, state, and local laws and regulations relatmg to
environmental protection, land use, and water rights also affect SCE.

The California Coastal Commission issued a coastal permit for the construction of the San Onofre
Nuclear Generating Station (San Onofre) Units 2 and 3 in 1974. This permit, as amended, requires
mitigation for impacts to fish and the San Onofre kelp bed. California Coastal Commission jurisdiction
will continue for several years due to ongoing implementation and oversight of these permit mitigation -
conditions, consisting of restoration of wetlands and construction of an artificial reef for kelp. SCE has a
coastal permit from the California Coastal Commission to construct a temporary dry cask spent fuel
storage installation for San Onofre Units 2 and 3. The California Coastal Commission also has
continuing jurisdiction over coastal permits issued for the decommissioning of San Onofre Unit 1,
including for the construction of a temporary dry cask spent fuel storage installation for spent fuel from.
that umt

The United States Department of Energy has regulatory authority over certain aspects of SCE’s
operations and business relating to energy conservation, power plant fuel use and disposal, elecmc sales
for export, public utility regulatory policy, and natural gas pricing. ,

SCE is subject to CPUC affiliate transaction rules and compliance plans governing the relationship-
between SCE and its affiliates. Edison International is not a public utility under the laws of the State of
California and is not subject to regulation as such by the CPUC. The CPUC decision authorizing SCE to
reorganize into a holding company structure, however, contains certain conditions, which, among other .
things: (1) ensure the CPUC access to books and records of Edison International and its affiliates which’
relate to transactions with SCE; (2) require Edison International and its subsidiaries to employ accounting
and other procedures and controls to ensure full review by the CPUC and to protect against subsidization
of nonutility activities by SCE’s customers; (3) require that all transfers of market, technological, or
similar data from SCE to Edison International or its affiliates be made at market value; (4) preclude SCE
from guaranteeing any obligations of Edison International without prior written consent from the CPUC;
(3) provide for royalty payments to be paid by Edison International or its subsidiaries in connection with
the transfer of product rights, patents, copyrights, or similar legal rights from SCE; and (6) prevent Edison




International and its subsidiaries from provrdmg cenam facilities and equipment to SCE except through
competttwe btddmg In addition, the decision provides that SCE shall maintain a balanced capital
structure in accordance with prior CPUC decisions, that SCE’s dividend policy shall continue to be
‘established by SCE’s Board of Directors as though SCE were a stand-alone utthty company, and that the
capnal requtrements of SCE, as determined to be necessary to meet SCE’s service obligations, shall be
given first pnorrty by the boards of dlrectors of EdlSOIl Intematlonal and SCE.

* In addition, the CPUC has issued affiliate transaction rules governing the relationships between SCE and
its affiliates, including Edison International and Edison International’s other subsidiaries engaged in
nonutility businesses. SCE has filed compliance plans which set forth SCE’s implementation of the
CPUC’s afﬁhate transaction rules. The rules and comphance plans are intended to maintain separateness |
between utthty and nonutility activities and ensure that utility assets are not used to sub51d|ze the’
activities of nonutlllty afﬁllates -

Contpetttlon ‘  - - ‘ ' S |

Because SCE is an electric utility company operating within a defined service territory pursuant to
authority from the CPUC, SCE faces competition only to the extent that federal and California laws
‘permit ‘other entities to provide electrlcnty and related services to customiers within SCE’s service
temtory ‘California law currently prov1des only limited opportunities for customers to choose to
purchase power directly from an energy service provider other than SCE. SCE also faces some
competmon from cities that create mumcxpal utilities or community choice aggregators. In addition,

- customers may install their own on-site power géneration facilities. Competition with SCE is conducted
mainly on the basis of price as customers seek the lowest cost power available. The effect of competition
on SCE generally is to reduce the size of SCE’s customer base, thereby creatmg upward pressure on
""SCE's rate structure to cover fixed costs, which i in tum may cause more customers to leave SCE in order
to obtain lower rates. 'Additional information about competition of SCE appears in'the MD&A under the
heading “Regulatory Matters—Generation and Power Procurement—Direct Access and Community
Chorce Aggregatlon, and is incorporated herem by this reference

Propertles

SCE supplies electricity to its customers through extensive transmission and distribution networks Its
transmission facilitiés, which deliver power from generating sources to the distribution network, consist
of approxxmately 7,200 circuit miles of 33 ktlovolt kV), 55kV, 66 kV, 115 kV, and 161 kV lines and ‘
3,522 circuit miles'of 220 kV lines’ (all located in California), 1,238 circuit miles of 500 kV lines - :
(1, 040 miles in California, 86 milés in Nevada, and 112 miles in Arlzona), and 857 substattons (all in

California). SCE's distribution system, which takes power from substations to the customer, includes

‘approximately 60,398 circuit miles of overhead lines, 36,841 circuit miles of undérground lines,

1.5 million poles, 566 distribution substations, 691 000 transformers, and 765 000 area and street lights,

all of whlch are located in Caleomla : S

SCE owns and operates the following generatmg fac:lmes (1) an undivided 75.05% interest :

(1,614 megawatts (MW)) in San Onofre Units 2 and 3, which are large pressurized water nuclear units °

located on the California coastline between Los ‘Angeles and San Diego; (2) 36 hydroelectnc plants

(1,175 MW) located in California’s Sierra Nevada; San Bémardino and San Gabriel mountain ranges, three

of which (2.7 MW) are no longer operational; (3) a diesel-fueled generating plant (9 MW) and one

hydroelectnc plant (0.11 MW) located on Santa Catalina island off the southern California coast; and (4) an

undivided 56% interest (885 MW net) in theé Mohave Generating Station, which consists of two

coal-fueled generating units located in Clark County, Nevada near the California border.



SCE also owns an undivided 15.8% interest (601 MW) in Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station, which
is located near Phoenix, Arizona, and an undivided 48% interest (710 MW) in Units 4 and 5 at Four
Comers Generating Station, whichisa coal-fueled generating plant located near the City of Farmmgton.
New Mexico. The Palo Verde and Four Corners plants are operated, by Arizona Public Service Company.

On March 12, 2004, SCE acqunred Mountamv1ew Power Company LLC Wthh owns a power plant under
construction in Redlands, California. SCE recommenced full construction of the approximately

- $600 million project, which is expected to be completed in early 2006, When completed, the Mountainview
project will have a generating capacxty of 1,054 MW.

At year-end 2004, the SCE owned generatmg capacnty (summer effective rating) was divided
approximately as follows:, 45% nuclear, 32% coal, 23% hydroelectric, and less than 1% diesel. The
capacity factors in 2004 for SCE’s nuclear and coal-fired generating units were: 80% for San Onofre; 73%
for Mohave; 83% for Four Corners; and 84% for Palo Verde. For SCE’s hydroelectric plants, generating
capacity is dependent on the amount of available water. Therefore, while SCE’s hydroelectric plants
operated at a 35% capacity factor in 2004 due to a below normal water year, these plants were operattonally
available for 92.1% of the year. o

The San Onofre units, Four Comers station, certam of SCE’s substattons, and portlons of its transmlssxon,
distribution and communication systems are located on lands of the Umted States or others under (with
minor exceptions) hcenses, permits, easements or leases, or on public. streets or hxghways pursuant to .
franchises. Certain of such documents obligate SCE, under specified circumstances and at its expense, to
relocate transmission, distribution, and communication facilities located on lands owned or controlled by
federal, state, or local governments..

Thirty-one of SCE’s 36 hydroelectnc plants (some thh related reservonrs) are located in whole orin part
on United States lands pursuant to 30- to 50-year FERC llcenses that expire at various times between ¥
2005 and 2039 (the remaining five plants are located entirely on private property and are not subject to
FERC jurisdiction). Such licenses impose numerous restrictions and obligations on SCE, including the
right of the United States to acquire projects upon payment of specified compensation. When existing
licenses expire, the FERC has the authority to issue new licenses to third parties that have filed competing
license applications, but only if their license application is superior to SCE’s and then only upon payment
of specified compensation to SCE. New licenses issued to SCE are expected to contain more restrictions
and oblrgatlons than the expired licenses because laws enacted since the existing licenses were issued
require the FERC to give environmental purposes greater consrderatlon in the lxcensmg process. SCE’s
applications for the relicensing of certain hydroelectric projects with an aggregate dependable operating
capacity of approximately 22 MW are pending. Annual licenses have been issued to SCE hydroelectric
projects that are undergomg relicensing and whose long- -term licenses have exprred Federal Power Act
Section 15 requires that the annual licenses be renewed until the long-term licenses are issued or denied.

Substantlally all of SCE’s propertxes are subject to the lren of a trust mdenture securmg First and
Refunding Mortgage Bonds, of which approximately $4.92 billion in principal amount was outstandmg
on March 10, 2005 (including the First Mortgage Bonds issued to secure a $1.25 billion revolving credit
facility). Such lien and SCE’s title to its properties are subject to the terms of franchises, licenses, - ,
easements, leases, perrruts contracts, and other, instruments under which properties are held or operated
certain statutes and governmental regulations, liens for taxes and assessments, and liens of the trustees
under the trust indenture. In addition, such lien and SCE’s title to its propertles are subject to certain
.other liens, prior rights and other encumbrances none of which, w1th minor or insubstantial exceptions,
affect SCE’s right to use such properties in its business, unless the matters with respect to SCE’s interest
in the Four Corners plant and the related easement and lease referred to below may be so consxdered




SCE's rights in the Four Corners station, which is located on land of the Navajo Nation of Indians under
an easement from the United States and a lease from the Navajo Nation, may be subject to possible
defects. These defects include possxble conflicting grants or encumbrances not ascertainable because of
the absence of, or inadequacies in, the applicable recording law and the record systems of the Bureau of
Indian Affairs and the Navajo Nation, the possible inability of SCE to resort to legal process to enforce its

; nghts against the Navajo Nation.without Congressional consent, the possible impairment or termination
under certain circumstances of the easement and lease by the Navajo Nation, Congress, or the Secretary
of the Interior, and the possible invalidity of the trust indenture lien against SCE’s interest in the
easement, lease, and improvements on the Four Corners station.

Nuclear Power Matters
San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station

Information about operating issues related to San Onofre appears in the MD&A under the heading
“Regulatory Matters—Generation and Power Procurement—San Onofre Nuclear Generatmg Station,”
and is incorporated herein by this reference. o

Palo Verde Plant Steam Generators

Information about Palo Verde steam generator replacements appears in the MD&A under the heading
“Regulatory Matters—Generation and Power Procurement—Palo Verde Steam Generators,” and is
incorporated herein by this reference. :

Nuclear Decommissioning

Information about nuclear decommissioning can be found in Note 9 of Notes to Financial Statements and
is incorporated herein by this reference.

Nuclear Insurance
Information about nuclear insurance can be found in Note 10 of Notes to Financial Statements and is
incorporated herein by this reference.

Purchased Power and Fuel Supply . - ;
SCE obtains the power needed to serve its customers from its generatmg facxhues and from purc}rases from
qualifying facilities, mdependent power producers, the California Independent System Operator, and other
utilities. In addition, power is provided to SCE’s customers through purchases by the California Department
of Water Resources (CDWR) under contracts with third parties. Sources of power to serve SCE’s. -
customers during 2004 were as follows: 31 5% purchased power; 30.3% CDWR; and 38.2% SCE-owned
generation consisting of 13.7% nuclear, 20.0% coal, and 4.5% hydro. Additional information about SCE’s
power procurement activities appears in the MD&A under the heading “Regulatory Matters—Generatlon
and Power Procurement .and is incorporated herein by this reference. S
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Natural GasSupply : N O N A ) L P
SCEF’s natural gas reqnirernents in 2004 wer‘e’fo'r' étért-{lp use at the Mohave coal-fired generatien facilfty
and to meet contractual obligations for power tolling agreements. All of the physical gas purchased by
SCE in 2004 was purchased under North American Energy Standards Board agreements (master gas



agreements) that define the terms and conditions of transactlons witha pamcular supplier prior to any
financial commitment. ,

SCE contracted for firm access rights onto the Southern California Gas Company system at Wheeler
Ridge for 198,863 million British thermal units (MMBtu) per day in a 13-year contract entered into in
August 1993, effective November 1, 1993. SCE also has firm transportation rights of 18 000 MMBtu per
day on Southwest Gas Corp’s plpehne to serve Mohave generation facnllty

In 2004, SCE secured a one-year natural gas storage capacity contract with Southern California Gas
Company for the 2004/2005 storage season. In 2005, SCE secured a one-year natural gas storage
capacity contract with Southern California Gas Company for the 2005/2006 storage season. Storage '
capacity was secured to provide operation flexibility and to mmgate potential costs assocuated wnh the
dispatch of SCE’s tolling agreements. »

Nuclear Fuel Supply

For San Onofre Units 2 and 3, contractual arrangements are in place covering 100% of the projected
nuclear fuel requirements through the years indicated below:

UraniUm CONCENITALES. ceceerrrrrrerrerrserererssssererescersssassatasessersasssssrsssreassssessosssasassons 2008
CONVETSION ..eeeeereerrarneeesveesenerssnsessseressessrsaesssasasssneesssssassss erteeersesaneiessanenee 2008
ENLICAMENT «.veeerteirecenneeesstesesessesaeseensssesessesssasssensesene eeenenens ersesresesasane 2008
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For Palo Verde, contractual arrangements are in place covering 100% of the projected nuclear fuel
requirements through the years indicated below:

UTaNIUIT CONCENLIALES...eeeerreerereeesserersrereesseerssseessrasssrssseesssasessas eersressnrisssanesnnas 2008
CONVETSION «.vvevurrricrennecnerisserrsssaesssreressesssseesssnsessssasessssneessasessassessssessssassane 2008
ENFICRIMENT ....oeeeerveeerrrererrinnreeecsureessessansessaresssssssssasssnsessssnsosssssassessssanaasans 2008
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Spent Nuclear Fuel

Information about Spent Nuclear Fuel appears in Note 10 of Notes to Financial Statements and is
incorporated herein by this reference.

e

Coal Supply

SCE purchases coal pursuant to long term contracts to provide stable and reliable fuel supplies to its

two coal-fired generatmg stations, the Mohave and Four Comers plants; ‘SCE entered into a coal contract,
dated September 1,1966, with BHP Navajo Coal Company, the predecessor to the current owner of the
Navajo mine, to supply coal to Four Corners Units 4 and 5. The initial term of this coal supply contract
for the Four Comners plant was through 2004 and included éxtension options for up to 15 additional years.
On January 1, 2005 SCE and the other Four Comers participants entered into a Restated and Amended
Four Comers Fuel Agreement under which coal will be supplied until July 6, 2016. The Restated and-
Amended Agreement contains an option to extend for not less than five additional years or more than

15 years. Additional information about the litigation affecting the’ ‘Coal supply contract for the Mohave:
plant appears in the MD&A under the heading “Other Developments—Navajo Nation Litigation,” and is
incorporated herein by this reference. SCE does not have reasonable assurance of an adequate coal




supply for operating the Mohave plant after 2005.-1f reasonable assurance of an adequate coal supply is
not obtained, it will become necessary to shut down the Mohave plant after December 31, 2005.
Dtscontmued Operatlons T
Information about SCE's dtscontmued operattons appears in Note 12 of Notes to Fmancnal Statements
and is mcorporated herein by this reference
Seasonallty' L L
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Due to warmer. weather during the summer months, electnc utthty revenue dunng the third quarter of
each year is generally srgmﬁcant hrgher than other quarters : - -
Envrronmental Matters ) , o o
SCE is subject to envrronmental regulatlon by federal state and local authormes in the Jurtsdncttons in
which it operates in the United States. This regulation, including the areas of air and water pollution,
waste management, hazardous chemical use, noise abatement, land use, aesthetics, and nuclear control,
continues to result in the imposition of numerous restrictions on SCE’s operation of existing facilities, on
the timing, cost, location, design, construction, and operation by SCE of new facxlmes and on the cost of
mmgatmg the effect of past operations on the envrronment ~ o :

' Wt S L £ ot S 1 : ‘
SCE believes that itisin substantlal comphance with envnronmental regulatory requtrements and that
maintaining compliance with current requirements will not materially affect its financial position or
results of operations. However, possible future developments, such as the promulgation of more stringent
environmental laws and regulations, future proceedings that may be initiated by environmental -
authorities, and settlements agreed to by other companies could affect the costs and the manner.in which
SCE conducts its business and could cause it to make substantial additional capital or operational -
expenditures. There is no assurance that SCE would be able to recover these increased costs from its
customers or that SCE’s financial position and results of operations would not be materlally adversely
affected. SCE is unable to predict the extent to which additional regulattons may affect its operatlons and
capital expendtture requirements. - - Cer e : ¥ o o

Lt PRETE S et : AN

Typically, env1ronmental laws and regulatlons requlre a lengthy and complex process for obtammg
licenses, permits and approvals prior to construction, operation or modification of a project.: Meetmg all
the necessary requirements can delay or sometimes prevent the completion of a proposed project as well .
as require extensive modifications to existing projects, which may involve significant capital or - . “1:*
operational expenditures:. Furthermore, if SCE fails to comply with applicable envrronmental laws, it
may be subject to injunctive relief, penalties and fines tmposed by regulatory authormes SR

b,
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Air Quality
SCE’s facilities, including in particular the Mohave 'plant located in Laughlin, Nevada, and the . ... -
Four Comers plant located in the Four Comers area of New Mexico, are subject to various air quahty
regulattons mcludmg the Federal Clean Atr Act and similar state and local statutes. = i s )
'-’p!': } ‘ ‘ l’}" S (-l,-‘:v, N . ' . ‘. - ‘{' .£ A»',’.;;.'t' :
Mohave Consent Decree In 1998 several envrronmental groups ﬁled sutt agamst the co- owners of the
Mohave plant regarding alleged violations of emissions limits. - In order to resolve the lawsuitand . . *
accelerate resolution of key environmental issues regarding the plant the parties entered into a consent
decree, which was approved by the Nevada federal district court in December 1999.:The decree also
addressed concemns raised by the US EPA programs regarding regional haze and visibility. As to regional



haze, the US EPA issued final rulemaking on July 1, 1999, that did not impose any additional emissions
control requirements on the Mohave plant beyond meeting the provisions of the consent decree. As to
visibility, the US EPA issued its final rule regarding visibility impairment at the Grand Canyon on
February 8, 2002. This final rule incorporated the terms of the consent decree into the Visibility Federal
Implementation Plan for the State of Nevada, makmg the terms of the consent decree federally
enforceable.

SCE's share of the costs of complying with the consent decree and taking other actions to continue
operation of the Mohave plant beyond 2005 is estimated to be approximately $605 million over
approximately the next four years. On December 3, 2004, the CPUC approved a decision authorizing
certain expenditures related to securing agreements with the Navajo Nation and the Hopi Tribe regarding
an alternate water supply for use in a slurry pipeline for transporting ‘coal fuel from the Black Mesa Mine-
to the Mohave plant, among other limited expenditures. The CPUC left for a later decision (if agreement
can be reached between the Mohave co-owners and the Tribes on post 2005 water and coal supply needs),
the approval of capital funds for retrofit of air pollution controls and related equipment needed for
compliance with the consent decree, and for continued operation of Mohave past 2005. It is not currently
known whether such an agreement on water and coal supplies for Mohave will be reached with the
Tnbes

Additional information about these issues appears in the MD&A under the headings “Other
Developments—Environmental Matters,” and “Regulatory Matters—Generation and Power
Procurement—Mohave Generatmg Station and Related Proceedings,” and is mcorporated herein by lhls
reference ~ D : :

Mercury. In December 2000, the US EPA announced its intent to regulate mercury emissions and other
hazardous air pollutants from coal-fired electric power plants under Section 112 of the Clean Air Act, and
indicated that it would propose a rule to regulate these emissions. On January 30, 2004, the US EPA
published proposed rules for regulating mercury emissions from coal fired power plants.- The US EPA
proposed two rule options for public comment: (1) regulate mercury as a hazardous air pollutant under.
Section 112(d) of the Clean Air Act; or (2) rescind the US EPA’s December 2000 finding regarding a
need to control coal power plant mercury emissions as a hazardous air pollutant, and instead, promulgate
a new “cap and trade” emissions regulatory program to reduce mercury emissions in two phases by years
2010 and 2018. On March 16, 2004, the US EPA published a Supplemental Notice of Proposed
Rulemaking that provides more details on its emissions cap and trade proposal for mercury, and on
November 30, 2004, the US EPA issued a Notice of Data Availability (NODA) requesting comments on
additional modeling and other data the US EPA was considering in development of its final rule. The
NODA public comment period closed on January 2, 2005. At this time, the US EPA anticipates
finalizing the regulations on March 15, 2005, with controls required to be in place on existing units by
March 15, 2008 (if the technology-based standard is chosen) and 2010 (when Phase I of the cap and trade
approach would be implemented if this approach is chosen).

For SCE, these regulations will primarily impact its operation of the Mohave Generating Station.
Additional information regarding the future operation or shutdown of the Mohave Generating Station
appears in the MD&A under the heading “Regulatory Matters—Generation and Power Procurement—
Mohave Generating Station and Related Proceedings,” and is incorporated herein by this reference.. At
this point, based on the January 30, 2004, notice proposing technology based standards, SCE believes that
its Mohave Generating Station would likely meet those proposed standards (if the other issues related to
Mohave are resolved and the station is in operation). Also, based on the preliminary information -
provided in the US EPA’s January 30, 2004, and March 16, 2004, notices regarding a proposed mercury-
cap and trade program, SCE believes that Mohave would likely have adequate allocations of mercury :




credits for Phase I (2010); however, beginning at Phase II (2018), it appears that Mohave would need to
either purchase mercury.allocation credlts or mstall mercury controls.

R .
Until the mercury regulattons are fmahzed anda ﬁnal resolutlon is reached as to whether or not the
Mohave Generating Station will operate beyond 2005, however, SCE cannot fully evaluate the potential
impact of these regulations on the operations of all of its facilities. Additional capital costs related to
those regulations could be requxred in the future and they could be material, dependmg upon the final
standards adopted by the US EPA.- SR : SRS

Nartonal AmbzentAzr Qualzty .S’tandards Amblent air quahty standards for ozone and fine partlculate
matter were adopted by the US EPA in July 1997.- These standards were challenged in the courts, and on
March 26, 2002, the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit uphe]d the

US EPA’s revised ozone and fine particulate matter ambient air quality standards.

The US EPA designated non-attainment areas for the 8-hour ozone standard on April 30, 2004, and for
the fine particulate standard on January 5, 2005: States are required to revise their implementation plans
for the ozone and particulate matter standards within three years of the effective date of the respective
non-attainment designations. The revised state,implementation plans are likely to require additional
emission reductions from facilities that are significant emitters of ozone precursors and pamculates Any
requirement imposed on SCE’s coal-fired generating facilities to further reduce their.emissions of sulfur
dioxide, nitrogen oxides and fine partlculates as a result of the ozone and fine partlculate matter standard
will not be known untll the states revise their lmplementatlon plans. AT :

In December 2003 the US EPA proposed rules that wou]d require states to revise therr 1mp1ementat|on
plans to address alleged contributions to downwind areas that are not in attainment with the revised
standards for ozone and fine particulate matter. -The proposed “Clean Air Intefstate Rule” is designed to
be completed before states must revise their implementation plans to address local reductions needed to
meet the new ozone and fine particulate matter standards. The proposed rule would establish a
two-phase, regional cap and trade program for sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxide. The proposed rule-
would affect 27 states-in the eastern United States. /The proposed rule would require sulfur dioxide -
emissions and nitrogen oxide emissions to be reduced in two phases (by 2010 and 2015), with emxssxons
reductions for each pollutant of 65% by 2015.

On March 10, 2005, the US EPA issued the final Clean Air Act Interstate Rule. -According to information
provided by the US EPA, Phase I nitrogen oxides réductions would come into effect in 2009 rather than
2010.. In addition, the emissions budgets for sulfur dioxides and nitrogen oxides in the final rule appear to
have been slightly modified from the proposed regulation. - At this time, SCE cannot predict what action
the US EPA will take with regard to the western United States where SCE has facilities; and what impact
those actions will have on its facilities. Any additional: obligations on SCE’s facilities to further reduce
their emissions of sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxides and fine particulates to address local non-attainment
with the 8-hour ozone and fine particulate matter standards will not be known until the states revise their
implementation plans. Depending upon the final standards that are adopted, SCE may incur substantial
costs or f nancial 1mpacts resultmg from required capltal 1mprovements or operatlonal changes

S R TN  L e
New Source Revrew Reqwrements On November 3, 1999 the Umted States Department of Justice filed
the first of a number of suits against electric utilities and power generating facilities, for alleged violations
of the Clean Air Act’s “new source review” (NSR) requirements related to modifications of air emissions
sources at electric generating stations. .In addition to the suits filed, the US EPA has issued a number of
administrative Notices of Violation to electric utilities alleging NSR violations. -SCE has not been named
as a defendant in these lawsuits and has not recerved any administrative Notlces of Vrolatron alleging .
NSR violations at any of its facilities. Gow e :



Several of the named utilities have reached formal agreements or agreements-in-principle with the United
States to resolve alleged NSR violations. These settlements involved installation of additional pollution
controls, supplemental environment projects; and the payment of civil penalties. The agreements
provided for a phased approach to achieving required emission reductions over the next 10 to 15 years,
and some called for the retirement or repowering of coal-fired generating units. The total cost of some of
these settlements exceeded $1 billion; the civil penalties agreed to by these utilities generally range
between $1 million and $10 million. Because of the uncertainty created by the Bush administration’s
review of the NSR regulations and NSR enforcement proceedings, some of these settlements have not
been finalized. However, the Department of Justice review released in January 2002 concluded “EPA has
a reasonable basis for arguing that the enforcement actions are consistent with both the Clean Air Act and
the Administrative Procedure Act.” No change in the Department of Justice’s position regarding pending
NSR legal actions has been announced as a result of the US EPA’s proposed NSR reforms (discussed
immediately below)

On December 31, 2002, the US EPA finalized a rule to improve the NSR program This rule is intended
to provide additional flexibility with respect to NSR by, among other things, modifying the method by
which a facility calculates the emissions’ increase from a plant modification; exempting, for a period of
ten years, units that have complied with NSR requirements or otherwise installed pollution control
technology that is equivalent to what would have been required by NSR; and allowing a facility to make
modifications without being required to comply with NSR if the facility maintained emissions below
plant-wide applicability limits. Although states, industry groups and environmental organizations have -
filed litigation challenging various aspects of the rule, it became effective March 3, 2003. To date, the
rule remains in effect, although the pending litigation could still result in changes to the final rule.

A federal district court, ruling on a lawsuit filed by the US EPA, found on August.7, 2003 that the

Ohio Edison Company violated requirements of the NSR within the Clean Air Act by upgrading certain-
coal-fired power plants without first obtaining the necessary preconstruction permits. On August 26,
2003, another federal district court ruling in an NSR enforcement action against Duke Energy
Corporation, adopted a different interpretation of the NSR provisions that could limit liability for similar
upgrade projects. This decision is currently on appeal before the United States Court of Appeals for the
Fourth Circuit. .

On October 27, 2003, the US EPA issued a final rule revising its regulations to define more clearly a
category of activities that are not subject to NSR requirements under.the “routine maintenance, repair and
replacement” exclusion. This clearer definition of “routine maintenance, repair and replacement,” would
provide SCE greater guidance in determining what investments can be made at its existing plants to
improve the safety, efficiency and reliability of its operations without triggering NSR permitting - -
requirements and might mitigate the potential impact of the Ohio Edison decision. However, on
December 24, 2003, the United States Court of Appeals for the D.C: Circuit blocked implementation of
the “routine maintenance, repair and replacement” rule, pending further judicial review.

There is currently uncertainty as to the US EPA’s enforcement policy on alleged NSR violations.
Developments will continue to be monitored by SCE, to assess what implications, if any, they will have
on the operation of domestic power plants owned or operated by SCE, or on SCE’s results of operations-
or ﬁnanc1a| posmon

Clnnate Change. Since the adoption of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change in
1992, there has been worldwide attention with respect to greenhouse gas emissions. In December 1997,
the Clinton administration participated in the Kyoto, Japan negotiations, where the basis of a Climate
Change treaty was formulated. Under the treaty, known as the Kyoto Protocol, the United States would
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be required, by 2008-2012, to reduce its greenhouse gas emissions by 7% from 1990 levels. As a result
of Russia’s ratification of the Kyoto Protocol in December 2004, the Protocol ofﬁcrally came into effect
on February 16, 2005. : - :
In March 2001 the Bush admlmstratron announced that the Umted States would not ratify the Kyoto
Protocol, but would instead offer an alternative. On February 14, 2002, President Bush announced
objectives to slow the growth of greenhouse gas emissions by reducing the amount of greenhouse gas
emissions per unit of economic output by 18% by 2012 and to provide funding for climate change-related
programs. The President’s proposed program does not include mandatory reductions of greenhouse gas
emissions. However, various bills have been, or are ‘expected to be, introduced in Congress to require
greenhouse gas emission reductions and to address other issues related to climate change. Thus, SCE
may be affected by future federal or state legrslatlon relatmg to controlling greenhouse gas emissions
reductions. . . : : e
In addition, there have been several petitions from states and other parties to compel the US EPA to
-regulate greenhouse gases under the Clean Air Act.- The US EPA denied on September 3, 2003, a petition
by Massachusetts, Maine and Connecticut to compel the US EPA under the Clean Air Act to establish a
national ambient air quality standard for carbon dioxide. Since that time, 11 states and other entities have
filed suits against the US EPA in the United States Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit (D.C. Circuit).
The D.C. Circuit has granted intervention requests from 10 states that support the US EPA’s ruling. The
D.C. Circuit has not yet ruled on this matter. . . - :

OnJ uly 21, 2004 Connectrcut New York Calrforma Iowa, New Jersey, Rhode Island, Vermont, -.: .
Wisconsin, the City of New York and certain environmental organizations brought lawsuits in federal
court in New York, alleging that several electric utility corporations are jointly and severally liable under
a theory of public nuisance for damages caused by their alleged contribution to global warming resulting
from carbon dioxide emissions from coal-fired power plants owned and operated by these companies or
their subsidiaries. The lawsuits seek injunctive relief in the form of a mandatory cap on carbon dioxide
emissions to be phased in over several years. The defendants in these suits have filed motions to dismiss,
which have not yet been ruled upon by the court. SCE has not been named as a defendant in these
lawsurts : g

Wrthm California, the CPUC is addressing climate change related issues in various regulatory
proceedings. In a decision pertaining to SCE’s 2004 long-term procurement plan the CPUC is requiring a
“carbon adder” of $8-$25/ton of carbon dioxide to be used in the evaluation of fossil fuel generation bids
for contracts of five years or longer.: Additional information about SCE’s long-term procurement plan
appears in the MD&A under the heading “‘Regulatory Matters—Generation and Power Procurement—
Generation Procurement Proceedings,” and is incorporated herein by this reference. The CPUC is also: -
addressing greenhouse gas emissions in other related proceedings. In addition, the CPUC held a Climate
Change Policy En Banc meeting on February 23, 2005, at which the CPUC sought 1nfonnatron on best
practices to reduce greenhouse gas emissions for CPUC regulated companies. ,

SCE will continue to monitor these developments relating to greenhouse gas emissions so as to determine
the impacts, if any, on SCE’s operations.: If and to the extent that SCE does become subject to limitations
on carbon dioxide from fossil fuel-fired electric generating plants these requrrements could have a
srgmﬁcant financial impact on SCE’s operations. .. . T

e v b ‘e . . cenT A
LTV e Lt . P Lo A

Federal Legrslatzve Imtzanves. There have been a number of bills introduced in Congress that would
amend the Clean Air Act to specifically target emissions of certain pollutants from electric utility
generating stations. These bills would mandate reductions in emissions of nitrogen oxides, sulfur dioxide
and mercury. Some bills would also impose limitations on carbon dioxide emissions. The various
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proposals differ in many details, including the timing of any required reductions; the extent of required
reductions; and the relationship of any new obligations that would be imposed by these bills with existing
legal requirements. There is significant uncertainty as to whether any of the proposed legislative -
initiatives will pass in their current form or whether any compromise can be reached that would facilitate
passage of legislation. Accordmgly, SCE is not able to evaluate lhe potentlal xmpact of these proposals at
this time. : ; :

ot

Compliance with Hazardous S ubstances and Hazardous Waste Laws

Under various federal state and local envxronmental laws and regulatlons, a current or prevxous owner or
operator of any facility, including an electric generating facility, may be required to investigate and.
remediate releases or threatened releases of hazardous or toxic substances or petroleum products located
at that facility, and may be held liable to a governmental entity or to third parties for property damage
personal injury, natural resource damages, and investigation and remediation costs incurred by these
parties in connection with these releases or threatened releases. Many of these laws, including the:
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of:1980, commonly referred to
as CERCLA, as amended by the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986 (SARA),
impose liability without regard to whether the owner knew of or caused the presence of the hazardous
substances, and courts have mterpreted llablhty under lhese laws to be’ strlct and joint and several

' FARTERE N

The cost of i mvesugauon, remedlatlon or removal of these substances may be substantial. In addmon,
persons who arrange for the disposal or treatment of hazardous or toxic substances at a disposal or
treatment facility may be liable for the costs of removal or remediation of a release or threatened release
of hazardous or toxic substances at that disposal or treatment facility, whether or not that facility is owned
or operated by that person. Some environmental laws and regulations create a lien on a contaminated site
in favor of the government for damages and costs it incurs in connection with the remediation of
contamination. The owner of a contaminated site and persons who arrange for the disposal of hazardous
substances at that site also may be subject to common law claims by third pames based on damages and
costs resulting from envxronmental contammatlon emanatmg from that site. .

R i {
Toxic Substances Control Act The federal Toxic Substances Control Act and accompanying regulauons
govern the manufacturing, processing, distribution in commerce, use, and disposal of listed compounds,
such as polychlorinated biphenyls, a toxic substance used in certain electrical equipment. For SCE,
current costs associated with remediation and disposal of this substance are immaterial. -

Asbestos. Federal, state and local laws, regulations and ordinances also govern the removal,
encapsulation or disturbance of asbestos-containing materials when these materials are in poor condition
or in the event of construction, remodeling, renovation or demolition of a building. Those laws and ..
regulations may impose liability for release of asbestos-containing materials and may provide for the -
ability of third parties to seek recovery from owners or operators of these properties for personal'injury
associated with asbestos-containing materials. :

In connection with the ownership and operation of its facilities, SCE 'may be liable for costs associated
with hazardous waste compliance and remediation required by the laws and regulations identified herein.
The CPUC allows SCE to recover in retail rates paid by its customers, partial environmental remediation
costs at certain sites through an incentive mechanism. Additional information about these laws and
regulations appears in Note 10 of Notes to Financial Statements and in the MD&A under the heading
“Other Developments—Environmental Matters,” and is incorporated herein by this reference.
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Water Quality

1

Clean Water Act. Regulatlons under the federal Clean Water Act require perrmts for the dlscharge of
pollutants into United States waters and permits for the discharge of stormwater flows from certain
facilities. . Under this act, the US EPA'issues effluent limitation guldelmes pretreatment standards, and
new source performance standards for the control of certain pollutants. ‘The Clean Water Act also
regulates the thermal component (heat) of effluent discharges and the location, design, and construcnon of
cooling water intake structures at generating facilities. Individual states may impose more stringent -
effluent limitations than the US EPA. California has a US EPA approved program to issue individual or
group (general) permits for the regulation of Clean Water Act dlscharges US EPA does not ISSUC permits
for pollution discharges in California. A

SCE incurs additional expenses and capital expenditures in order to comply with guidelines and standards
applicable to certain of its facilities. SCE presently has discharge permits for all applicable facilities. -

Cooling Water-Intake Structures. On July 9, 2004, the US EPA published the final Phase II regulations
implementing Section 316(b) of the Clean Water Act. The rulemaking establishes standards for cooling
water intake structures at existing electrical generating stations that withdraw more than 50 million : -.
gallons of water per day and use more than 25% of that water for cooling purposes. The purpose of the
regulations is to substantially reduce the number of aquatic organisms that are impinged against cooling
water intake structures or drawn into cooling water systems. Pursuant to the regulation, a demonstration
study must be conducted when applying for a new or renewed National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System permit. If one can demonstrate that the costs of meeting the presumptive standards set forth in the
regulation are significantly greater than the costs that the US EPA assumed in its rule making or.are. .. °
significantly disproportionate to the expected environmental benefits, a site-specific analysis may be . :
performed to establish alternative standards. Depending on the findings of the demonstration studies,
mechanical or technical measures, such as cooling towers and/or operational means of reducing . .:.;¢
impingement/entrainment may be required. Additionally, the regulations allow generatmg stations to
consider restoration measures that offset the. 1mpmgemem/emramment lmpacts i ~ D
The San Onofre station is the only SCE facnhty that is subJect to these rules at this tlme SCE beheves
that the new rules will not significantly impact San Onofre. SCE expects that San Onofre will be able to
comply with the new rules without any physical or operational modifications for two reasons. :First; - ;
San Onofre has physical and operational attributes that reduce impingement/entrainment compared to the
base case established by the US EPA regulations. These existing attributes include velocity caps on the
intake structures and a fish return system designed to reduce impingement. Second, the coastal
development permit for San Onofre requires SCE to restore or create 150 acres of wetlands as mitigation
for impingement/entrainment impacts. Nonetheless, San Onofre must still conduct a comprehensive . .
compliance demonstration study to show compliance. The study could cost approximately $3 million
over the next five years.

After the final promulgation of the Phase II cooling water intake structure regulation, legal challenges
were filed by environmental groups, Attorneys General for six states, a utility trade association, and
several individual electric power generating companies. These cases have been consolidated and
transferred to the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit. A briefing schedule has been
established for the case and a decision is not expected until sometime in 2006. The final requirements of
the Phase II rule will not be fully known until these appeals are resolved and, if necessary, the regulation
is revised by the US EPA. While SCE believes that this rule, as drafted, would not have a material impact
on SCE’s operations at San Onofre, certain aspects of the rule that are being contested, such as the right to
offset impacts through restoration, are important to SCE’s expectation that compliance with the new rules
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will not require any physical or operational modifications at San Onofre. Until the challenges to the
rulemaking have concluded, SCE cannot determine the full financial impact of this rule.

Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act. California’s Safe Drinking Water and Toxic -~ -
Enforcement Act prohibits the exposure of individuals to chemicals known to the State of California'to-
cause cancer or reproductive harm and the discharge of such chemicals into potential sources of drinking
water. As SCE’s operations call for use of different products, and as additional chemicals are placed on
the State of California’s list, SCE is required to incur additional costs to review and possibly revise its
operanons to ensure compllance W1th the requxrements of this law :

F manclal Information About Geographlc Areas

- All of SCE’s revenues for the last three fiscal years are attributed to SCE’s country of domicile, the -
United States. All of SCE’s assets are located in the United States:

Item 2. Properties" ~
The pnncnpal propemes of SCE are described above in Part I under the headmg “Propemes
Item 3. Legal Proceedmgs

Navajo Natton nganon

. e . )
Information about the Navajo Natlon Litigation appears in the MD&A under the heading “Other .
Developments—Navajo Nation- ngatlon,” and is mcorporated herein by this reference.

) E

Item 4. Submnssnon of Matters toa Vote of Secunty Holders B e

Effectlve J anuary 10 2005 shareholders representing 434 888 104 shares, or 92 8% of the outstandmg
votes, consented in writing to an amendment to SCE’s Restated Articles of Incorporation. There were no
timely votes to withhold consent for the proposal and shareholders répresenting 33,862,788 votes -
abstained. The amendment clarifies that certain voting rights apply only to preferred shares that were: : -
outstandi'ng at the time of the amendment and permits an executive committee of the Board of Directors
to act in its place in certain instances. The amendment was filed with the Secretary of State of California
and became effective on January 12, 2005. “ .

Pursuant to Form 10-K’s General Instruction (General Instructlon) G(3), the following mfon’natxon is
1ncluded as an additional item in Part I: :

14




(1

Executive Officers”’ of the chlstrant

R : “Acat S
‘ Executive Officer .. . |- Decembgr 31,2004 : Company Position
JohnE. Bryson ' - |« "7ig1 | Chairman of the Board '
AlagJ.Fohrer. ' """ ' “s4 Chief Executive Officer and Director -
Robert G. Foster 57 President i
Harold B-Ray 64 .. Executive Vice President. Generation =~~~ .-, - | ‘
Pamela A.Bass ~ ~ . ) 57" | Senior Vice President, Customer Service -
John R, Fielder - 59 . .Senior Vice President. Regulatory Policy and Affairs
Stephen E. Pickett 54 Senior Vice President and General Counsel
Richard M. Rosenblum : 54 o Senior Vice President. Transmission and Distribution
W. Jamés Scilacci®®’ 49 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Mahvash dedi o 53 . |'Sénior Vice President, Business Integrationiand =
s i , | Chief Information Officer .~
Frederick J. Gngs by, Jr.' ; 57 " Vice President, Human Resources and Labor Relations
Thomas M. Noonan'> = © . 53+ | Vice President and Controller
Pedro J. Pizarro ~- |- 39 Vice President, Power Procurement

- The term “Executive Ofﬁcers is defined by Rule 3b-7 of the General Riiles and Regulatlons under the
Securities Exchanne Act'of 1934 as amended. ey

2 Asa result of a reorgamzatlon of the management structure at EdlSOﬂ Internatnonal 's deson Mlssmn Enerzy
and Edison Capital businesses, SCE announced on March 9, 2005 that Mr-W. J amcs Scxlaccx will resign as,
‘Semor Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of SCE, effecnve March ]7, 2005 to betdme Senior Vice -
"President and Chief Financial Officer of EdlSOl’l stsnon Energy and Edison Capltal ‘Mr. John E. Bryson, -~
Chairman of the Board of SCE, has announced that he will recommend to the SCE Board that Mr. Thomas M.,
Noonan replace Mr. Scilacci as Chief Fmancnal Officer of SCE on an mterlm ba51s ‘while continuing in his role
as Vice President and Controller of SCE.
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None of SCE's executive officers is related to each other by blood or marriage. As set forth in Article IV
of SCE’s Bylaws, the elected officers of SCE are chosen annually by and serve at the pleasure of SCE's

Board of Directors and hold their respective offices until their resignation, removal, other disqualification
from service, or until their respective successors are elected.” All of the above officers have been actively
engaged in the business of SCE, Edison International and/or the nonutility company affiliates of SCE for

more than five years except Frederick J. Grlgsby, Jr.. Those officers who have not held their present
position with SCE for the past fi five years had the following busmess experience during that penod

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, SCE
President and Chlef Executive Officer, EME®

Executive Vice President and Chief Fmancnal Ofﬁcer,
Edison International and SCE ]

Executive Officer Company Position Effective Dates’
John E. Bryson Chairman of the Board, SCE January 2003 to piesén't‘
Chairman of the Board, President, and Chief Executive January 2000 to present
Officer, Edison International
.| Chairman of the Board, Edi_spri Capital? January 2000 to present
Chairman of the Board, EME® January 2000 to December 2002
Alan J. Fohrer . | Chief Executive Officer and Director, SCE January 2003 to present

January 2002 to December 2002
January 2000 to December 2001
September 1996 to January 2000

Robert G. Foster

President, SCE

Senior Vice President, External Affairs, Edison
International and SCE ‘
Senior Vice President, Public Affairs, Edison
International and SCE

January 2002 to present -
April 2001 to December 2001

| November 1996 to April 2001

Stephen E. Pickett

Senior Vice President and General Counsel, SCE
Vice President and General Counsel, SCE

January 2002 to present
January 2000 to December 2001

W. James Scilacci

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Ofﬁcer, SCE
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, SCE *

January 2003 to present
January 2000 to December 2002

Mahvash Yazdi

Senior Vice President, Business Integration, and Chief

'Informanon Officer, Edison International and SCE .

Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer,
SCE and Edison International

September 2003 to present

January 2000 to September 2003

Frederick J. Grigsby,
Jr.

Vice President, Human Resources and Labor Relations,
Edison International and SCE

Vice President, Human Resources and Labor Relations,
SCE

Senior Vice President, Human Resources,

Fluor Corporation®*?

January 2004 to present
July 2001 to December 2003

December 1998 to October 2000

Thomas M. Noonan

Vice President and Controller, Edison International
and SCE

March 1999 to present

Pedro J. Pizarro

Vice President, Power Procurement, SCE

Vice President, Strategy and Business Development, SCE
Vice President, Technology Business Development,
Edison International

Director, Strategic Planning, Edison International

January 2004 to present
July 2001 to December 2003
September 2000 to June 2001

May 1999 to September 2000

)

Edison Capital is a subsidiary of Edison International and has investments worldwide in energy and

infrastructure projects and affordable housing projects located throughout the United States.

)

EME is a subsidiary of Edison International and is an independent power producer engaged in the business of

owning or leasing, operating and selling energy and capacity from electric power generation facilities.

16




@ This entity is not a parent, subsidiary or other affiliate of SC)E.

) The Fluor Corporatron is one of the world’s largest publicly owned engineering, procurement, construction,
and maintenance services organizations.

PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities

Certain rnformatron respondmg to Ttem S wrth respect to frequency and amount of cash drvrdends is’
included i in SCE’s Annual Report to Shareholders for the year ended Deceimber 31, 2004 (Annual '
Report), under Quarterly Financial Data on page ‘92 and is incorporated herein by thrs reference Asa
result of the formation of a holding company described above in Item 1, all of the rssued and outstandmg '
common stock of SCE is owned by Edison International and there is no market for such stock. '

Ttem 201(d) of Regulation S-K, “Securities Authorized For Issuance Under Equity Compensation'P—l'ans;"
is not applicable because SCE has no compensation plans under which equity securities of SCE are
authorized for issuance.

Item 6. Seclected Financial Data

Information responding to Item 6 is included in the Annual Report under “Selected Financial and *
Operating Data: . 2000-2004" on page 93, and is incorporated herein by this reference. . = ..

Item 7. ,Management’s Discussion and Analj"sls of F in!anicial Condition andllesults of Operations
Informatron respondmg to Item 7is lncluded in the ‘Annual Report on pages 1 through 42 and i is

mcorporated herern by this reference

Item 7A. Quantrtatlve and Qualitative Drsclosures About Markct Risk

Information respondmg to Item 7A is included rn the MD&.A under “Market RlSk Exposures on pages 8
through 11, and is incorporated herein by this reference.

Item 8 Fmancral Statemcnts and Supplementary Data

Certain rnformatron respondmg to Item 8 isset forth after Item 15 in Part III. Other 1nformatron
responding to Item 8 is 1ncluded in the Annual Report on pages 45 through 92 and is mcorporated herem
by this reference. . .- SETELIE SN L AR :

Item 9. Changes in and Drsagreements wrth Accountants on Accountmg and Fmancral Dlsclosure
None. e TS

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures . ST -

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

SCE’s management, under the supervision and with the participation of the company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectrveness of SCE’s drsclosure controls and
procedures (as that term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) under the Securrtres Exchange Act’ of
1934, as amended (the Exchange Act)) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that’
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evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of the end of
the period, SCE’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

Change in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in SCE’s internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in
Rules 13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2004
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, SCE’s internal control over
financial reporting. '

For the reasons discussed in Note | of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, SCE has not
designed, established, or maintained internal control over financial reporting for four variable interest
entities, referred to as “VIEs. that SCE was required to consolidate under an accounting interpretation
issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board. SCE’s evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting did not include these VIEs.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART III
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information concerning executive officers of SCE is set forth in Part I in accordance with General
Instruction G(3), pursuant to Instruction 3 to Item 401(b) of Regulation S-K. Other information.
responding to Item 10 will appear in SCE’s definitive Joint Proxy Statement (Proxy Statement) to be filed
with the SEC in connection with SCE’s Annual Shareholders’ Meeting to be held on May 19, 2005, under
the headings “Election of Directors, Nominees for Election,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance,” and “Code of Business Conduct and Ethics,” and is incorporated herein by this
reference. The SCE Board of Directors has determined that Thomas C. Sutton, the Chair of the Board
Audit Committee, is a financial expert under SEC Guidelines and is independent under the New York
Stock Exchange listing standards.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information responding to Item 11 will appear in the Proxy Statement under the headings *“Director
Compensation,” “Executive Compensation:—Summary Compensation Table, Option/SAR Grants in
2004, Aggregated Option/SAR Exercises in 2004 and FY-End Option/SAR Values, Long-Term Incentive
Plan Awards in Last Fiscal Year, Pension Plan Table, Other Retirement Benefits, and Employment -
Contracts and Termination of Employment Arrangements,” and “Compensation and Executive Personnel
Committees’ Interlocks and Insider Participation,” and is incorporated herein by this reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Information responding to Item 12 will appear in the Proxy Statement under the headings *“Stock -
Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers” and “Stock Ownership of Certain Shareholders,” and is
incorporated herein by this reference. o

Item 201(d) of Regulation S-K, “Securities Authorized For Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans,”
is not applicable because SCE has no compensation plans under which equity securities of SCE are
authorized for issuance. -
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information responding to Item 13 will appear in the Proxy Statement under the headings *“Certain
Relationships and Transactions,” and is incorporated herein by this reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information responding to Item 14 will appear in the Proxy Statement under the heading “Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees,” and is incorporated herein by this reference.

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a)(1) Financial Statements
The following items contained in the Annual Report are found on pages 1 through 92, and are
incorporated herein by this reference.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Statements of Income — Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income — Years Ended December 31, 2004,
2003, and 2002 oL
Consolldated Balance Sheets December 31, 2004 and 2003 ) '
" Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — Years Ended December 31, 2004 2003 and 2002
- *.Consolidated Statements of Changes in Common Shareholders’ Equny Ycars Ended '
, * December 31,2004, 2003 and 2002 -
.. ..... Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements .

(a)(2) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm and Schedules S'lip'biéfnenting
Financial Statements

The following documents may be found in this report at the indicated page numbers:

. . - Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
on Financial Statement Schedules . 20
Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the o ' _
Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 o C 21

Schedules I and III through V, inclusive, are omitted as not required or not applicable.
(@)(3) Exhibits
See Exhibit Index beginning on page 25 of this report.

SCE will furnish a copy of any exhibit listed in the accompanying Exhibit Index upon written request and
upon payment to SCE of its reasonable expenses of fumishing such exhibit, which shall be limited to
photocopying charges and, if mailed to the requesting party, the cost of first-class postage.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on
Financial Statement Schedules

To the Board of Directors and
Shareholder of Southern California Edison Company

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements referred to in our report dated March 14,
2005, appearing in the 2004 Annual Report of Southern California Edison Company (which
report and consolidated financial statements are incorporated by reference in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K) also included an audit of the financial statement schedules listed in
Item 15(a)(2) of this Form 10-K. In our opinion, these financial statement schedules present
fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with

the related consolida;ed ﬁnancia] statements.

/Zf" e/ﬁ//hdm;; 17&» s L4

Los Angeles, California
March 15, 2005
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Southern California Edison Company
SCHEDULE II - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

" i Additions
: Balanceat ' Chargedto  Charged to Balance
P Beginning of " Costs and - - Other at End
' Description - " Period - Expenses Accounts Deductions of Period

(In millions)

Uncollectible Accounts: oo
~ Customers N - % 237 $ 16.7 $ — $ 164 ~ $ 240

All other 6.6 33 — 3.0 6.9
Total $ 303 $ 200 $ — $ 194 $ 309

(a) Accounts written off, net.
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Southern California Edison Company
SCHEDULE II - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

o Additions
Balance at "Chargedto  Charged to Balance
Beginning of Costs and Other at End
Description Period Expenses Accounts  Deductions of Period

(In millions)
Uncollectible Accounts:

Customers $ 300 $ 192 § — S 255 $ 23.7
All other 6.1 4.6 — 4.1 6.6
Total $ 36.1 S 23.8 $ — $ 296(a) $ 303

(a) Accounts written off, net.
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Southern California Edison Company
SCHEDIULE II- VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

A Additions
Balanceat - Chargedto  Charged to Balance
‘Beginning of Costs and Other at End
Description’ Period ' Expenses Accounts Deductions of Period

(In millions)
Uncollectible Accounts:

Customers $ 283 $ 210 s — $ 193 $ 30.0
All other . - 3.7 43 — 19 6.1
Total $ 320 $ 253 $ — $ 212() $ 36.1

(a) Accounts written off, net.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY

@/10 /M /{/ i

Thomas M. Noonan
Vice President and Controller

Date: March 16, 2005

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Signature

Principal Executive Officer:
Alan J. Fohrer*

Principal Financial Officer:
W. James Scilacci*

Controller or Principal Accounting Officer:

Thomas M, Noonan
Board of Directors:

John E. Bryson*

France A. Cérdova*
Bradford M. Freeman*
Bruce Karatz*

Luis G. Nogales*

Ronald L. Olson*

James M. Rosser*

Richard T. Schlosberg, ITT*
Robert H, Smith*

Thomas C. Sutton*

'y /{/O{/M{M/L

Thomas M. Noonan
Vice President and Controller

Date: March 16, 2005

Title

Chief Executive Officer and Director

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Vice President and Cortroller

Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
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EXHIBIT INDEX

S
[

Exhibit
Number g Yo Descrlgtron e
3.1 Certificate of Amendment and Restated Articles of Incorporation of SCE effectrve
June 1, 1993 (File No. 1-2313, SCE Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1993)*
3.2 .. Certificate of Correction of Restated Articles of Incorporation of SCE dated effective ! ¢
: August 21, 1997 (Flle No. 1-2313, SCE Form 10- Q for the quarter ended September 30
1997y
33 - 'Amended Bylaws of Southern Callfomra Edrson Company as adopted by the Board of
Directors effective May 20, 2004 (File No. 1-2313, SCE Form 8-K dated May'21, 2004)
4.1 'SCE First Mortgage Bond Trust Indenture, dated as of October 1, 1923 (Regrstratlon
‘ No. 2-1369)* SEUAREEN
4.2 Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 1, 1927 (Regrstratlon No 2- 1369)*
43 =~ Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 24, 1935 (Registration No. 2-1602)*
44 - ‘Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 1, 1935 (Registration No. 2-4522)*
4.5 - Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 15, 1939 (Registration No.2-4522)*. * °
4.6 Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 1, 1940 (Registration No. 2-4522)*
4.7 Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 15, 1948 (Registration No. 2-7610)*
4.8 Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 15, 1964 (Registration
No. 2-22056)* - ST R
4.9 " Eighty-Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of J uly 15, 1992 (Fxle No 1-2313 SCE
-:Form 8-K dated July 22, 1992)* ... .-:.C
4.10 Indenture, dated as of January 15, 1993 (Flle No 1-2313 SCE Form 8-K dated January 28
1993)* - -

10.1%* Form of 1981 Deferred Compensatron Agreement (Frle No 1-2313 F led as Exhlbrt 10. 2 to
' ¢ SCE Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1981)* A
10.2** ‘Form of 1985 Deferred Compensation Agreement for Executives (File No 1-2313, ﬁled as
: i Exhibit 10.3 to SCE Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1985)*
10.3** Form of 1985 Deferred Compensation Agreement for Directors (File No."1-2313, filed as
* Exhibit 10.4 to SCE Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1985)* -« v
#,10.4** ' Director Deferred Compensation Plan as restated May 14, 2002 (File No. 1-9936, filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to Edison International Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002)*
' 10.4.1** “.Director Deferred Compensation Plan’Amendment No. 1 effective January 1, 2003 (File
+ No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.4.1 to Edrson Intematronal Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31,2002y . ...
10.5%* . i-Director Grantor Trust Agreement dated August 1995 (File No. 1-9936, ﬁled as Exhibit 10.10
to Edison International Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995)* - .
10.5.1**  Director Grantor Trust Agreement Amendment 2002-1 effective May 14,2002 (File
-No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit.10.4 to Edrson Intematronal Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
- June 30, 2002)* - TRV ‘
10.6** Executive Deferred Compensation Plan as amended and restated J anuary l 1998 (File
No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Edison Intematronal Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
- .- March 31, 1998)* = "¢ . bl G
10.6.1**  Executive Deferred Compensation Plan Amendment No."1 effectlve January 1, 2003 (File
No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.6. l to Edlson Intematronal Form 10 K for the year ended
" December 31, 2002)* it .
10.7** Executive Grantor Trust Agreement dated August 1995 (File No 1 9936 ﬁled as Exhibit
2 : 10.12 to Edison International Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995)*
10.7.1**  Executive Grantor Trust Agreement Amendment 2002-1 effective May 14, 2002 (File
No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Edison International Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2002)*
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10.8%* Executive Supplemental Benefit Program as amended January 30, 1990 (File No. 1-9936,
filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Edison International Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
1999)*

10.9** Dispute resolution amendment adopted November 30, 1989 of 1981 Executive Deferred.
Compensation Plan and 1985 Executive and Director Deferred Compensation Plan (File
No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.21 to Edison International Form 10-K for the year ended
December31, 1998)*

10.10**  Executive Retirement Plan as restated effective April 1, 1999 (File No. 1-9936, filed as -
Exhibit 10.1 to Edison Intemnational Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1999)*

10.10.1** Executive Retirement Plan Amendment 2001-1 effective March 12, 2001 (File No. 1-9936,
filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Edlson International Form 10-Q for the quaner ended March 31,
2001)* :

10.10.2** Executive Retirement Plan Amendment 2002-1 effective January 1, 2003 (File No. 1-9936,
filed as Exhibit 10.10.2 to Edison International Form 10-K for lhe year ended December 31,
2002)* .

10.11**  Executive Incentlve Compensation Plan effective January 1, 1997 (Flle No. 1-9936, filed as
Exhibit 10.12 to Edison International Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997)*

10.12**  Executive Disability and Survivor Benefit Program effective January 1, 1994 (File
No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.22 to Edison International Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1994)*

10.13**  Retirement Plan for Directors as amended February 19, 1998 (Flle No. 1-9936, filed as
Exhibit 10.2 to Edison International Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998)*

10.14**  Officer Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan as amended January 1,.1998 (File
No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Edison Intematlonal Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

‘ March 31, 1998)* -

10.15**  Equity Compensation Plan as restated effective January l 1998 (Flle No 1 9936 filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to Edison International Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998)*

10.15.1** Equity Compensation Plan Amendment No. 1 effective May 18, 2000 (File No. 1-9936, filed
as Exhibit 10.3 to Edison International Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2000)* -

10.16** 2000 Equity Plan effective May 18, 2000 (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Edison
International Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2000)* . :

10.17**  Terms and conditions for 1993-1995 long-term compensation awards under the Officer
Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.21.1 to Edison
International Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995)*, :

10.18**  Terms and conditions for 1996 long-term compensation awards under the Officer Long-Term
Incentive Compensation Plan (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.16.2 to Edison
International Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1996)* «

10.19**  Terms and conditions for 1997 long-term compensation awards under the Officer Long-Term
Incentive Compensation Plan (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.16.3 to Edison
International Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997)*

10.20**  Terms and conditions for 1998 long-term compensation awards under the Equity
Compensation Plan (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.4 to Edison Intematlonal Form lO -Q
for the quarter ended June 30, 1998)* :

10.21**  Terms and conditions for 1999 long-term compensation awards under the Equity
Compensation Plan (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10. 1 to Edison International Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended March 31,:1999)* - ..

10.22**  Terms and conditions for 2000 basic long—term compensation awards under the Equrty
Compensation Plan, as restated (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Edison International
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000)* .. Ly i

10.23**  Terms and conditions for 2000 special stock option awards under the Equity Compensation
Plan and 2000 Equity Plan (File No: 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Edison International
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2000)*
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10.24**

10.25%*

10.26%* -
~.Compensation Plan and 2000 Equity Plan (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Edison

10.27**
10.28**
10.29’;‘*
10.30**

10.31**

10.32%*

10.33**

10.34**

10.35%*

10.36**

10.37**

10.38**

10.39%*

10.40%*

Terms and conditions for 2001 retention incentives under the Equity Compensation Plan (File
No. 1-9936, filed as Exhxbxt 10.5to Edlson International Form'10-Q for the quarter ended

~..March 31, 2001)*

Terms and conditions for 2001 exchange offer deferred stock units under the Equity

-Compensation Plan (File No. 1-9936, filed as Attachment C of Exhibit (a)(1) to Edison
International Schedule TO-I dated October 26, 2001)* P

Terms and conditions for 2002 long-term compensation awards under the Equity

International Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2002)*

Terms and conditions for 2003 long-term compensation awards under the Equity
Compensation Plan and 2000 Equity Plan (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10. l to deson
International Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003)* A

Terms and conditions for 2004 long-term compensation awards under the Equity
Compensation Plan and 2000 Equity Plan (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Edlson
International Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004)*

Director Nonqualified Stock Option Terms and Conditions under the Equity Compensation
Plan (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Edison International Form 10- Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2002)*

Director 2004 Nonqualified Stock Option Terms and Conditions under the Equxty :
Compensation Plan (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Edison International Form 10 Q
for the quarter ended June 30, 2004)*

Estate and Financial Planning Program as ‘amended April 1, 1999 (File No. 1-2313 filed as

" EXhibit 10.2 to SCE Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999)*

Option Gain Deferral Plan as restated September 15, 2000 (File No. 1-9936, ﬁled as Exhibit
10.25 to Edison International Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000)*

Executive Severance Plan effective January 1, 2001 (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.34
to Edison International Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001)*

Resolution regarding the computation of disability and survivor benefits prior to age 55 for
Alan J. Fohrer dated February 17, 2000 (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Edison
International Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000)*

Employment Letter Agreement with Mahvash Yazdi dated March 26, 1997 (File No. 1-9936,
filed as Exhibit 10.34 to Edison International Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2002)*

Amendment to 1985 Deferred Compensation Plan Agreement for Executives and Deferred
Compensation Plan Deferred Compensation Agreement with John E. Bryson dated
December 31, 2003

Agreement between Edison International and SCE dated December 31, 2003, addressing
responsibility for the prospective costs of participation of John E. Bryson under the 1985
Deferred Compensation Plan Agreement for Executives, dated September 27, 1985, as
amended, and the Deferred Compensation Plan Deferred Compensation Agreement, dated
November 28, 1984, as amended (File No. 1-2313, filed as Exhibit 10.35 to SCE Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2003)*

Amendment to 1985 Deferred Compensation Plan Agreement for Directors with James M.
Rosser dated December 31, 2003 (File No. 1-2313, filed as Exhibit 10.36 to SCE Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2003)*

Amendment to 1985 Deferred Compensation Plan Agreement for Executives and Deferred
Compensation Plan Deferred Compensation Agreement with Harold B. Ray dated
December 31, 2003 (File No. 1-2313, filed as Exhibit 10.37 to SCE Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2003)*

Harold B. Ray retention incentive award terms as amended December 31, 2003 (File

No. 1-2313, filed as Exhibit 10.38 to SCE Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2003)*
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10.41 Amended and Restated Agreement for the Allocation of Income Tax Liabilities and Benefits
among Edison International, Southern California Edison Company and The Mission Group
dated September 10, 1996 (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Edison International
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002)*

10.41.1 Administrative Agreement re Tax Allocation Payments among Edison International, Southern
California Edison Company, The Mission Group, Edison Capital, Mission Energy Holding
Company, Edison Mission Energy, Edison O&M Services, Edison Enterprises, and Mission
Land Company dated July 2, 2001 (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.3.4 to Edison
International Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002)*

12 Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges .

13 Annual Report to Shareholders for year ended December 31, 2004

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm— PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP

24.1 Power of Attorney

24.2 Certified copy of Resolution of Board of Directors Authorizing Signature

311 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act

31.2 Certification of the Chief Fmancnal Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act

32 Statement Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

* Incorporated by reference pursuant to Rule 12b-32.
**  Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement, as required by Item 15(a)3.

28




[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]




